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ASL at a Glance

CORPORATE OVERVIEW £ B &/

e Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973

e Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) becomes
the Company’s ultimate holding company in September 2009

e Dedicated to delivering innovative, industry-specific and one-stop IT
solutions and services to customers across the region with business
operations in Hong Kong, Mainland China, United States, Europe, Taiwan,
Macau, Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia, etc.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B i E

For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

Revenue Gross profit

BA =5
ws1,917.55 ws344.2
+26.0% +106.5%
Net asset value Cash

EEFE ne
:1,097.81" 286,814

+52.7% +20.6%
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Net profit Basic earnings per share
#R BREREF
ksD2.6 " 8.99

+82.6%

® Proposed bonus issue

+28.4%

Proposed final dividend

il FEEGI B N
Two Bonus Shares 1.0 e

per every ten
existing Shares
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2017 OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS ¥ ZE
For the year ended 31st December 2017

® Acquired Grid Dynamics (now the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary),
achieving local support and global delivery

e Eligible for bidding 4 categories of IT services related to “Standing Offer
Agreement for Quality Professional Services 4"

e Adopted a new delivery model DevOps in various government projects

e Sales of professional services in the commercial sector significantly increased
e Won a number of big data and analytics projects from different industries

e Continued to leverage its managed services’ advantages

e Successfully launched the Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+) of its own
managed security services together with managed services and service desk
services to the market

e Successfully entered the IT security market in the financial industry
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2018 OUTLOOKS B

e The Group’s major businesses will be divided into the next generation one-
stop Integrated Managed Services; providing customers with leading-edge
Innovative Solutions; and Intimate Tech Hub

e In respect of the next generation one-stop Integrated Managed Services,
the Group continues to ensure the quality of IT services through service level
agreement and upgrade service platform, strengthening its position as a
next-generation one-stop ITSM provider

e In respect of Innovative Solutions, the Group will focus on providing
industry-specific, leading and high value-added solutions

e In respect of Intimate Tech Hub, the Group will actively cooperate with tier-
one providers with technology advantages or industry-leading suppliers

e  Continue to seek opportunities arising from the Belt and Road Initiative

e Speed up the Group’s globalization footprint and consolidate its position as
a professional and reliable global IT service partner
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Customer Service Excellence with Corporate Responsibility
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IT Exploration Tour for Sponsors the 31st Annual Hong Sponsors the Hong Kong
Secondary Students ROER£1T2017 Kong 24 Hour Pedal Kart Grand Prix  International Entrepreneurs
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CARING FOR THE EMPLOYEES B1EE T

Summer Baking Workshop Technology and Knowledge Celebrates ASL's 20th listing anniversary with employees

Z MG IT Exchange Workshop HETENBB RS LT —TAF
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New Year Party Christmas Party
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Signature Industry Recognition
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TOP PERFORMER /
PARTNER OF THE YEAR
BRUERE | FEBH

SERVICE CAPABILITY
RIBE AN

FINANCIAL MEDIA
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McAfee
BrIE

Hitachi Data Systems
HY B8R 54t
HPE Software
BEEEET

2017 Partner of Year in
North Asia Region
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Partner of the Year 2017
T FERHALE
Best Performance —
Security; Information
Management &
Governance; IT
Operations Management
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Huawei

Huawei

South East Asia Proof
of Concept Capability
Contest Award 2017
(1st & 2nd Prize)
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The Best Certified
Services Partner
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Hong Kong Economic Journal

Elpcils

Listed Company Award
of Excellence
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Listed Company
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Quality Policy of ASL
EEIES N s

We are committed to be the excellent IT services partner by providing ZEMAEREREFHNITHREBH HEFREMHA
customers innovative, quality and integrated one-stop IT services and ¥ BER —HRANSEEMBEBRERBRAR -
solutions. We aim at satisfying our customers’ business needs through forging HEMZEBEYRBUEBEMAEENZOER B
strategic alliance with our business partners and the core values of the Group HEEFWEKEE -

— “SPACT":

“S" _ Strive for Excellence AREM - LEARANE I e WIRETRKT
Perform work with best effort and the highest standard. Always looking for ways 18 - JRAETHE S -

to make further improvement.

“p" _ Problem Solving ARIRE — DAER AR BARRE - 82500R
Solve problem with effective solutions in a timely manner and be able to identify EHEBEBAETE - BN REERE
the core of the problems and provide workable solutions in an honest manner. YA ITRIRRR TSR ©

“A"” — Accountable RRCME - ERAANBEHEARRZE BE
Be accountable for one’s area of responsibilities whilst working towards the goal of MEREMBHNEER  BEMRE
the company, be responsible for managing and following up with the work until THEZENMKY

complete success.

“C" - Courage BEAE - BrRAKERER - st iUREZ LR
To change and innovate — respond timely to change and to enable the company NEMERBEF N - BREE - K
to become efficient and competitive. Eager to invent new ideas and new ways of 2O ITESR - IBASEEHES
work to advance in a leading position. HofL o

“T" — Teamwork BEED - AeREBN—HTF HEKEEHEA
Work as part of the team, co-operate and contribute to team effort & success. £ BERFTR - ZHEBKBENESR
Willing to offer help, share ideas and knowledge. I o BB TRER - RERE

A= R

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
BBRLER)ERAA

Capability Maturity Model®Integration (CMMI)

Version 1.3 - Maturity Level 3 Rating
[ 0 Software development and support service organization
)
Q'e,pw SGS. Capability Maturity Model®Integration (CMMI)
1.3M% - B = WFTAR
1SO 9001 : 2015 1SO 9001 : 2015 1SO 20000-1 : 2011 ISO/IEC 27001 : 2013 BHEERE T EREAS
Certificate No.: CC 1505 Certificate No.: CC 5337 Certificate No.: CC 5337 Certificate No.: HK12/00068 ’
Service Delivery Sales Operation Division IT Service Center Security Operation Center Plus
R3S SHEEBIER BERRBREHL RREERL+
ELM Computer Technologies Limited Grid Dynamics International, Inc.

MM EERRERD
ISO/IEC 27001 : 2013
Certificate No.: S 321
Information Security Management System
ERR2EERR

1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 3268
Service Delivery

BRAS 3RS
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Corporate Information
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Financial Calendar
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Financial Summary

I EE

RESULTS
E

For the year ended 31st December
BEt-A=1-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

—B-t& —ZT-3f —ZT-HFf —T-WNFE =—T-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx BT BT BT THET

Revenue WA 1,917,453 1521985 1,506,041 1433921 1,612,958

Profit before income tax FRETE A& A 69,748 38,978 27,578 29,589 23,594

Income tax expense FIEHRAX (17,169) (10,181) (7,874) (1,125) (6,314)

Profit for the year EREF 52,579 28,797 19,704 28,464 17,280

Profit for the year attributable to JRE R IEG

non-controlling interests ENER - - - 31 -
Profit for the year attributable to ARARAFEAA

equity holders of the Company FEASEF PR 52,579 28,797 19,704 28,495 17,280

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERER
At 31st December
R+=A=+-H
2017 2015
k- S 3 afF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FAT BT FHL
Total assets 2,264,893 1,166,328 1,175,121 1,152,323 1,115,090
Total liabilities 1,167,075 447,295 491,771 489,486 506,443
Equity attributable to equity RRFRAFEA
holders of the Company 1,097,818 719,033 683,350 662,837 608,647

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )



Chairman’s Statement
FERS

In 2017, the Group completed acquisition
of Grid Dynamics, strengthening the
Group’s local support and global delivery
capabilities to customers.

REBRZZF — £ F 5% KWK EGrd
Dynamics * i 58 7N 5= B ¥ % P #) R #h 2
& BRERIMNME -

FRIE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to
the shareholders the annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “ASL" or the “Group”).

For the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$1,917.5 million, an increase of 26.0% compared to last year. Gross profit, profit
before tax and profit after tax were HK$344.2 million, HK$69.7 million and HK$52.6
million, increases of 106.5%, 78.9% and 82.6% compared to last year respectively.
The significant increase of the revenue, gross profit and profit of the Group during
the year compared to last year was mainly attributable to the revenue, gross profit
and net profit of Grid Dynamics International, Inc. (“Grid Dynamics”), its wholly-
owned subsidiary, for the period from 7th April 2017 to 31st December 2017 were
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December 2017. The Group maintained a healthy financial position and
recorded an increase of 20.6% of its cash balance as at 31st December 2017 to
approximately HK$286.8 million when compared to last year.

2017 was the Group’s 20th listing anniversary in Hong Kong. Looking back, we
are very proud that ASL has been keeping pace with the times in a changing
market. Adhering to the principles of striving for constant changes and innovative
development, ASL has committed to providing customers from various industries
with innovative, high-quality, comprehensive and professional one-stop information
technology (“IT") services and solutions to help them improving their overall operating
benefits since its establishment in 1973.

IT services industry requires constant innovations, since no progress simply means
regression. The Group completed the acquisition of a next-generation scalable
e-commerce and digital technology solution provider Grid Dynamics (the “Acquisition”)
in the United States (“US") in April 2017, so as to capture the business opportunities
arisen from cloud platform service and digital transformation of enterprises. Boasting
extensive experience and management capability in open source technology, cloud
application and real-time big data analytics, Grid Dynamics is headquartered in
California, the US, with professional software research and development centers
in four Eastern European countries. The Acquisition not only enabled the Group to
enhance its capability on local support and realize global delivery, but also improved
its comprehensive strength in cloud computing, big data and artificial intelligence,
providing a positive effect to the overall revenue and profit of the Group in the future.

6 Annual Report 2017 F i

LI Wei Chairman
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In addition to the overall fruitful results of the Group this year contributed by Grid
Dynamics, the Group also maintained steady growth in its performance in Hong
Kong. The Group continued to obtain and complete various IT-related projects from
public and private sectors in Hong Kong by giving play to its strength and performed
spectacularly remarkable in businesses with rapidly increasing demands, including big
data analytics, security and one-stop IT service management and solutions.

As one of the leading service providers in Hong Kong, the Group obtained numerous
important awards such as “The Most Outstanding Partner Award” presented by
its partners within the year. It is noteworthy that the Group stood out from the
competitors in mainland China, Taiwan and Korea to be honoured the “Partner of
the Year in North Asia Award” by McAfee, being the only Hong Kong IT company
to receive such acclaim. It also won the first and second prize in Huawei's “2017
Southeast Asia Proof of Concept Competition” among Huawei partners from 14
countries. The above awards shall be attributed to the Group’s abundant experienced
professionals in various IT fields, as well as its strength to provide quality IT services.
The Group not only won the recognition in the industry, but also obtained the “Listed
Company Award of Excellence” of the Main Board presented by a well-known Hong
Kong financial media Hong Kong Economic Journal, which displayed the recognition
of the ASLs strength and development prospects from the international capital market
and Hong Kong business circle.

The Group has been proactively adjusting strategies in the past several years. In the
future, it will further promote the digital transformation of professional services with
focus on three major businesses of the Group: next-generation one-stop IT Integrated
Managed Services; leading-edge industry Innovative Solutions for its customers; and
Intimate Tech Hub. The Group will strengthen its cooperation with leading suppliers
having technology advantages, and provide one-stop international and brand-new IT
service solutions and services for customers in Hong Kong and even the world.

ASL's outstanding business performance over the years shall be attributed to clear
business strategies, enthusiasm and endeavour of all the employees, and continued
support from valued customers, business partners and shareholders for years. The
Board would like to take this opportunity to express its sincere gratitude to them.
I hereby want to extend my gratitude to the all members of the Board for their
contribution and support during the year.

Li Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th March 2018
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
TR RS

value.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Results

For the year ended 31st December 2017, total revenue of the Group was HK$1,917.5
million, representing a 26.0% increase from last year, which was contributed by the
increase in service revenue. As compared with last year, product sales were decreased
by 11.5% to HK$743.4 million while service revenue was increased by 72.2% to
HK$1,174.1 million. For the year ended 31st December 2017, product sales and
service revenue contributed 38.8% and 61.2% to total revenue respectively.

For the year ended 31st December 2017, commercial and public sector sales
contributed 59.1% and 40.9% to total revenue respectively, compared to 48.4% and
51.6% last year.

Gross profit for the year ended 31st December 2017 was HK$344.2 million, an
increase of HK$177.5 million or 106.5% compared with last year. Gross profit margin
for the year also increased from 11.0% to 17.9%. The increase in gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the gross profit contribution from Grid
Dynamics International, Inc. (“Grid Dynamics”), which was acquired on 7th April
2017.

Even though there were one-off professional fees for the amount of approximately
$9.0 million and finance costs for the amount of approximately $16.9 million incurred
for the acquisition of Grid Dynamics during the year ended 31st December 2017, the
Group recorded a profit attributable to the Company’s equity holders of HK$52.6
million, a rise of 82.6% compared to last year of HK$28.8 million.

For the year ended 31st December 2017, orders newly secured by the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,976.5 million. As at 31st December 2017, the order
book balance was approximately HK$1,120.4 million, an increase of 16.2% from
HK$963.4 million of last year. The Group’s cash stood at approximately HK$286.8
million with a working capital ratio of 1.25:1. The Group maintained a healthy
financial position during the year. As at 31st December 2017, the outstanding
borrowings amounted to HK$493.0 million.

8 Annual Report 2017 F i

The Group will continue to seek
opportunities arising from “Belt and Road”
to provide leading IT services with higher

AREBAGTESHK [ —F— 38 | P sa
B AIEESEELALNEMBERS -

WANG Yueou Chief Executive Officer
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Following the Company’s announcements dated 19th March 2014 and 21st May
2014 with regard to the termination of a business contract entered into between
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited (“AHK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and a customer, AHK has reached a settlement with the customer during
the year under review. Such settlement brings no significant adverse impact on the
Group's results as provision and settlement have been made properly during the year
ended 31st December 2017.

Business Review

In 2017, the Group’s local core business grew stably and its business expanded to
Europe and the United States. The Group completed the acquisition of Grid Dynamics,
a company located at Silicon Valley, California, the United States, on 7th April 2017
at a total consideration of US$118.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$916.8
million) plus certain adjustments. Grid Dynamics is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, and its revenue, gross profit and profit for the period from 7th April 2017
to 31st December 2017 were consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2017, immediately leading to a
significant increase in revenue, gross profit and profit of the Group, representing an
increase of 26.0%, 106.5% and 82.6% respectively as compared with those for last
year.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share
and bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”) of shares of par value HK$0.1 each in the capital
of the Company on the basis of two (2) bonus shares (“Bonus Shares”), credited as
fully paid, for every ten (10) existing shares held by the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members on Tuesday, 29th May 2018 for the
year ended 31st December 2017.

In respect of the public sector sales, the Group has always won the trust and
support of government bureaux and departments. It was contracted a number of
Information Technology (“IT") professional services projects included in the Standing
Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services 3 during the year under review,
ranking among the top in the industry in terms of total contract amount which was
a strong track record. In the second half of the year, building on its success, the
Group was entrusted as one of the contractors for “Standing Offer Agreement for
Quality Professional Services 4” (SOA-QPS4) by the Office of the Government Chief
Information Officer, and was eligible for bidding four categories of IT Services for
various government bureaux and departments. In addition, the Group continued to
benefit from the government’s policy of actively promoting innovation and utilizing
IT to improve public services, and adopted a new delivery model DevOps in various
government projects in the second half of this year to enhance the flexibility and
effectiveness of delivery services.

In respect of the commercial sector sales, the sales of professional services during the
year increased significantly by virtue of the Group’s quality, innovative and one-stop
IT services as well as market reputation established, which achieved an encouraging
result. With more than 40-year experience in its focused-industries in the area of
systems integration and bringing in new capability, the Group not only provided
industry-specific professional infrastructure support services to a telecom operator, but
also won a number of projects from different industries through the understanding of
various industries and continuing to successfully keep up with the trend of big data
and analytics, thus further consolidated the Group’s positioning of one-stop IT services
provider.
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With regard to expanding its managed service business, the Group, as a one-stop
Information Technology Service Management (“ITSM") company, continued to
leverage its advantages during the year, received a new long-term managed service
order from a renowned bank client. The Group enhances the level and expands the
coverage of support services for this bank client, as well as provides consultancy
services to meet customers’ buoyant demand on ITSM and fully meets the needs
of customers for IT in a flexible way so that they can focus on their own business
development.

In addition, the Group strived to improve its service level and technology in the
information network security business and achieved good results during the year.
Along with the cyberattacks attracted wide public concern in 2017 and the new “Cyber
Resilience Assessment Framework” for banks issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority, the Group has successfully seized business opportunities to obtain relevant
IT security projects in different industries, among which include the landmark project,
the signing of a three-year security managed service project contract with a large
Hong Kong transport operator, which successfully launched the Security Operation
Center Plus ("SOC+") of its own managed security services together with managed
services and service desk services to the market. It has also successfully entered
the IT security market in the financial industry. Through the Group’s SOC+ Security
Information and Event Management (SIEM) platform, an advanced platform that helps
integrating and detecting associated security information/events, we provide two-year
one-stop security managed service to a well-known bank to assist the bank in meeting
statutory cyber security level and effectively detect abnormal network activities for
clients at any time.

Outlook and Prospects

2017 is the Group’s 20th listing anniversary in Hong Kong, the Group successfully
acquired Grid Dynamics, a provider of scalable, next-generation e-commerce digital
technology solutions in the United States. As a result, the Group becomes Hong
Kong’s first local IT company which grows beyond Asia and expands its business to
global markets, laying a solid foundation for the future development of the Group and
marking the Group’s innovation journey of development.

Benefiting from customers’ demand for third platform technologies such as cloud
computing and big data analytics, Grid Dynamics expanded its business rapidly, and
its number of employees grew from about 600 in early 2017 to over 800 currently to
support its business growth. In 2018, Grid Dynamics is also planning to open its sixth
research and development center in Serbia, Europe, which provides a highly skilled
talent pool and high-quality communications network, to further strengthen the
Group's local support and global delivery capabilities to meet different customer needs
in various regions.
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In order to cope with the challenge of anticipated gradual reduction in demand for
IT infrastructure due to cloud computing and to consolidate our market position as a
reliable and professional IT partner, the Group was committed to improving its strategy
and further promoting the digital transformation of professional services in the
second half of 2017. The major businesses of the Group will be divided into the next
generation one-stop Integrated Managed Services; providing customers with leading-
edge Innovative Solutions; and Intimate Tech Hub.

In respect of the next-generation one-stop Integrated Managed Services, the Group
will continue to ensure the quality of IT services through service level agreement (SLA)
and upgrade service platform (i.e. to connect customers with our SOC+ through our
well-equipped and advanced service centre, a service hub, by utilising omni-channels
including phones, emails, websites, instant messages, on-site services, applications on
smart phones, etc. and to launch one-stop IT services which better meet customers’
needs with innovative Online to Offline (020) model and integrated conceptual
model) while achieving efficient synergy of management processes to enhance
customer’s IT operation and management level and capability and thus drives business
growth and, through provision of high quality customer experience, strengthens the
Group’s position as a next-generation one-stop ITSM provider.

In respect of Innovative Solutions, the world is entering a new era of cloud, big
data analytics and mobile internet. Technological changes will bring about major
changes in the industry model and competition pattern. Industry vertical integration
and convergence of IT products and services are increasingly noticeable. Therefore,
it is particularly important for professional service providers to capitalize on their
exceptional skills and accumulated experience in their specialized areas. Focusing on
industries with competitive edges (namely government, banking and finance, public
healthcare, transportation, real estate and education), the Group further strengthens
its innovative ability with regard to Innovative Solutions. With considerable insight
into the changes in customers’ needs in various industries, the Group provides leading
and high value-added solutions based on the integration and reconstruction of their
business procedures and by using technologies that meet the core business needs of
customers.

In respect of Intimate Tech Hub, the Group will focus on strengthening the integration
of industry-specific knowledge, comprehensive skills and cross-platform technologies
in the industry, and deepen cooperation with strategic partners on the new
technologies such as artificial intelligence, robotics, machine learning, smart city and
grasp business opportunities brought by related application trends. The Group will also
provide one-stop innovative IT solutions and services to customers in Hong Kong and
around the world through active cooperation with tier-one providers with technology
advantages or industry-leading suppliers.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to seek opportunities in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China arising from Belt and Road to provide leading IT services with higher
value for our global customers, so as to speed up the globalization of the Group and
consolidate the Group’s position as a professional and reliable IT service partner in the
Asia-Pacific region and around the globe.
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Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2017, the Group's total assets of HK$2,264.9 million were
financed by current liabilities of HK$779.9 million, non-current liabilities of HK$387.2
million and shareholders’ equity of HK$1,097.8 million. The Group had a working
capital ratio of approximately 1.25:1.

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had an aggregate composite banking facility
from banks of approximately HK$371.0 million (2016: HK$170.0 million). The Group
had pledged land and buildings of HK$272.0 million (2016: HK$107.3 million),
investment properties of HK$52.3 million (2016: Nil) and restricted bank deposits
HK$0.8 million (2016: HK$0.5 million) for banking facility and performance bonds
granted to the Group respectively. The performance bonds issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts were approximately HK$63.3 million as at 31st
December 2017 (2016: HK$62.6 million). The Group’s gearing ratio (total borrowings
over total equity) was 44.9% as at 31st December 2017 (2016: 1.4%).

Material Acquisition

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 19th December
2016 and 7th April 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 6th March 2017,
respectively, in relation to, among other matters, the acquisition of Grid Dynamics. On
19th December 2016, the Board announced that the Company and Grid Dynamics
entered into an agreement and plan of merger (the “Merger Agreement”). The
Company agreed to acquire Grid Dynamics with a total cash consideration of up
to approximately US$118.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$916.8 million)
plus certain adjustments, by the way of merger, which is subject to the terms and
conditions set out in the Merger Agreement. On 7th April 2017, all the conditions
to the closing of the Acquisition (the “Closing”) as set out in the Merger Agreement
had been fulfilled and the Closing took place on the same date. Upon the Closing,
Grid Dynamics has become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the financial results, assets and liabilities of Grid Dynamics and its subsidiaries are
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the Group with effect from
7th April 2017.

Fund Raising Activities

(i) Rights Issue

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 12th January
2017 and 24th February 2017, respectively and the prospectus of the Company
dated 3rd February 2017, in relation to, among other matters, the issue of rights
shares (the “Rights Shares”) of the Company (the “Rights Issue”). On 12th January
2017, the Board announced that the Company proposed to raise gross proceeds of
approximately HK$192.9 million to approximately HK$193.2 million by issuing not less
than 175,394,450 Rights Shares and not more than 175,652,950 Rights Shares at the
subscription price of HK$1.10 per Rights Share on the basis of one (1) Rights Share
for every two (2) existing shares held on the record date (i.e. 27th January 2017). The
Rights Issue was completed on 27th February 2017 and 175,394,450 Rights Shares
were issued.

For the actual net proceeds of approximately HK$189.1 million from the Rights Issue,
approximately HK$170.2 million has been used for financing the Acquisition and
approximately HK$18.9 million has been used for repaying bank borrowings and
improving the liquidity for the operations of the Group in Hong Kong. The uses are
consistent with the intended use of proceeds as disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company dated 3rd February 2017.
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(ii) Placing of Convertible Bonds

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 12th January 2017,
23rd February 2017, 8th March 2017, 21st March 2017, 8th June 2017 and 25th
August 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 24th February 2017 respectively,
in relation to, among other matters, the placing (the “Placing”) of the convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”). On 12th January 2017, the Company and GF
Securities (Hong Kong) Brokerage Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into the
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”). The Placing Agent has conditionally
agreed to procure, on a best efforts basis, placee(s) to subscribe for the Convertible
Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$350.0 million at the issue price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds due on the third
anniversary of the date of issue at zero interest rate, with the conversion rights to
convert the principal amount thereof into 291,666,666 conversion shares at the initial
conversion price of HK$1.20 per conversion share.

All conditions set out in the Placing Agreement have been fulfilled and the completion
of the Placing took place on 21st March 2017 in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Placing Agreement. The Convertible Bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$350.0 million, convertible into 291,666,666 conversion shares,
have been successfully placed to two placees, namely Viewforth Limited and China
Fortune Rich Private Equity Fund Limited (“China Fortune”). The conversion price of
the Convertible Bonds and the number of conversion shares falling to be allotted
and issued upon conversion of the Convertible Bonds were adjusted to HK$1.09 (the
“Adjusted Conversion Price”) and 321,100,917 conversion shares respectively with
effect from 30th May 2017 as a result of bonus issue of the Company approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 17th May 2017.

On 25th August 2017, China Fortune has exercised the conversion rights to convert
the principal amount of HK$100.0 million at the adjusted conversion price of HK$1.09
per share into 91,743,119 Shares (the “Conversion”). The aggregate outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds will be reduced to HK$250.0 million
immediately after the Conversion. Save as disclosed above, there was no conversion or
redemption of the Convertible Bonds for the year ended 31st December 2017.

For the actual net proceeds of approximately HK$345.9 million from the Placing of
Convertible Bonds, approximately HK$311.3 million has been used for financing the
Acquisition and approximately HK$34.6 million has been used for staff incentive and
remuneration payment and improvement in the liquidity for the operations of the
Group as enlarged upon completion of the Acquisition. The uses are consistent with
the intended use of proceeds as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 24th
February 2017.
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Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated resources and
credit facilities provided by banks, as well as proceeds raised from issuance of bonds
and equity financing exercises. Bank facilities available for the Group include trust
receipt loans, clean import loans, overdrafts and term loans. The interest rates of most
of them are fixed by reference to the respective countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The
bank deposits are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United
States dollars ("USD"). The bank borrowings are denominated in HKD.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and USD. Foreign exchange
exposure to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to link HKD to USD
remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
and therefore no related hedging financial instrument was applied during the year
ended 31st December 2017 (2016: same).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had HK$0.8 million restricted bank deposits
held as security for performance bonds (2016: HK$0.5 million). As at 31st December
2017, performance bonds of approximately HK$63.3 million (2016: HK$62.6 million)
had been issued by the bank on behalf of the Group to customers as security of
contracts.

Capital Commitments

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had contracted capital commitments
amounting to approximately HK$11.6 million (2016: HK$0.1 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 25.5% and 6.9%,
respectively, of the Group’s revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 35.9% and 9.4%, respectively, of
the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2017 did a Director, their close
associate or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) has an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2017, the Group, excluding its associates, employed 2,056
permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau,
Thailand, the United States, Russia, Poland and Ukraine. The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, working experience and the prevailing market
conditions. Bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, insurance, medical coverage and share option
scheme.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR 2018
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on Wednesday,
16th May 2018. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 11th May 2018 to Wednesday, 16th May 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 10th May 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR PROPOSED
FINAL DIVIDEND AND PROPOSED BONUS ISSUE

The proposed final dividend and the proposed Bonus Issue is subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The record date for
entitlement to the proposed final dividend and the proposed Bonus Issue is Tuesday,
29th May 2018. For determining the entitlement of the final dividend and the Bonus
Shares, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 24th
May 2018 to Tuesday, 29th May 2018, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the final
dividend and the Bonus Shares, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23rd May
2018. The final dividend warrants and the share certificates for the Bonus Shares
are expected to be despatched to the qualifying shareholders of the Company on or
before Friday, 8th June 2018.

Dealings in shares of the Company are on a cum-entitlement basis with respect to
the final dividend and the Bonus Issue up to Friday, 18th May 2018. From Monday,
21st May 2018, dealings in shares of the Company will be on an ex-entitlement basis
with respect to the final dividend and the Bonus Issue. The Bonus Issue is subject to
fulfillment of the conditions precedent of the Bonus Issue.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2017, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited
annual results.

By Order of the Board

WANG Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28th March 2018
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Activity Highlights
EEER

JAN — B

Celebrating ASL’s 20th listing anniversary and successful acc;fjisiﬁon of Grid Dynamics

B ASL i =+ /A4 A IH UL Grid Dynamics
= N ¢ . -‘: -
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APR M B

' o}
ASL showcases its security solutions at the Cisco

Security Connect 2017 and captures new market
opportunities arising from digital transformation.
ASLF [ Cisco Security Connect 2017 | BREZ
2FR - WHIRHEERER 2 HH

FEB —A
O

ASL successfully showcases its data management
& analytics solutions at Microsoft Tech Summit
2017.

ASLR [Microsoft Tech Summit 2017 FRIIER
HEBEBRNANMBRAAR -

APR M A

ASL together with HPE, HP Inc. & Veeam
organize Keep Reinventing Solution Day.
ASL BHHPE, HP Inc. }2 Veeam £3f# [ Keep
Reinventing Solution Day ] °

—0 16 Annual Report 2017 3R

' le)
ASL partners with Cisco and Veeam to host a
seminar introducing advanced hyper-converged
solutions and backup solutions.
ASL#ZHH Cisco 71 Veeam A Hiffiz] &
MERaAAEMEBH R -

‘APR R
o]
A signing ceremony about ASL's successful
acquisition of Grid Dynamics, a US cloud service

NABER

company at Silicon Valley.
ASLER IR E B AZ R B RS2 F Grid
Dynamics % A& ©

MAY £ B

ASL celebrates its 20th listing anniversary on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the
completion of the Group’s acquisition of Grid
Dynamics, attracting guests from different
sectors attended the event to witness this
important moment. The celebration activity is
extended to Beijing through holding a press
conference.

ASLEBIT EMZTAFHEES - TEREERT
B UREE Grid Dynamics ° EENESHEERAL
[|NTHERE  HARBLEENEZ - FB
BAREAGERENEREHELR -
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ASL collaborates with McAfee to
introduce updated cyber security
solutions for the financial services
industry in a wine tasting dinner.

ASLEE McAfee B EEE— BB EF /S
BUARISEN B ER RN LR RARTER ©

oCT + A8

ASL hosts the Agile Development
Seminar showcased the best practices
of agile technologies, their successful
applications and the latest industries
hot topics including big data, DevOps,
ASL Security Operation Center Plus and
Security Consulting Services, Omni-
channel Services and hybrid IT solutions.

ASL 3 [ RE] - BB
FHETENSETRS L YOZEA)N
K5 - RISEBEITEAMTEBREAE
#& - DevOps * BB RALREEFR O+
RZE=BEERE - 2ETERIRER
BRREEAMBHEAR -

NOV +—8

o
ASL exhibits its quality one-stop managed
services at the BMC Digital Innovation
Day 2017.

ASL7 [BMC Digital Innovation Day
2017 ] BRE S E)— i E IR AR o

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 Z 5B BR A A

Activity Highlights
EETER

NOV +—A

ASL joins forces with the Association

of I.T. Leaders in Education and CITIC
Telecom International to organize the
tour of ASL Service Center and ASL
Security Operation Center Plus.

ASL BRI H A A e kP (EE
REMBFRREBERRETOME
PERLZDEFET L+ 28 -

DEC +=A

ASL's data intelligence solutions and

services debut at the World Internet
Conference.

ASLEURE BE 7 R RISTE [t R B HE
K& | Hseig o
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

REAMEZEESH

CUSTOMER

5F

A government authority

—HUBRER

A government authority

—BUBRE D

A higher education institution

—=ERERIE

An information technology supply chain services company

—EMRHR SRS A 7

A large Hong Kong transport operator

—ERALEHLER

A leading financial services group in Asia

—mMEENEBIREER

A Macau government department

— B PIEUT ERP

A Macau telecom operator
—RFIENEER

A multinational technology company headquartered
in the US

— AN ER BRI

A renowned bank in Hong Kong

— BB AMBIRTT

A statutory body
—IRTERNE

A US large retailer of home improvement supplies

—XEARARRTERD

A well-known bank

—MEIRTT

Office of the Government Chief Information Officer

BT & R 48 B2

/\H—v
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SCOPE OF WORK
BREE

A 60-month contract for the supply, delivery, installation, commissioning and
maintenance of a high performance computing solution

BREE0EAZAL 7Yt - & - 2K - ARRESHEEMERBRRNT R

Large-scale of computer operation system’s upgrade

REBERITBIEERR

Development of Wi-Fi networks for customer's new campus

BEPHFTRE B R BREE

Provision of security services in ISO 27001 standard for customer’s website
application in Taiwan

RBERTPNMEERREASR IS0 27001 {REN L 2RH

Provision of three-year large-scale managed security services

RESH=FOAINZ 2R R

Supporting customers’ frontline users with ASL's managed service delivery model
and enlarged the Group’s managed services footprint in this customer

AASLH EE RS MEARIERTPHRIZRS  WEATEBETZES
78 TR AR 7% & E

Provision of Internet protocol and closed-circuit television surveillance hardware
and implementation services and maintenance support services

IR AP BAR B R M MR IR M SR SR IR

Provision of comprehensive information technology network revamp and
maintenance services

RUEHEAE ARG TR R ERERY

Design and build a big data platform for analytics
PR Rt MBS RBUR T & BT

Provision of security event monitoring services

R 2 SRS

Provision of on-site technical support services for customers’ production systems

REPHEE RSB RMSIE RS

Design and build innovative ideas like chatbots and image search to improve
online customer experience

Rt BB EE BN R R AT E GRS AN ZB LR P ER

Provision of two-year one-stop managed security services to comply with the
requirement of Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s Cyber Resilience Assessment

Framework
REAHEMEN - L 2EEREUFTEEESREERNAR AT HIE
B

Category 1, 2, 3 and 4 of the Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional
Services 4 (SOA-QPS4)

BEEMPHR IR F fFit % 4 (SOA-QPS4) Z IRFHRRI— ~ = » =M



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAEB/N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HTES

(o)

Mr. WANG Weihang
THEMELE

Mr. Wang, aged 51, has been a Director of the Company since
2009 and was re-designated from a Non-Executive Director to an
Executive Director in May 2014. Mr. Wang is currently the chairman
and president, and a director of Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Teamsun”) and the sole director of Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited
("Hong Kong Teamsun”), the Company’s immediate holding company.
Hong Kong Teamsun is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Teamsun, the
Company’s ultimate holding company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600410.SH). Mr. Wang is currently a director
of certain subsidiaries of Teamsun. Prior to re-designation as the
chairman and president of Teamsun, Mr. Wang was the general
manager of Teamsun, and the vice chairman and general manager of
the first board of directors of Teamsun. Mr. Wang holds an Executive
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua University
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and a Master's Degree
in Semi-Conductor Materials and Microelectronic Technology from
the Information and Electronic Engineering Department of Zhejiang
University in the PRC. Mr. Wang was awarded as R B8 {7 24 H
B2 (China Software Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur Laureate)
and FREIEHFEENE)AY (China Software Industry Prestige Award
Laureate®) by China Software Industry Association in 2009. He was
also awarded the “Innovation Outstanding Personality of Chinese
Brand Award” in 2011.

FhE RFER+—5% B EEAFRHEERARARES YN -F
—NEDARMTESTHIRITES - TRARR/ARARNLE
BHR S LW (BRHRSE - 600410.5H) Z FAIERA AL REBX
BN BERAF (TEBRK]) cEERFRBELES  YAK
RAZ BEERAREBRRRZ (BE)ARAF ([ FEFEBERK])
M—EE -  BEEBRKDEBRUR BB Z2EREWNEB LR - £
EERREBRANETHEARZES - RAEA/EBRARZEER
REHER  TREREB R ZBEELE - REESNEERRE
B TRARATEARKMBE((FEDBEABEE 2 RERE
ABTHERET2URTEMNIABESEFIRERERZWE
FERELEMN - EREN_TTNFRDERNHTEH BB PEHR
HEFGHOERRPRRMEZDTAY - BN T ——FER
2% [P RIS G AR -

(o,
Mr. WANG Yueou
TEBLEE

Chief Executive Officer

TRAEER

Mr. Wang Yueou, aged 43, has been the Chief Executive Officer
and an Executive Director of the Company since September 2016
and September 2015 respectively. Mr. Wang joined the Group in
2011 and was the Financial Controller, the Chief Financial Officer
and the Joint Company Secretary of the Group. He is currently a
director of certain subsidiaries and associates of the Company (i.e.
the directorships of i-Sprint Holdings Limited and i-Sprint Innovations
Pte Ltd), and a supervisor of Victorysoft Technology Ltd, the joint
venture company of the Company in the PRC. He has been appointed
as a director of Teamsun since December 2017 and is currently the
chief financial officer and a director of Carnation Software Ltd., a
subsidiary of Teamsun. Mr. Wang was the chief financial officer and
a board secretary of Guangzhou Headway Technology Co., Ltd.
and the regional finance manager (China) of Wistron Information
Technology & Services Corporation. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in International Accounting from Jinan University in the PRC,
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Wales
in the United Kingdom and an Executive Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in the
PRC.

TEEBSE  BRFE+T=Zm DB —R"FLAKZZT—AFN
AREERARIZITRESRIITES - TAER T ——FNEA
SERBRAEE MGELE  BBRERBEATINE - BRE
BARREEH B A 7 KB & QR 2 Z S (BDi-Sprint Holdings Limited
K i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Z E %) » ARARFNPREZEER
AERBBRBAERARZES - FE T —tF T _ABZAAE
Rz ER AR AEBRE B AR BEMNATTERBRGER
REVZGRERES - THELREMNERRHRER DA 2 548
EREEEWE  URBEAIRHROERIF PEEMELE -
FERETHEHASEE FR 280 - KR A28
B IRERELEM  URPEBFERSZMEREEZSREEA
BTEEIEBE LA -
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERESREEAERDN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FUTES

(e,

Mr. LI Wei
SERE

Chairman

EE

Mr. Li, aged 53, has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board
and a Non-Executive Director of the Company since September 2015.
He has been appointed as a director of Teamsun since March 2014.
Mr. Li is currently a director of certain subsidiaries of Teamsun. He
was the acting chief financial officer of Teamsun, an instructor of
Jinling Institute of Technology, the manager of Jiangsu East Securities
Brokerage Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huatai Securities
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Jiangsu Securities Co., Ltd.), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601688.SH), the
general manager of Nanjing Weizhong Technology Industrial Co.,
Ltd., the general manager of Nanning Yinhe South Software Co.,
Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Galaxy Biomedical Investment
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Beihai Yinhe Industry Investment Co.,
Ltd.), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
000806.5Z), a director of the East China Representative Office of
China Venture Capital Research Institute and the general manager
of Shanghai Business Department of the International Division of
China Potevio Co., Ltd., in the PRC. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor's Degree
from East China Normal University in the PRC, a Master's Degree
from Nanjing Normal University in the PRC and an Executive Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business in the PRC.

FhE BERATZR BT AFNARBZTALARRESEE
ERIFNTES - AT NF=-ABZAAEBRKNZESE - =
EERBEBRNETHBRARZESE - HRPEGEERBRARIE
BISHEES - SRR SR ER - DEEER S ETARERESR
DAEBRAR (A1Z  IEEBEAR) (DRI  601688.5H) 22 &
MBARIEHR T BHCL AR mRARPREEERRAAA
212 RIIBE SR ST LM AR ER A A MEERERHBER AT
(AT« JEBRMEXRRERNDERARE) (BRMHMRIE : 000806.5Z) 2
2EMBARBEERIEHATEERABBLE - PEEBRICEHFR
REFRREEFTRPRLREEEERMDERAREEEEAR -
TETSBAEIE - TRAERBRHERMBEASHE BB -
ER RASALER BTSN URPRARIRSRER AT
BEABIHERBETSM -

Annual Report 2017 & #f

Mr. CUI Yong
BEEXLE

Mr. Cui, aged 50, has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since September 2015. He joined Teamsun in March 2005. He has
been appointed as a director, the executive vice president and the
general manager of the system information product (plate) division
in Teamsun since December 2017, January 2017 and January 2015
respectively. During his tenure with Teamsun, Mr. Cui was the
general manager of various divisions, including telecommunications
industry, value-added storage business division and system product
business division. Mr. Cui holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration from Guanghua School of Management in Peking
University in the PRC.

ErE BREA+tE BT AFNAEZTARARENITE
FoBRZTETRAF=ANMEEBRK - B#HHE T —EF+=
A —Z—+F-AR-T-RE-AREZEAEBRAKES - #
TRIBE R RGE BER (IRIE) BACTR o £ 504 0 I B KA (T % HA
M SECZEDBPIRLE  EPRIEENTE  TRIEESZETR
APEMBED - AR EFRIEREASLETHERBE 2R
ERAETHERIELTEN -



INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BYFHTES

(e,

Mr. PAN Xinrong

Mr. Pan, aged 64, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since September 2015. He was an executive director
and the deputy chairman of Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock Code: 934) from 2004 to 2007 and was the
chief executive officer of Petro-Cyberworks Information Technology
Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2014. Mr. Pan also held financial positions
in various companies, including China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation (“SINOPEC"), China Petrochemical Corporation, China
Eastern United Petrochemical (Group) Company Limited and SINOPEC
Anging Company (formerly known as China Petrochemical Anging
Petrochemical Plate). Mr. Pan graduated from China Huazhong
University of Science and Technology with a profession in Quantitative
Economics. Mr. Pan was awarded the “Outstanding Management
Award” by China Petroleum and Chemical Industries Integration of
Informatization and Industrialization in 2011 and the First Prize of
SINOPEC Technology Advancement in 2014.

EEAE  BEANTNE - AT —AFNARZERARABE IR
TEFE -WER - ZEMEFE T FAEREBHARIMERLDA
TR ETRRFALBEERAR QR (RN 934) EERTE
ERAFERR _EERNFE_Z-NFRARRMEERMERE
FRABEEEFEATERM  FEENERPELMEIRHARR
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EERESREEAERN

(e,

Mr. DENG Jianxin
BEHFEE

Mr. Deng, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since September 2015. He is currently an executive
director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Capital Investment Management
Co., Ltd., an executive director of Shenzhen Zhuoyi Management
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (RIITT LIz BEEHRERAFR]), an executive
director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Enterprise Consultants Co., Ltd* (&
BT ERER AR AR]), the chairman of Shanghai Debimai
Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.# (E/81E MR ¥ EE
AH#AEMR AT, a supervisor of Shanghai Dobe Cultural & Creative
Industry Development (Group) Co., Ltd. and a director of Shandong
Bori Biological Energy Co., Ltd.. Mr. Deng was a partner of Beijing
JD Capital Co., Ltd., a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
("Deloitte”), a full-time member of the 7th and 8th Stock Offering
Approval Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission, an
independent director of Guangbo Group Stock Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002103.57) and
a director of Suzhou Gardens Construction Industry Corporation, a
company listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
System (the New Third Board*) in the PRC (Stock Code: 833209.0C).
Mr. Deng was mainly responsible for managing and auditing the listing
of companies as well as the merger and acquisition services in Deloitte.
Mr. Deng holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law in the PRC and an Executive Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business in the PRC.

BiEd  BERA+T=R B2 RAFNAKZEARRTIELIEN
TEZ - FHRAFIMELBKIREAEREERARTNNTES  FYIM
Bl EREABRARNITES - FIITE L EERBRA AT
EF  DIEUSRCETBEEZRNERARNESR - DEESULAIE
EXEEE(EB)BRAREFRIURENEMEERRNDERARE
FoHAEAESTIURETNSREERERAREGEA - EHSED
EHA(1EHDEBA  PEEFESELEREERZETERE
BEEREE FEFRSALMAREFEEERMNERA A (&
MARER 1 002103.52) B #EE R E2E P/ NPERDHERERS (G
=iR) EmAREMNENE EEZERNDARAR (BRMHAS : 833200.
OO)EZ - MAENEHEIZARCE I MHEHNER  TEEH
BRIEEL - SEERAPETREMRBEAZGHRELEM R
ERIHERERZSREIREAS THEIRBELTSM -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 Z 5B BR A A

21

o——o



—o0 22

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEABRBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

BAFHITES @

(o)

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina
M NErE

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina, aged 48, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since April 2017. She has been a
director and president of Schneider Electric (Hong Kong) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric SE (collectively with its
subsidiaries “Schneider Electric”), a company listed on the Euronext
Paris Stock Exchange (Stock Code: SU) since 2015 and is currently
a director of certain subsidiaries of Schneider Electric. She joined
Schneider Electric in 1994 and held various positions with Schneider
Electric, including the vice president of global purchasing of Schneider
Electric between 2012 and 2014 and the president of Schneider
Electric Taiwan Co., Ltd. between 2008 and 2011. Ms Or has also been
appointed as a member of Energy Advisory Committee of Environment
Bureau of The Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region since 2016. She has more than 20 years’ management
experience in energy management and automation industry. Ms. Or
holds an Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administrative from
the Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University in the
United States of America and the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology, and a Master's degree of Science in Management
from ESSEC Graduate School of Management in France.

RNELL BENTN\K - B-E—tFNABEZERRRAREIL
FEHITES - FA T - RFRECERZBESZHA LT AR
=B RN B R DR (GRS - SU) CEREWMBAR - 5tiF [ it

MfEER]) 22 EMNBAREMEER(EE) ERATNES REL
BNREMEERETHEARZES - ?&%*ﬂﬂ@ibﬂ)\fjﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
BREZTEZERL  BER T —F2 T NFHHREME

EREHRBHAGHEN_—FF )\fF:I:— Z **EFH\EFEJEE\/%’%MW

BERBRARGE - Wt IFE = /\ﬁ?ﬁg?fiﬁ’@%%%ﬁﬂl
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SNEBAS

(o)

Mr. NGAN Wai Hing
BEEERE

Financial Controller and Company Secretary

BB R 1 A&

Mr. Ngan, aged 46, has been the Financial Controller and the
Company Secretary of the Company since September 2016. Mr.
Ngan joined the Company in 2009 and was a financial controller
of a subsidiary of the Company. He was also the Joint Company
Secretary of the Company from September 2014 to August 2016.
Mr. Ngan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Financial Administration (major
in accounting) from University of New England in Australia and is a
certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia.

?ﬁf‘ii BEN+HRR - B RENARBERR RS BELE
NAME - BEEN-_TENFMBARR NG L ERRE M
AEZEM‘%%@%&IE c WITE —E-MFNAZE-Z—RFNAUE

ARBZERARME - BRERERNAEEHABZ M BERES
TEM(EEEFER)  RITATAEGIMASEME M FRMES
B A EHEEFTED o

Note:

1. Ms. Ye Fang resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 1st April 2017.

# For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERHRE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying and
formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). During the year
ended 31st December 2017, the Company has complied with all the code provisions,
save and except for code provision A.6.7, details of which are explained below. The
Company regularly monitors and reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
these continue to meet the increasing stringent regulatory requirements and to
improve its practices.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors (the “Board”)
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and transparency and
accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted the written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a view to
enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the Company are
delegated to the management.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the Company, including
the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes to capital and overall
corporate structure, risk management and internal control systems, material
transactions (in particular those which may involve conflicts of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services from the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals have to be obtained
from the Board prior to entering into any significant transactions by the above-
mentioned officers.

The Board has the full support from the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of two Executive Directors,
two Non-Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
number of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents more than one-third of the
Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Weihang
Mr. Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Xinrong

Mr. Deng Jianxin

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina’

Note:

1. Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1st April 2017.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to 22 of this annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules and is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through active participation in Board meetings and affairs of the Company,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflicts of interests and serving
in Board committees, all Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures for the
appointment of Directors.

The Company has adopted the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company. These procedures are available and accessible
on the Company’s website at http://www.asl.com.hk.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
are as set out in the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board established a Nomination
Committee to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually, identify suitable candidates for the Board, and to make recommendations
on any matters in relation to the appointment and re-appointment of members of the
Board. Appointment of new Directors is reserved for the Board'’s approval.

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board comprises members with a diverse
range of skills and experience with the appropriate knowledge necessary to oversee
the business development, strategies, operations, challenges and opportunities
of the Group. The Nomination Committee takes that person’s skills, qualifications
and expected contributions to the Company into account before making any
recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment or re-appointment of
members of the Board.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process,
with the advice provided by the Nomination Committee, by making reference to the
proposed candidates’ skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments as well as the needs of the Company and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to
carry out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as additional Director shall be subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors is appointed under a specific term and they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Company has formal letters of appointment for all Non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) or service contracts for Executive
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment and the terms
of references have set out the work scope of the Board committees and delegation
were made by the Board in respect of the responsibilities of the Non-Executive
Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) in such Board Committees.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Cui Yong
and Mr. Deng Jianxin will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company’s circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming AGM contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina, being a Director appointed by the Board during the year,
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-law 102(B). Ms Or, being eligible, has offered herself for re-election at
the annual general meeting held on 17th May 2017.

Training for Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company. Each newly-appointed
Director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for its
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and the
business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for Directors are arranged where necessary.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Company organised a training
session in November 2017 on directors’ responsibilities and rules on corporate
governance for listed companies and provided Directors with relevant training
materials. The training session was conducted by a professional institute with a
presentation and briefing materials. All the Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending the above training session or reading materials
on the above training.

Insurance Cover for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors to comply with the requirement of the Code.
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THE BOARD (Continued) BEEgm
Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members BREENRZEEREHFERLSE
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance BHENEUREFLEAZ

The Board has at least four regular meetings a year and holds additional meetings on ~EZE@REFEHRTHRINAEHE  UHEREEE
other occasions as needed. BREMEERTEINISE

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Board held five meetings (including &HZE-T—+tFT-_A=1+T—HIFE ZEFFH=E
four Board meetings and one adjourned meeting). THAAEH(EFRERENRAEEE SRR —RES

#) -

i

The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings, meetings of SEERHE_ZT—tF+_A=+—HILFEET
Board committees and/or the general meetings of the Company held during the year ARG EZSREETZECNTAEL SHEEKX
ended 31st December 2017 are set out below: g2 ARIHFERsEs N T

Attendance/Number of Meetings held during the tenure of directorship

RESEHRLE BETEIRY

Special
Board and Remuneration Audit  Nomination Management  Investment 2017 AGM General
adjournment ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee “E-tF Meetings
Name of Director BEfE EZEREe HMERE BNZEEE REZ89 EEZEEE  REZRT RREFAE RREIAD
Executive Directors HiTES
Wang Weihang T 4/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/0 0N 13
TER @R @R &R
Wang Yueou TES 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 22 0/0 17 33
TEA TEA @R
Non-Executive Directors  JFEIfTESE
Li Wei TR 5/5 171 414 171 22 N/A 11 113
TiEA
Cui Yong 35 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 12 N/A n 03
el @A TiEA TiEA
Independent Non- BYkHTES
Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong BN 5/5 17 444 17 N/A 0/0 17 13
TiEA
Deng Jianxin B 4/5 N/A 3/4 17 N/A 0/0 17 03
el TiEA
Ye Fang' ®x 20 17 17 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 13
TER NEm NEm
Or Siu Ching, Rerina? TNE?2 23 0/0 23 N/A N/A N/A 17 0/0
@R @R @R
Notes: B 5T

1. Ms. Ye Fang has resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and 1. HEF LT EBEARGBYIENTES » WABEIA
ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the RAIEZZEGRFMEEGKE B2 —+FMA
Company with effect from 1st April 2017. —HEBER -

2. Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina has been appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of 2.  f/\ELZ LT EEZTAARA B IFRITEE LARF]

the Company and a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of ERLZEERFMNEEENE BT —+FWA—H
the Company with effect from 1st April 2017. REHERL »
None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate Director. g EMERTAETESHRE -

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with KREEEEREHIN HE-_T—tF+_A=+—
the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors) HIFFE ST F BEIFHNTER(REBIIE
without the presence of Executive Directors during the year ended 31st December — #ifTEH) ERITE BB FEMNIB N TRIT— XS5 ©
2017.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of
the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board meetings and Board committees meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days (or such other period as agreed)
before each Board meeting or Board committees meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The management has provided all members of the Board with monthly updates giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and Board committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered by the Board
and dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution. The
Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of power and authority.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Li Wei and Mr.
Wang Yueou respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set
out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning of
the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the support
of the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the Board'’s approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective since 30th August 2013. All
board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
based on objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors. One of them is
female. Three of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, professional
background and skills.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Management Committee and Investment
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and/or are available to shareholders upon request.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to time to
facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Pan Xinrong and
Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina. Mr. Pan Xinrong is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management and share
options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual remuneration
packages of all Directors and the senior management and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31st
December 2017. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the
Directors’ remuneration package (including their service agreements) and bonuses
payable and matters concerning share options.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the code provision B.1.5, the annual
remuneration of a member of the senior management by band for the year ended
31st December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individual

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Pan Xinrong, Mr. Deng
Jianxin and Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina, among them one Independent Non-Executive
Director possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Mr. Deng Jianxin is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the management, internal auditor or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditor with reference to the work
performed by the auditor, its independence, fees and terms of engagement, and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor;

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems and associated procedures;
and

(d) to report the findings and make recommendations to the Board for improvements
or implementations in relation to the above matters.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st December 2017.
At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

(@) the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures;

(b) the reports from the external auditor, management letters and management
response;

(c) the corporate governance matters;

(d) the matters in relation to the risk management and internal control systems as
well as internal audit function; and

(e) the re-appointment of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice during the year ended 31st
December 2017.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st December 2017 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Pan Xinrong and Mr.
Deng Jianxin. Mr. Li Wei is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

() to access the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman of
the Board and the chief executive.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31st December
2017. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

(a) the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(b) the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

(c) to make recommendation to the Board about the proposed re-election of
Directors who were due to retire at the AGM, and the appointment of one
Independent Non-Executive Director; and

(d) the time spent by Non-Executive Directors to fulfill their duties.

A set of nomination procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company has been adopted by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Management Committee

The Management Committee currently comprises one Executive Director and two
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Cui Yong. Mr.
Wang Yueou is the chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and reviewing
the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial reporting, and making
recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of the Group. The
Management Committee meets as appropriate and when required to discuss the
related issues.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Wang Yueou,
Mr. Pan Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the
Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and evaluating
existing and potential investment opportunities for the Company, and making
recommendations to the Board. The Investment Committee meets as and when
required to discuss the related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
December 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has delegated the duties and responsibilities in performing its corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is responsible for
corporate governance functions with the following duties:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2017.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of
the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the management explanation and relevant information
which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for approving the financial
statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of external auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
63 to 68 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid and payable to Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, the
existing external auditor of the Company, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31st December 2017 amounted to HK$1,400,000 and
HK$1,145,000 respectively.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The main features of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of the
Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the senior management. The Board
has evaluated and determined the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and has overseen the senior management
in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in providing direction
in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the senior management identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of
the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to a
set of standardised criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are then established
for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist the
Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of internal control systems
of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal controls are
identified and recommendations are proposed for improvement. Significant internal
control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely
basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.

Risk management report and internal control report which covered financial,
operational and compliance control for the year ended 31st December 2017, has
submitted for the Audit Committee’s and the Board’s reviews. The Group has an
internal audit function in place to provide an independent appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
in accordance with the Code. The Board had performed annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including
but not limited to the change, since the last annual review, in nature and extent of
significant risk, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and
external environment; the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring
of risk management and internal control systems; the extent and frequency of
communication with the Board in relation to monitoring result of risk and internal
control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rules compliance. The Board considers the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are effective. The Board in particular considers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours
as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that
the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the information
to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear
and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other general
meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors,
Independent Non-Executive Directors, and the Chairmen of all Board committees or
their delegate(s) will make themselves available at each AGM to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy setting out the
Company’s procedures in providing the shareholders with clear communication and
easy access to information about the Company.

The 2017 AGM was held on 17th May 2017 (the “2017 AGM"). The notice of 2017
AGM was sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the 2017 AGM.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the view of shareholders. All Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-Executive Directors did not attend two special general meetings of
the Company (the “SGM(s)") held on 13th March 2017 due to other commitments;
and one Non-Executive Director and one Independent Non-Executive Director did not
attend a SGM held on 22nd March 2017 due to other commitments.

The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management Committee and Investment
Committee or their delegate(s), and the Company’s external auditor have attended the
2017 AGM to answer questions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
http://www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships with its
investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

During the year under review, the Company has increased the authorised share capital
of the Company at the SGM held on 13th March 2017 and the 2017 AGM. For the
year ended 31st December 2017, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws. An updated version of the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed
for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors. Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote
at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural matters) are taken
by poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange after the general meetings.

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Under Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”), shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
may convene a SGM by written requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned, must state
the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred in
giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of the
Companies Act once a valid requisition is received.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Companies Act allows certain shareholders to make requisition to the Company
to give notice to the shareholders in respect of any resolution which is intended to be
moved at AGM of the Company or circulate a statement in respect of any proposed
resolution or business to be considered at a general meeting of the Company.

The number of shareholders necessary to put forward such proposal for consideration
at a general meeting of the Company shall be:

(@) either any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting; or

(b) not less than 100 shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders (Continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders concerned and
together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company.
The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and unless the Company otherwise resolves, the shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as follows:

Contact Details

The Company Secretary

Automated Systems Holdings Limited

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2608 6585

Email: ir@asl.com.hk

For avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Ngan Wai Hing (“Mr. Ngan”), a full time employee of
the Company, who is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman of the
Board on governance matters and facilitates induction and professional development
of Directors. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that Board procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules since Mr. Ngan has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
ended 31st December 2017.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28th March 2018
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Iﬁiﬁl ?‘ié& #I)?( =

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report, complying with the
“comply or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "ESG Guide"), provides our stakeholders with an annual update of the Group’s
corporate social responsibility performance and gives them a better understanding of
it. Unless otherwise stated, the scope of the ESG report covers issues of environmental
and social aspects in relation to the Group’s core business operations in Hong Kong
headquarters for the year ended 31st December 2017. The ESG report should be
read in conjunction with the Company’s annual report, in particular the Corporate
Governance Report contained therein.

Since the Group is principally engaged in the delivery of comprehensive one-stop
information technology (“IT") services, no significant levels of pollutants were
discharged into the air or water and no substantial amount of packaging materials
was used during the reporting period. Therefore, disclosures relating to these aspects,
as set forth in the ESG Guide, are not applicable to the Group and so have not been

made.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group’s Environmental Policy stresses carbon reduction and waste reduction
with the principle of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” to promote better utilization of
environmental resources. To further encourage stakeholder engagement in protecting
the environment, the Group is committed to promoting an environmental-friendly
ambience among its employees.

In the long run, the Company will enhance its energy saving management in
minimizing the usage of lighting, air-conditioning and electronic appliances and track
its energy consumption regularly in the coming years.

In the following sections, unless otherwise specified, the environmental data covers
the Group's business operations in overseas are excluded from scope as scale of
each of them are insignificant as compared to the Group’s operation in Hong Kong
headquarters. The total floor area coverage and the total employees of the Group’s
operation in Hong Kong headquarters are 9,100 m? and 580 respectively.

A.1Emissions’

Our main business being IT services, our environmental impact, on the whole, is
relatively low. Our emissions, energy consumption and water consumption mainly
come from the use of resources in our offices in Hong Kong. During the year, there
was no material non-compliance with applicable legislation or regulations.

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions
During the year, the total GHG emissions in two respective scopes:
e Scope 1: Direct emissions in terms of fuel consumed by corporate vehicles

e Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity
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The total GHG emissions and intensity in Hong Kong headquarters in 2017 and 2016 ~ &BRFN T —tF R T —NFARREREEHEN

are as follows: EREENAT :

Issue 2017 2016

E] —E—+tF —TRF

Fuel consumed by corporate vehicles Total (litre) 2,111 2,200

NEIEEEFERE wmE (A7)

Purchased Electricity Total (kwh) 1,853,292 2,202,443

BES e (TR

GHG emissions? for Scope 1 and 2 Total (tonnes) 1,172.56 1,393.50

BREE 1 REE 2 #R EREEEEN w= (Wg)

GHG emissions for Scope 1 and 2 per floor area Total (tonnes/m?) 0.1289 0.1531

BYHAEHEENENEE 1 REE 2R EREEN we (m, FHK)

GHG emissions for Scope 1 and 2 per employee Total (tonnes/employee) 2.0216 2.3225

BERETHEE REHE2 AARE RSN e, 81

Notes: PifsE -

1. Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Group are the GHG emissions, 1. HAREFEEER  ARENEIEREHNALERE
arising mainly from the use of electricity and fuels derived from fossil fuels. BER > T ERREREREAMEES

2. GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and was based on the 2. BRERBHREBA-_SMCHEERY] WAFEHRE
reporting requirements of the “Guideline to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas TRERRREBEMACEEY (BX  FZHLHA
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes)” ) HOREREEHER SRR MR B AR S 1 5 )R 3R
issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and the Environmental EERBEE -

Protection Department in Hong Kong.

Waste Management BENER

For the business operations of the Group’s major subsidiaries, a standard policy and ~ ¥RAREEZINEARIMXGEEM S - ARFA

procedures for handling damaged components and materials have been established — HIFERE IR B AL R FHHOIRER R A2 Fr Lﬂlﬁ%
to ensure all damaged components and materials are properly identified and handled. — IERERR R BRIE AT & BERAO B¢ R MY - BLERIZAE &
For handling hazardous waste produced, the Company has registered as a Chemical ~ FBAEEENME * ARAICRE(ENEE ((LBRE
Waste Producer under the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulation and 1) (=) RPN B/ BEMELE @ WHKEY
sent the waste to specialists for recycling. Besides, our subsidiaries, Grid Dynamics ~ AZEFPIEEEUL < e5) - KRB ZHE AR » Grid
International, Inc. (“Grid Dynamics”) and its subsidiaries (“Grid Dynamics Group”), ~ Dynamics International, Inc. ([ Grid Dynamics ) & ELFf
have implemented a policy for collection of hazardous waste for further utilization. 72 & ([ Grid Dynamics 5 [# |) B B B JAKE — 27
There was no material non-compliance with applicable legislation or regulations ~ FIAFTKERHIE FTRERY) » F W R EE AR

during the year. TERESARD o

The total hazardous waste and total non-hazardous waste produced in Hong Kong &7 BEBR T LFER T "FRELENBEE
headquarters in 2017 and 2016 are as follows: BEMPENEEERYEENT

Issue 2017 2016
=m —E—t5F T —RF
Hazardous waste (i.e. used computers and server batteries) Total (tonnes) 3.5 4.0
BEEEY (AEBK R AMREED) e (WE)

Non-hazardous waste (i.e. used computers and components) Total (tonnes) 85 80
mERERY ANETHREHE) w= (Wg)
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A2

Use of Resources

Energy Consumption

The total energy consumption, total energy consumption per floor area, total energy
consumption per employee and direct energy consumption in terms of electricity in
Hong Kong headquarters in 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

A2 EREH

BERMHE

EBBEBR T+ ER-T-AFHEREES
8 STSKEEEBLRNEEE SRR
MRAERAE ENEEERNEDT

Issue 2017 2016
i —E—tfE T F
Energy consumption Total (kWh) 1,853,292 2,202,443
BEIRONRE st (FRE)

Energy consumption per floor area Total (kWh/m?) 203.66 242.03
SEKEEERARHTE st (FRE,/FHK)

Energy consumption per employee Total (kWh/employee) 3,195.33 3,670.74
SREELREHE @it (TRE,/ES)

Water Consumption FEK

The total water consumption and total water consumption per floor area in Hong
Kong headquarters in 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

ERBHAN_E—tFER T RENERKELET
SFHKEEEELEFKENT

Issue 2017 2016
55 —Z2—+tF NS
Water consumption Total (m?) 432 327
FokE #Et (SL7K)

Water consumption per floor area Total (m*/m?) 0.0475 0.0359

FYKEEEEREKE

Water management is not a material area for the Group. Much of our water
consumption is for basic cleaning and sanitation, as well as certain catering facilities in
our offices.

During the year, the Company adopted the following procedures in its office to
minimizing carbon emission and waste generation:

—o0 40

Use energy saving light across all office areas

Utilize electronic communication where applicable such as e-form system, e-leave,
e-memo and e-cards for festival greetings

Use high performance and quality all-in-one “multi-function printers” that
incorporate printer, scanner and copier functions into a single device. This can be
shared among teams in order to reduce a large number of devices with different
functions so as to minimize power consumption and carbon footprint as well as
follow-up maintenance

Send used toner cartridges to specialists for further recycling when feasible

Redeploy usable and suitable office furniture within the Company to reduce the
amount of material going to landfills

Redeploy usable and suitable computers or notebooks within the Company

Reuse or recycle computer parts by selection from a team of engineers; for those
parts and materials cannot be reused by the Company will be further sent to
specialist for further recycling

Send spent batteries to specialists for recycling

Minimise waste wherever feasible
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A.3The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the core business of the Group has a minimal impact on the environment
and natural resources, we recognize the corporate social responsibility in minimizing
the negative environmental impact of our business operations and investment
portfolio as our ongoing commitment, in order to achieve a sustainable development
for generating long-term values to our stakeholders and community as a whole.
We regularly assess the environmental risks of our business, and adopt preventive
measures, where necessary, to reduce the risks and ensure the compliance of relevant
laws and regulations.

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS
Employment and Labour Practices

The Group values its human capital with a belief that its employees are pivotal to its
success in the IT industry. The Group has established a series of policies and measures
regarding employment policy, health and safety, development and training, labour
standards and workplace quality to provide its employees with a fair and comfortable
working environment.

B.1 Employment Policy

The Group ensures our employees in different locations are protected by the law of
employment in such jurisdictions and has implemented its comprehensive Employment
Policy which comprises recruitment, change of employment in relation to promotion
and transfer, working hours, annual leave entitlement, maternity and paternity leave,
annual salary review through annual performance appraisal, job-related allowances,
insurance schemes, compensation and termination of employment. The Group stresses
equal opportunities in relation to recruitment or promotion of an individual, without
discrimination against their age, gender, race, family status, sexual orientation,
disability, nationality or region. There was no material non-compliance with applicable
legislation or regulations during the year.

B.2 Health and Safety

Being committed to maintaining a safe and healthy working environment for its
employees, the Company has established a safety and health policy and complied with
applicable laws regarding safety in the workplace in Hong Kong. For safety measures,
the Administrative Department of the Company is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the safety and security management from time to time and performing
regular checking in the entire office to ensure furniture, fixtures and fittings are well-
maintained and replaced when necessary to avoid unnecessary physical injuries. For
health measures, smoking is prohibited in the entire office premises including enclosed
offices, conference rooms and other open areas while proper lighting and ventilation
are ensured to safeguard employees’ health. In addition, first aid kits are available
at an easily-accessible location on every floor of the entire office. Meanwhile, Grid
Dynamics has its safety and health policy regarding workplace bullying, violence in the
workplace and smoke-free workplace. Policies are also set up to cover the prevention
of injuries and illnesses and workplace violence. There was no non-compliance with
legislation or regulations related to occupational safety and health during the year.

Apart from putting the safety and health measures in place, safety and health
programmes are organised from time to time by the Human Resources Department of
the Company to enrich employees’ knowledge in the aforesaid area.
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B.3 Development and Training

The Group understands that training and development are indispensable for its staff to
keep abreast of the latest trend in the IT industry and the dynamic pace in the current
domestic market. In light of this, the Group provides regular training, development
programmes and training sponsorship. For the development of IT staff in Hong Kong,
the Company promotes an e-Learning platform to hone their hard and soft skills.
For the development of non-IT staff, the Company encourages department heads to
work closely in assessing areas of training and development for their subordinates to
improve their capabilities and ability in career advancement. Sponsorships are available
to employees who have met certain conditions set by the Company.

Within Grid Dynamics Group, there is an internal educational platform which delivers
employee trainings, certifications and seminars as a part of knowledge management
and career development. Learning paths, comprising target role, duration and covered
skills and technologies, are clearly set to assist employees’ career development.
Meanwhile, employees are encouraged to declare their skills in a system to enhance
personal and corporate development. Grid Dynamics also set up a web application
which provides electronic catalogue of books, articles, presentations and videos that
are available to employees and creates an environment in which employees can share,
collaborate and recommend their favorite content to promote self-learning.

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$3.4 million and US$0.3 million
on staff training in Hong Kong’s subsidiaries and Grid Dynamics Group, respectively,
and most of them were spent on strengthening staff's competence and aiding them in
obtaining qualifications.

B.4 Labour Standard

There was no child nor forced labour in the Group’s operations in the reporting period.
Meanwhile, each candidate’s personal particulars are confirmed during recruitment
processes. The Group also ensures a fair recruitment process and working environment
without any coercive acts. There was no non-compliance with legislation or regulations
related to child labour or forced labour during the year.

Workplace Quality

The Group is concerned about its employees’ quality of life and promotes a positive
work-life balance. During the year, the Group has organised hundreds of large and
small events to enhance work-life balance and to strengthen employee relations.
Some of the large events were 20th Listing Anniversary Grand Celebration Dinner, ASL
Christmas BBQ Party, ASL Summer Baking Workshop, Grid Dynamics Christmas Party
and Grid Dynamics New Year Party. Meanwhile, the Company and Grid Dynamics
Group provide employees with various facilities, such as recreation area/room, gym
room, shower and massage chair, etc. The Group always makes its best endeavours to
develop a happy and caring working environment for its employees.

Moreover, the Group is committed to building a family-friendly environment so
as to allow its staff to achieve their full potential. During the year, the Group has
implemented a series of measures to promote a balance between work and family. In
Hong Kong, the Company provides its employees with marriage leave, compassionate
leave and welcome red packets to its employees’ newborn babies. The Company is
also proud of having set up a nursing room with comprehensive facilities and strict
privacy in its office to support its breastfeeding employees.
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Operating Practices

The Group believes that monitoring and evaluation of the vendors are important
management tools to track the business progress and facilitate decision making and,
in return, the Group could serve the customers towards their satisfaction through the
products and services with the best quality. The Group will continue to maintain the
vendor management policy and proactively seek room for improvement.

B.5 Supply Chain Management

The Company’s two major Hong Kong subsidiaries, Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
("ASLHK") and ELM Computer Technologies Limited (“ELM"), are committed to
complying with a vendor management policy established for ensuring the quality of
services offered. The policy covers the control of vendors, including nomination and
evaluation, selection, monitoring, suspension and blacklisting when necessary. A list
of approved vendors has been created and updated on an ongoing basis according to
procedures clearly stated in the policy. The Company’s another major subsidiary, Grid
Dynamics, has implemented and complied with policies on third party information
security. The policies include a set of information security and related requirements as
prerequisites to become Grid Dynamics’ vendors.

ASLHK demonstrates our commitment to high standards of quality in provision of
supply chain management services in accordance with ISO 9001:2015 from Hong
Kong Quality Assurance Agency.

During the year, the Group evaluated the top 15 product vendors for our two major
Hong Kong subsidiaries in 2016 in terms of the purchase amount which equal to 75%
of the total product purchase amount. For service vendors, the Group particularly got
the relevant service delivery team(s) involved in selecting, monitoring and performance
evaluation of service vendors to ensure the quality of services provided to customers.

In view of increasing environmental concerns in society, the Company is aware of the
importance in managing environmental and social risks of its supply chain. The top
10 IT product brands from which ASLHK purchased during the year demonstrated
excellent environmental awareness. The IT product brands took initiatives in
minimizing their negative operational impacts on the environment and society. The
Company will continue to monitor its supply chain in accordance with environmental
and social standards.
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B.6 Product (Service) Responsibility

Customers’ support has been of paramount importance to the Group. The Group
therefore put strong emphasis on assuring the quality and reliability of its services.

The Group has implemented its IT Security Policy on the major subsidiaries in Hong
Kong over a decade, the policy ensures the confidentiality, integrity and availability
of internal and customers’ security systems, which addresses security considerations
in physical security, access control security, data security, security on application
systems, network & communication security, security risk assessment & auditing and
security incident management. For Grid Dynamics, the policy provides regulations in
relation to all types and forms of information processing, transmission and storage,
telecommuter and remote computer use security, acceptable use, and developing
and maintaining software within the Grid Dynamics Group. The Group’s relevant staff
must comply with regulations in relation to physical security, access control security,
data security and network and communication security, which are all covered in the
IT Security Policy, to protect the customers’ privacy. For redressing security incidents,
such as network or systems software malfunctions, the Company has adopted a set
of reporting and handling procedures, which are executed by the relevant staff and
a Customer Care Unit (the “Unit”). There was no non-compliance with legislation or
regulations related to the services provided by the Group during the year.

In addition, the Group has long established a policy with a set of procedures to handle
customers’ feedbacks or complaints in a professional manner. The Unit reviews the
feedbacks or complaints and coordinates relevant teams to address the concerns.
The Unit will also escalate the feedbacks or complaints to appropriate level(s) of
management if necessary.

Intellectual Property Rights

Regarding intellectual property rights, employees of the Group are reminded that the
Group has exclusive ownership of its intellectual property while all materials made or
compiled by them in the course of employment is the property of the Group, details
of which are set out in Business and Ethical Code of Conduct of the Group or relevant
guidelines of its subsidiaries.

Personal Data Protection

In relation to the customers’ data protection, the Group requires its staff to handle
customers’ data in a strictly confidential manner to prevent data leakage, details of
which are set out in our IT Security Policy. The staff shall observe and comply with the
non-disclosure agreements made with the Group and the agreements entered into
between the Group and customers from time to time. Besides this, the Group may
collect personal data from different parties through the enquiry box on the Company’s
website, from candidates or employees through recruitment or employment during
the year. A privacy policy statement and the relevant personal information collection
statements have been set out and uploaded on the Company’s website so that
relevant parties were timely informed before giving their personal information. During
the year, the Company follows the six general principles relating to data protection
as set down by the Hong Kong Privacy Commission. During the year, there was no
confirmed case or non-compliance with any rules and regulation of the Group as
regards the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.486) and Personal Data (Privacy)
(Amendment) Ordinance, as well as any applicable rules and regulations in the United
States.
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Quality Assurance mERE

For quality assurance, the quality office of the Group has performed quality reviews F@RERFBME @ LFER - AEEREHPIRHNTE
and internal audit functions monitoring the effectiveness of the corrective actions £ 5728 & R E0EE 1% B 55 B2 B AT BRER AU IE 18 e A X Ak P
taken and advised any risk mitigation plans can be taken for years. The Company's % A/ SRMB M ER AT #RET 8] - RARI =M EZ2W
three major subsidiaries, ASLHK, ELM and Grid Dynamics, have been confident in their ~ BARIEBEERE « KM Grid Dynamics i & £
quality management systems, IT service management system and information security ~ BIZEH « EREIEBRBEERRGEREMNLZE2ERR
management system. During the year, ASLHK and ELM have upgraded its quality ~ Z7Sm{El o TR - BEAEENERR S LEMNR
management system standard from 1SO 9001:2008 to ISO 9001:2015 and extended BREEEENFE  EFEAPHEALANNEEE
the service scope of both ISO 9001 and ISO 20000-1 to synchronize with the Group’s 2 RFIZAEE H 1SO 9001:2008 74 % 1SO 9001:2015
development and cope with the contemporary needs in quality management. K ERE 150 9001 K2 1SO 20000-1 & iR &0 [E] °

In recent years, our major subsidiaries have been recognised with the following quality 374 » B IH = ZEMEB A RS EE AT REKF -
achievements:

Major Subsidiaries Quality Achievement Type of Service Provision Awarding Bodies

TEWEAR am B A RALARIS 5 TRIRHEAE

ASLHK ISO 9001:2015 Quality Enterprise Information Technology Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Services

BEEBERER ISO 9001:2015 MEERE  (BEEARRE BEMERES

ISO 9001:2015 Quality Supply Chain Management Services on Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

Management System Computer-related Products
ISO 9001:2015 mEEE  EIMAME R HIERE RIS EEMERER
ISO 20000-1:2011 Service Desk Operation, Hosting Services, Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
IT Service Infrastructure Hardware & System
Management System Maintenance Services
ISO 20000-1:2011 RE&#ME - EERYG  BRREENH BERERER
BB B ER AR PES e
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information Security Monitoring Service  SGS Hong Kong Limited

Information Security
Management System

ISO/IEC 27001:2013 ERL2EERE ERBRRAREARAA
BilZ 2 BRASR
Capability Maturity Maturity Level 3 Rating Software CMMI Institute
Model® Integration Development and Support Services
(CMMI) Version 1.3 Organization
Capability Maturity B = AT AR B B RS R PR A AR A CMMIFRZERT
Model® Integration
(CMMI) 1.3k
ELM ISO 9001:2015 Quality IT System Integration, Software Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Development, Installation and
Maintenance Support Services
IRz ISO9001:2015MEETE AMBMKEMEAS - BIFHE EREMERER
5 R KM E S IE R
Grid Dynamics ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Customer Facing NQA Certification Limited
Information Security Services, Software Development,
Management System Service Provisioning and
Production Environment
Grid Dynamics ISO/IEC 27001:2013 BEPEERS - SHFE - BEREERBFERAR
BZ 2 BRASR MR N EERER
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B.7 Anti-corruption

The Company has established an anti-corruption policy included in Business and
Ethical Code of Conduct of the Group. Employees must not solicit or accept an
advantage as a reward or inducement for doing any act or showing favour to any
person or corporate without the permission of the Company. Any gifts or souvenirs
offered or received shall be reported and passed to the Company. Besides the anti-
bribery policy, employees are encouraged to report without fear of reprisal any
business malpractices including questionable accounting and auditing matters. In line
with the Group’s commitment to anti-corruption, a whistle-blower policy is also placed
to allow employees to report any malpractice and misconduct to the Legal Manager of
the Company with completed confidentiality. During the year, there was no confirmed
case of corruption or non-compliance with any rules and regulation of the Group as
regards anti-corruption such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, as well as any
applicable rules and regulations in the United States.

A competition compliance policy has also been adopted in the Company’s subsidiaries
involving business conducted in Hong Kong, of which to prohibit any conducts that
prevents, restricts or distorts competition in Hong Kong. Online training workshop is
available on the Company’s intranet to help employees understand the competition
compliance policy and the Competition Ordinance. Any employees in doubt about
the legality of any business activity may consult the Legal Manager of the Company.
Employees are also encouraged to make a complaint or disclose any potential
violations of such policy in accordance with the Company’s whistle-blower policy and
procedure. During the year, there was no confirmed case or non-compliance with any
rules and regulation of the Group as regards the Competition Ordinance, as well as
any applicable rules and regulations in the United States.

Community

B.8 Community investment

The Group, as a corporate citizen, makes every effort in giving back to the community
through helping the social vulnerable groups. This is the second consecutive year
for the Group to become a Platinum Sponsor of the Annual Hong Kong 24 Hour
Pedal Kart Grand Prix through charitable donations, which contributed to a variety of
charities, primarily in Hong Kong but also in other places in need across Asia.

Apart from taking the social vulnerable groups into consideration, the Group is
dedicated to developing a social responsibility culture among its employees. Our core
subsidiary, ASLHK, has long been recognised by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service with “Caring Company Award” under Caring Company Scheme for eight
consecutive years. The Group joined Tung Chung Family Walk 2017 and continued in
building up its volunteer team during the year.

In addition, the Group takes initiatives in nurturing our next generation with
information and guidance on career development in the IT industry. The Group has co-
organised an IT exploration tour with Hong Kong Association for Computer Education
for secondary students with keen interest in IT industry during the year.

Apart from nurturing the youth, ASL sponsored the 3rd Hong Kong International
Entrepreneurs Festival Roadshow to support and encourage the start-ups and the
young entrepreneurs to showcase their creativity at a dynamic and competitive global
business environment. With visionary and innovative technology horizon, ASL actively
participated in the investment project roadshow competition activities and identified
outstanding entrepreneurship projects. Thus, ASL was awarded the “Innovation
Entrepreneurship Coach” certificate. Going forward, ASL will continue to support
young people to put their dreams into practice and cultivate youth being bold to
innovate.
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Directors’ Report

EFEWRE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31st December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services. The principal activities of its major subsidiaries and associates
are set out in Notes 48 and 22, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 69 and 70 of the annual report respectively.

The Directors had resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of 1.0 HK
cent per share for the year ended 31st December 2017 (2016: Nil) to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appeared on the register of members on Tuesday, 29th
May 2018.

The Directors had also resolved to recommend a bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”) of shares
of par value HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company (“Bonus Shares”) on the
basis of two (2) Bonus Shares, credited as fully paid, for every ten (10) existing shares
held by the shareholders of the Company whose names appeared on the register of
members on Tuesday, 29th May 2018.

The final dividend and the Bonus Issue are conditional upon shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and the Bonus Issue is conditional upon
the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) granting listing of, and permission to deal in, the Bonus Shares and
compliance with the relevant legal procedures and requirements (if any) under the
applicable laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company to effect the Bonus
Issue.

For determining the entitlement of the final dividend and the Bonus Shares, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 24th May 2018
to Tuesday, 29th May 2018, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend and
the Bonus Shares, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23rd May 2018. The
final dividend warrants and share certificates for the Bonus Shares are expected to be
despatched to the qualifying shareholders of the Company on or before Friday, 8th
June 2018.
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2018 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on Wednesday,
16th May 2018. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 11th May 2018 to Wednesday, 16th May 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 10th May 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2017 and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business as required by schedule 5 of the
"Chief
Executive Officer’s Statement” and Note 49 to the consolidated financial statements

Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”,

on pages 6 to 7, 8 to 15 and 178 of the annual report, respectively. For the financial
key performance indicators for an understanding of the development, performance or
position of the Group’s business, it can also be found under the same sections and the
financial summary on page 5 of the annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have significant impact on the Company are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 38 to 46 respectively.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.

To achieve the Company’s vision of becoming the most competitive entity in
Asia information technology (“IT") sector, strengthening business practices in
environmental protection and corporate social responsibilities are always an integral

part of the Group’s corporate business strategy.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31st December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 73 to 74 of
the annual report.

As at 31st December 2017, the Group’s special reserve and retained earnings totalled
approximately HK$419,972,000 (2016: HK$372,655,000).

The Company'’s reserves are available for distribution to the shareholders as at 31st
December 2017 included special reserve and retained earnings totaling approximately
HK$103,745,000 (2016: HK$95,075,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group spent approximately
HK$10,603,000 (2016: HK$4,507,000) on property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st December 2017 in
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of the Group's purchases and sales attributable to major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 25.5% and 6.9% of the
Group's revenue respectively. The five largest suppliers and single largest supplier of
the Group accounted for approximately 35.9% and 9.4% of the Group’s purchases
respectively.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2017 did a Director, an associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in
any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year ended 31st December 2017 in share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31st December 2017 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Wang Weihang
Wang Yueou

Non-Executive Directors
Li Wei
Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Pan Xinrong

Deng Jianxin

Or Siu Ching, Rerina (appointed with effect from 1st April 2017)
Ye Fang (resigned with effect from 1st April 2017)

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company, Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Cui Yong
and Mr. Deng Jianxin will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, be eligible, offer themselves for election.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 Z 5B BR A A

Directors’ Report

EEERE

% - BERRE

HE-Z—+H+-_A=+—RAULFER A&EEHE
Y - BB K& E S T 410,603,000 T (=
T—7X4F : 4,507,000 7T) °

FEHE—T—tF+_A=+—HLFEREM
EAREETEDE  BELREEH I FBIAREE
B ERARMIFE19 o

TRHEBRER

TEHEEREC A AR SRR EEI AL
T

BHE-Z—+tF+-A=+—HIEFERN KERKX
BEPREREP 2WAD BMEAREE AU AL 25.5%
%6.9% - AAXHERREAEEEZEEES NS
NEBBIRETEL35.9% & 9.4% ©

HE_Z—tF+_A=+—HIEFEAR ARAZ
BEF BEEIBHBEATIRR(BEEMAES 5% A
EARRBETENHEEE) REHARAKEZAX
BEP MRS 2 o

@S

ARRZBARBE-_ZE—LF+ -_A=1T—HBLF
ERzEBEHNFA P HHRRME32

HE

AARRBE-_Z—tF+-_A=+—HALEERAR
BHEAREABZEEMT

HITES
THM
TERB

FUTES
FE
5

BYFHTES

ERER

e =

fNE (R FHA— BREERE)
EF(RZZ—tFMA—BEHE)

BRRARF 2 ATMANE R - THMELE  EFL
EREEMEESNERRAFA S LRESER
WHFEERMBEEREE -

49 o——



—o 50

Directors’ Report

EEERE

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina, being a Director appointed by the Board during the year,
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-law 102(B). Ms. Or, being eligible, has offered herself for re-election at
the annual general meeting held on 17th May 2017.

As at the date of this report, each of the Directors has entered into either a service
contract or a letter of appointment with the Company. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

Mr. Li Wei was ceased to act as the acting chief financial officer of Beijing Teamsun
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”) with effect from 5th April 2017; and Mr. Li entered
into a renewed secondment agreement with the Company for extending term of
one year with effect from 1st July 2017. The annual director’s fee payable to Mr. Li
is HK$55,000 for serving on the Board, HK$22,000 for serving as the Chairman of
the Board and HK$480,000 for secondment of monitoring the Group’s operation
temporarily, which is determined with reference to Mr. Li's duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Wang Yueou was appointed as a director of Teamsun with effect from 8th
December 2017.

Mr. Cui Yong was appointed as a director of Teamsun with effect from 8th December
2017.

Mr. Deng Jianxin resigned as a director of Suzhou Gardens Construction Industry
Corporation, a company listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
System (the New Third Board*) in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") (Stock
Code: 833209.0C) in June 2017. Mr. Deng was appointed as an executive director of
Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Enterprise Consultants Co., Ltd* ORI £ ot EEM AR AR,
a supervisor of Shanghai Dobe Cultural & Creative Industry Development (Group) Co.,
Ltd. and the chairman of Shanghai Debimai Enterprise Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd." ( E/B8EMNIREERZRBRAA]). He was also appointed as an executive
director of Shenzhen Zhuoyi Management Consulting Co., Ltd." G £l B IR A
ABRA7A])in January 2018.

* For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company or his or her connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31st
December 2017 or at any time during the year ended 31st December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31st December
2017, the following Directors were considered to have interests in the businesses
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businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set out below: ZEBREAER - HFBERHIIMT
Name of the entities which were Description of businesses of the
considered to compete or likely entities which were considered to
to compete with the businesses compete or likely to compete with
of the Group the businesses of the Group Nature of Director’s
Name of Director BRARKEEERBRN BRRAREEERERSR A4 interest in the entities
EEpg AHBRRE2ERER BRHRFECEE 2B ESpRZSER BEME
Wang Weihang Teamsun IT product service, application Chairman and president,
software development, value-added director and substantial shareholder
distribution and system integration
T#Mm ERBRK BARMRERRY - BREARMARE - EERFEY EERFERR
BEDERERES
Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited Window company of Teamsun in Sole director
("Hong Kong Teamsun”) Hong Kong and mainly provides
administrative support to the clients
of Teamsun in the PRC and Hong Kong
EBRABH (BB BRAR ERRKEERRELR FEMEBRK B-EF
(K5 7529) ZEPRTBEREBRETHXE
Certain subsidiaries of Teamsun T related Director
ERREAZETHELR HERE MR 4
Wang Yueou Teamsun IT product service, application Director
software development, value-added
distribution and system integration
TERE ERBRK BARRERRS  RRRASERE EES
BEDERERES
Carnation Software Ltd. T related Director
(a subsidiary of Teamsun)
BMAN T EREARRAR HERE MR £
(EBREZMBRT)
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EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS EENHRFEK2HER @)

(Continued)

Name of the entities which were Description of businesses of the

considered to compete or likely entities which were considered to

to compete with the businesses compete or likely to compete with

of the Group the businesses of the Group Nature of Director's
Name of Director BRAREREEERBRR BRARELEEEBBRS A6 interest in the entities
EEpE AHBRHRE AR EH BRHET 2 EREBHT EERRSHBCERNE
Li Wei Teamsun IT product service, application Director
software development, value-added
distribution and system integration
& e ERBARK BARRERRS  ERRASTHE B
BESHEIERES
Certain subsidiaries and T related Director
associates of Teamsun
EBRR2ETHBAR BB E AR EF
&N
Cui Yong Teamsun IT product service, application Director, executive vice president
software development, value-added and general manager of
distribution and system integration the system information
product (plate) division
ER ESPN BRI ERMRT - AR EE  YORIBELERER

—o 52

BENERERES

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid companies,
and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the Group is capable of
carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
the aforesaid companies.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange (“Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as follows:
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERBSTHRAEZRH KIEE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

PR3 2 = o)

(a) Shares (B)  R#H
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
REER s AL FhER REER Aty Ay REBNEIH
Teamsun, the ultimate holding Wang Weihang 92,069,358 - - 32,598,323' 124,667,681 11.30%
company of the Company T
EBRA - ARTZ Li Wei 240,520 - - - 240,520 0.02%
RRERAE] Zk
(b) Underlying shares () HHEBRH
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
NRER S AL FhER PG Hit @zt RESNEI
The Company Wang Yueou 3,850,000 - - - 3,850,000 0.57%
YN 188
Li Wei 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000 0.16%
*f
Cui Yong 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000 0.16%
EE
Teamsun Li Wei 612,000° - - - 612,000 0.06%
EBRK Zk
Cui Yong 1,140,000 - - - 1,140,000 0.10%
EE
Notes: B -

1.

32,598,323 shares of Teamsun were directly held by a trust scheme, of which a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Weihang, Beijing Jianzheng Investment Limited* (Jt 52 E
WEBMRAT), is one of the founders, which has 100% voting rights of the shares of
Teamsun held by the trust scheme. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Wang Weihang, being a
beneficiary of the trust scheme, is deemed to be interested in 32,598,323 shares of Teamsun.

Share options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company under a share option scheme
adopted on 13th March 2017, further details of which are set out in section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below.

Restricted shares of Teamsun may be unlocked and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
after unlocking conditions are met pursuant to Teamsun’s second phase of equity incentive
plan and Teamsun’s 2017 restricted share incentive scheme. Details of Teamsun’s second
phase of equity incentive plan were disclosed in Teamsun’s announcements dated 27th May
2015 and 14th July 2015; and details of Teamsun’s 2017 restricted share incentive scheme
were disclosed in Teamsun’s announcements dated 14th October 2017, 23rd November
2017 and 15th December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2017, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares.

* For identification purpose only
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
A. 2002 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”)

on 8th August 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to any

employee and/or Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The 2002

Share Option Scheme expired on 7th August 2012. As a result, the Company can

no longer grant any further share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
However, all share options granted prior to 7th August 2012 will remain in full
force and effect. Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in Note
38(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year:

BRERTE

A.

—EE_FHEREE

ARBRZZZZF)\A/\BRBERETE
(=T _FREREAE])  SERARRFHKE
ﬂﬁm% TZEHEE&/@?%%%@%%@J&
O - — T _FHEEEAIR T ——F/\A
tRE®R - Bt - KRR EBERE-_ZT_F
B EE — PR OB - A - R

—ZF\ALRADRHZAABRERTDA
ARTERNIRUA - ZEZ - FRERIEEZ
BIZFHE A AR & MRS HRER ML 38()

RARZTTZFHEREEIE T 2 BREN T
A2 BEINT -

Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

WMIEEREBARITZRE
Adjusted At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st
Date Exercise January during during during during during December
of grant Exercise Price 2017 the year the year the year the year the year 2017
Participants BB Period &R RZB-tF REE REE REE REE REE Rog-tF
S8E RERE K TE -B-H AR Rl REH R n#EE  t-A=t-H
HKS
BT
Other Employees 1932012 19.32013t0 £ 0.845! 396,000 - - - - 68,253 464,253
AfblER 1832022
252012 252013t0 & 0873 121,000 - - - - 20,857 141,857
15.2022
Total 517,000 - - - - 89,110 606,110
CES
Notes: B 5T

1.

— 54

The number of outstanding share options and exercise price under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme were adjusted as a result of the rights issue of the Company on 27th
February 2017 and were further adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of the Company
on 8th June 2017, the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 24th February 2017 and 8th June 2017, respectively.

All of the above share options were vested equally on each of the first, second and
third anniversaries of the date of grant.

No Director held any share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the
year ended 31st December 2017.

The weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the date on which the share options were exercised was not applicable.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2017 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2017 Share Option
Scheme") on 13th March 2017 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards
to any eligible employee, executive or officer including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each
of the Company. The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
as at 13th March 2017, the date of approval of the adoption of the 2017 Share
Option Scheme. Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue. Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the
date of offer, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board
may at its absolute discretion impose any minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which
must be achieved by the eligible participant before the option can be exercised.
The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the
Directors at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more
than 10 years after it has been granted. The exercise price is determined by the
Board, and shall be at least the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date an offer
is made; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date an
offer is made; and (c) the nominal value of a share of the Company. The 2017
Share Option Scheme will expire on 12th March 2027. Details of the 2017 Share
Option Scheme are set out in Note 38(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options under
the 2017 Share Option Scheme during the year:

Number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

BB ERT &l )
—E-tFERETE(®
ARR T —+ EBRETEIE T2 BRIERE

—o 56

RIEEREBRRITZRE
Vesting Period At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st
Date and Exercise January during during during during during December
of grant Period Exercise 2017 the year the year the year the year the year 2017
Participants RHE SRAR Price R=F-t& REE REE REE REE REE Rog-tF
S8% KBRS A e -B-H AR ALk d REH R n#EE  t-A=t-H
HKS
B
Directors
£
Wang Yueou 31.3.2017 (Note 2) 1.164! - 3,500,000 - - - 350,000 3,850,000
TER (F&E2)
Li Wei 31.3.2017 (Note 2) 1.164! - 1,000,000 - - - 100,000 1,100,000
ZE (ME2)
Cui Yong 31.3.2017 (Note 2) 1.164! - 1,000,000 - - - 100,000 1,100,000
£EB (F&E2)
Other Employees ~ 31.3.2017 (Note 2) 1.164! B 13,640,000 B (220,000) - 1,364,000 14,784,000
AftEs (Hx2)
2842017 (Note 2) 1.091" B 5,500,000° B - = 550,000 6,050,000
(Mt2)
13.12.2017 (Note 2) 1.040 B 1,388,000 B - - - 1,388,000
(Mt2)
Total - 26,028,000 - (220,000) - 2,464,000 28,272,000
CES
Notes: B &E

1.

The number and exercise price of outstanding share options granted on 31st March
2017 and 28th April 2017 under the 2017 Share Option Scheme were adjusted as a
result of the bonus issue of shares of the Company on 8th June 2017, the details of
which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8th June 2017.

On 31st March 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of
19,140,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.28. The share options
are divided into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share
options and is associated with performance targets within a specific financial period,
the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 31st March
2017.

On 28th April 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible participants
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 6,500,000 shares of
the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.20. The share options are divided into four
tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share options and is associated
with performance targets within a specific financial period, the details of which are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28th April 2017.

On 13th December 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 1,388,000
shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.04. The share options are divided
into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the share options and is
associated with performance targets within a specific financial period, the details of
which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 13th December 2017.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. (Continued)

The vesting period and exercise period of each tranche of the share options granted
on 31st March 2017, 28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017, respectively, are as

follows:

BBRERTEl )
—E—tFERETE E)

Wiz« (48)
2. (8

PDRIA T —+H45F
A=+ NBE=F
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EEERE

“A=t—H ZZ2—+FKQm

—tFET-AT=ZARHEZE

Rz BEARITESROT

Percentage of options
of each tranche shall
be exercisable

Date of grant  Tranches Vesting Period Exercise Periods BRI E
BHAH #ER FEH T8 AFIEZESL
31.3.2017 First tranche 31.3.2017 to & 1.4.2019 31.3.2017 to & 30.3.2027 50%
E—it 1.4.2018 to = 30.3.2027 25%
1.4.2019 to & 30.3.2027 25%
Second tranche 28.3.2018 to & 1.4.2020 28.3.2018 to & 30.3.2027 50%
F_it 1.4.2019 to & 30.3.2027 25%
1.4.2020 to & 30.3.2027 25%
Third tranche Date of publication of the annual results Date of 2018 Results 50%
=4t announcement of the Company for Announcement to
the financial year ending 30.3.2027
31st December 2018 (the “Date of 2018 TE-N\FEENEHH
Results Announcement”) to 1.4.2021 %£30.3.2027
FBEAARHEE-_ZT—N\F+_A=+—H 1.4.2020 to & 30.3.2027 25%
HFEZE2FEBENEEH 1.4.2021 to & 30.3.2027 25%
(T2 N\FEEQEHHDE 142021
Fourth tranche Date of publication of the annual results Date of 2019 Results 50%
ESLutking announcement of the Company for Announcement to
the financial year ending 30.3.2027
31st December 2019 (the “Date of 2019 TE-NFRERNEAH
Results Announcement”) to 1.4.2022 %30.3.2027
HBEARRBE-_T—NE+_A=1+—H 1.4.2021 to & 30.3.2027 25%
IFFEZRFEEREER 1.4.2022 to & 30.3.2027 25%
(ZE-NEFEEREAH]) T 142022
28.4.2017 First tranche 1.6.2018 to & 1.6.2020 1.6.2018 to & 27.4.2027 50%
E—it 1.6.2019 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2020 to & 27.4.2027 25%
Second tranche 1.6.2019to & 1.6.2021 1.6.2019 to & 27.4.2027 50%
EH 1.6.2020 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 25%
Third tranche 1.6.2020 to & 1.6.2022 1.6.2020 to = 27.4.2027 50%
F=Ht 1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2022 to & 27.4.2027 25%
Fourth tranche 1.6.2021 to & 1.6.2023 1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027 50%
Frgit 1.6.2022 to & 27.4.2027 25%
1.6.2023 to = 27.4.2027 25%
13.12.2017 First tranche 1.4.2019to & 1.4.2021 1.4.2019 to & 12.12.2027 50%
F—it 1.4.2020 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027 25%
Second tranche 1.4.2020 to & 1.4.2022 1.4.2020 to & 12.12.2027 50%
tii g 1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027 25%
Third tranche 1.4.2021 to & 1.4.2023 1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027 50%
E=Ht 1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2023 to & 12.12.2027 25%
Fourth tranche 1.4.2022 to & 1.4.2024 1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027 50%
Emit 1.4.2023 to & 12.12.2027 25%
1.4.2024 to & 12.12.2027 25%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
B. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3. The offers for a total number of 6,500,000 options was made to eligible participants,
in which an offer of 1,000,000 options was not accepted by an eligible participant,
pursuant to the 2017 Share Option Scheme, the offer of these options was
automatically lapsed and became null and void.

4. The closing prices of the shares of the Company immediately before 31st March
2017, 28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017 on which the share options were
granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme were HK$1.25 (HK$1.136 after
adjusted), HK$1.08 (HK$0.982 after adjusted) and HK$0.90 per share of the Company,
respectively.

5. The weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the date on which the share options were exercise was not applicable.

In respect of the share options granted during the year, details of the estimated
fair values of the share options on the dates of grant are set out in Note 38(ii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year ended 31st December 2017 was the Company, or any of its
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company or their connected entities to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On 25th October 2017, ASL Softwing Investment Holdings Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, “ASL Softwing”), Teamsun, Pansky Technology
Corporation Ltd. (“Pansky Tech”) and Beijing Honggiao Technology Co., Ltd.* (3t %
sABRHEABBR A A]) (“BJ Honggiao”) entered into a joint venture agreement (the “JV
Agreement”) to establish a joint venture company (the “JV Company”) in Beijing, the
PRC. Pursuant to the JV Agreement, the total registered capital of the JV Company
will be RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$119,650,000), which
will be contributed and held as to 70% by Teamsun (i.e. RMB70,000,000), 10% by
Pansky Tech (i.e. RMB10,000,000), 10% by BJ Honggiao (i.e. RMB10,000,000) and
10% by ASL Softwing (i.e. RMB10,000,000). The parties will make contribution to the
registered capital of the JV Company in cash.

* For identification purpose only
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

As at the date of transaction, Hong Kong Teamsun was the direct controlling
shareholder of the Company and therefore it was a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Teamsun and Pansky Tech were the holding company and
the fellow subsidiary of Hong Kong Teamsun, respectively, and were associates of
Hong Kong Teamsun, and therefore they were connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The formation of the JV Company constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company which was subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but was exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval under the
Listing Rules. Details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
25th October 2017.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31st December 2017, none of the
related party transactions entered into by the Group set out in the section headed
“Related Party Transactions” in Note 47 to the consolidated financial statements
constitutes connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which is
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2017, so far as was known to the Directors and chief executives
of the Company, the following person (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO:

(a) Shares

Directors’ Report
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FERBEALTRS @

MR Z A - ARNBEEBEBRAKNRAR B 2 BEER
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RERREHED BIREBEBRK 2 ERRRRER
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FERR

RIZB—tF+-A=+—H REFRARAES
TRABMA - EFHARRRSTRABAINA
T RARFZBn BRI B RIEE 7 L
BIRPIZEXV B 2 B3 70 BP R IESUAMAA B BB 2
PHY R SR IR 55 S B 5P 6 336 IR A R BIZA T8
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(a) B

Number of ordinary

shares of the Company held

BEAXRARZEBRROEAE Percentage of
Direct Deemed issued share capital
Name of shareholder Nature interest interest HEBITREZ
BEEE #E Ry kY Eo otk
Hong Kong Teamsun Long Position 379,390,763 - 56.58%
EBEBRK R
Teamsun Long Position - 379,390,763 56.58%
R RK 555
China Fortune Rich Private Equity Fund Limited Long Position 59,743,119 - 8.91%
("China Fortune”) e
PEERENEESERAR ([FEKE])
DT Capital Management Co., Limited (“DT Capital”) Long Position - 59,743,119 8.91%
EEEANEEROERAF ([EEER]) e
Wang Zixi Long Position - 59,743,119? 8.91%
FFER HE
Wang Hongyu Long Position - 59,743,119 8.91%

FRT R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
(b) Underlying shares

FERER@®
(b) HEEAR 1P

Number

of ordinary

shares of the Company held

BEXARARZEBRRAEAE Percentage of

Direct Deemed issued share capital

Name of shareholder Nature interest interest HEBITREZ

REREH HE HiEER WRBER Bott

Viewforth Limited (“Viewforth™) Long Position 229,357,7983 - 34.20%
SREXERAR ([SEEE]) e

Fullshare Holdings Limited (“Fullshare”) Long Position - 229,357,798* 34.20%
LR AR A ([ E AR ) HE

Magnolia Wealth International Limited (“Magnolia”) Long Position - 229,357,798% 34.20%
Magnolia Wealth International Limited ([ Magnolia]) e

Ji Changqun Long Position - 229,357,7984 34.20%
TEH V=)

Notes: B 3T

1.

Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun and
was therefore deemed to be interested in the 379,390,763 shares in which Hong Kong
Teamsun was interested.

China Fortune was wholly-owned by DT Capital, a company owned by Wang Zixi and
Wang Hongyu as to 85% and 15%, respectively. Therefore, each of DT Capital, Wang
Zixi and Wang Hongyu was deemed to be interested in the 59,743,119 shares of the
Company in which China Fortune was interested.

Viewforth was interested in 229,357,798 underlying shares to be derived from the
convertible bonds of a principal amount of HK$250,000,000 issued by the Company
on 21st March 2017 at the adjusted conversion price of HK$1.09 per share.

Viewforth was wholly-owned by Fullshare, 46.58% of the issued share capital of
which was owned by Magnolia. Ji Changqun was the sole shareholder of Magnolia.
Therefore, each of Fullshare, Magnolia and Ji Changqun was deemed to be interested
in the 229,357,798 underlying shares of the Company in which Viewforth was
interested.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st December 2017, there was no other person

(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests

or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which

would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded in
the register of interest required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds are set out in the “Chief Executive Officer’s
Statement” on page 13 of the annual report and Note 36(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2017, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the Company, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31st December
2017, except as noted below:

(@) with respect to Code provision A.6.7, (i) all Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-Executive Directors did not attend two special general meetings
of the Company held on 13th March 2017 due to other commitments; and (ii)
one Non-Executive Director and one Independent Non-Executive Director did not
attend a special general meeting of the Company held on 22nd March 2017 due
to other commitments.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31st December 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31st December 2017.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

As permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the Company may be
indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any liability incurred by the director,
to the extent permitted by Bermuda law. Such permitted indemnity provision has been
in force during the year and is currently in force at the time of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance during the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal actions
brought against its directors and officers.

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong
Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director or a former director of the Hong Kong
Subsidiaries may be indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets against any
liability incurred by the director to a person other than the Hong Kong Subsidiaries or
an associated company of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law.
Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force at the time of approval of this
report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 31st December
2017. During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group including the review of the
annual results and interim results, and discussed various auditing, financial reporting
and risk management and internal control system matters.

DONATION

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to HK$12,240.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as Auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28th March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

o Grant Thornton
5]

To the members of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BBRGEEERRAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated Systems
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 69 to 178, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st December 2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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B M A% BED R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters
BARERSER

Business combination

EBAH

Refer to note 39 to the consolidated financial statements —
Acquisition of Subsidiaries
B4R A B IR M i 39- Wi T8 2 ]

On 7th April 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of Grid
Dynamics International, Inc. (“Grid Dynamics”) and its subsidiaries
("Grid Dynamics Group”) at a total consideration of approximately
HK$1,001,421,000. Further details are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RZZ—tFWMALH - &%EE%EHHKUKHEGrid Dynamics
International, Inc. ([ Grid Dynamics ) % EFf} & 2 & ([ Grid Dynamics
£@]) - BREAK,001,421,0007 7T - BREAHE—FFBFEHARER
AR ERRMIEE39

The acquisition has been accounted for by determining the fair value
of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including
intangible assets, which results in the recognition of intangible assets
of approximately HK$125,150,000 and goodwill of approximately
HK$764,920,000.

WEE ST A RETEMWB R SR EERPTAEAE (REERE
E)ZARBEAR  EEHIEREILEEL 125,150,000 7T K%
P2 %) 764,920,000 % T ©

The fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed from this acquisition were assessed by the management
based on an independent valuation prepared by a firm of external
valuers which required the exercise of significant judgement
and estimation, particularly in relation to the forecast of future
performance of business acquired.
ZWEEEMYE 2 BRI EENRAERE L AR BEHRERE
RIE—FINEMEEM R AR R 2 B A EFEL A - ZeHEAER
BARANE R AEET - CHE BTS2 RRKRIR 2 TEA -

We identified the purchase price allocation as a key audit matter as
the valuation of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
can be inherently complex and requires the estimation of key
assumptions including expected revenue growth rate, asset lives,
customer attrition rate and discount rate which will affect the
purchase price allocation.

BISNEE R A —RAREZEE - LB FTRE#5
BEMAAEABEZIGARENEERET T 2ELBRERRA
i BEBPRBREESECHRALRER EEARFH &
FRAEREEIRE o
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MREZFERERERMOTEHAE - BREAHRE
FAVBREANECRREENSEE - 25 FARHE
BERBERGAEMBRER L AR MNE LRETT
FIEH) > BRMTEUZEETRREEBENER -

How the Key Audit Matters were addressed in our audit

BMNEROEEAREREE

Our audit procedures on business combination included the following:
B EBAIETHERIZF BREATRIA -

inspected the agreement and plan of merger (“Merger
Agreement”) and evaluated management’s accounting treatment
for the acquisition with reference to the terms set out in the Merger
Agreement;

FEEa 0t E LR (1A 0HHE ) RREA HHHZPIE 2 E5KA
HEEERKBEE &5EIE

il

evaluated the independent external valuer’'s competence,
capabilities, objectivity and independence;

FHEINRB HER 2B - B2 - BB RBUIE

Obtained and inspected the valuation assessment prepared by
the independent external valuer and checked its mathematical
accuracy;

ESYTEEINBELAEMBEZ MEREAZEHGFE 2 &
W

assessed the appropriateness and reasonableness of valuation
methodology and the key assumptions adopted by the independent
external valuer in valuing the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in the business combination; and

S INEB L BRI A HET I AT BRI B B RFTEIE S
BEETHERRKAZAETERBRERRZEEEREGEN &

checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the
input data used in the fair value determination of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.
MERENETWE BB MR EERIAEEEZARE
B PR A SR 2 EREE RAERE -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters
ERERER

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets arising

from the acquisition of the Grid Dynamics Group

1% Grid Dynamics S BEE N E B R B EE 2 RETE

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements — Goodwill
and Intangible Assets

BRMG A EREN T2 1- BERREEEE

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had goodwill and intangible
assets of approximately HK$769,499,000 and HK$119,323,000
respectively, which were arose from the acquisition of the Grid
Dynamics Group.

RZE—+tF+ZRA=+—H' EBESEZBHEREFEES
51l /& #7769,499,000 % 7T K& 119,323,000 7T+ £ Jy /U B Grid
Dynamics SEBIE4 ©

Goodwill and intangible assets have been allocated to the cash
generating units ("CGU") of Grid Dynamics Group under the
IT Services operating segment. The management assessed the
recoverable amount of the CGU with reference to an independent
valuation prepared by a firm of external valuers and concluded that
no impairment on goodwill and intangible assets is required.
MERENEED HIEEEARERBLLE 53T Grid Dynamics
SEReELEM ([REEFBL]) - £2E H—HINBEERD
NERHEzBUGE  EREETARSEESL 2 AIKE SR
RRABEREBLEEWEZTZRE -

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets as a key audit matter due to the calculation of recoverable
amount involves significant estimate and judgement about future
market conditions, including the growth rate and discount rate
applied in the calculation.

B EREVEE D RAENNE A —HRREZSEE © 1LH
REtE R E S S RERRTR 2 EAMET RAE - BFETEE
AZERERMBRE -

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Auditor’s Report
VR A TR

FEREZEE @)

How the Key Audit Matters were addressed in our audit

BEMNELNAEERREREE

Our audit procedures on impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets included the following:

BMEE R EVEE 2 REMLETNEREFEENATEIE

e evaluated the independent external valuer’s competence,
capabilities, objectivity and independence;

FHRSNERBILET AN 2 KRR - B2 REUERIBILE

e assessed the appropriateness and reasonableness of the
methodology and the key assumptions adopted by the independent
external valuer in calculating the recoverable amount;

FHE FNER B S (B AT AE 5 5 AT Uk 3] & BE S SR AR 2 77 I SR R ek
ZEEERAERIE

e checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and reliance of the input
data used; and

Mile S AR ARUR 2B LA K

e checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the
recoverable amount.

ZE RO RETE 2 SR -

Htp&ER

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information EEZAHHEMERAEER HoBERBE BEAFR-Z
comprises all the information in the 2017 annual report of the Company, but does not ~ —tFFMAABMMBER - T BRITGE M IBEIRE
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. KAz TR o

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other ~ KfFI¥4REMBHRENER L TREEMER - KM
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. e g R A SR B R AR ZELER

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our ~FEMEGEHMBEHRENEZME - ROINWEELEH
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the — EEMER - T E EBEMER S5 HBGE M ERE
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements ~ SkERMIEFZBREFEENERFLEERTF - iF
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially ~ 7EE KRR ©

misstated.
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OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Report 2017 & #f

HibER )

HERMPERSRITO IIEREL 2 &g b E
BEaESEREREL - RIARSLAEBER - 3
SR AT E A TS

EERARSMBRRARE 2SR

EXRARERBEEESHMASRNZEETBRE
AR e BB A AHED] ) Z 3 5E R E AR AR A B TS 3R
F o NLSHEAVBERREHAEMAFHRER - &
BEERAVEZBENGES - AEEAMEHRE
ZRE N F R R M S B E AR R -

REFEFEEHBHRRE  EFXABENE E5H
FEKENED  BRERSECEEENER(E
) RIEZAEK EXEER T LEE-
HERIE 2 N EEMBRAITTHER TR - TAIZAK
RRHEEERERN ST RIDE -

EEEEZZ8ENH TETHEEE
WERTHOBE

REMHRELGE M BRRAEE
MEE

BB R - RESREMBHRERIE TMFERRKEE
SRR M BHNEAHRBRERISAIBRE - WHA
BEAMEROREMRE - BEAFE—AN—
FREVR)FE0ME RMERM T (ERER) BE
BANER - BRULASNRREL BEA B A - BT
ERABRENATAEMEMALE ERAEEAR
T o

EEENH

SRRFRSKTORE - ETRERERREBET
HAETHERAEX - EXBERBOAFAER AR S
B o SRR FT A R ARF SRR AR B - A TR TREIR
SEE N LR AT B B RS M MR LA E KR
fRE MMM EEAR - BIBRR SRR
FAIHRIEER



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

28th March 2018

Lam Yau Hing
Practising Certificate No.: P06622
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

meEEmR

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Revenue WA 7 1,917,453 1,521,985
Cost of goods sold SHER A (648,321) (742,342)
Cost of services rendered REARIS 2 AR (924,968) (612,958)
Other income EAb A 8 5,686 5,797
Other loss, net HihFEE 9 (8,216) (3,874)
Fair value gain on revaluation of BREREMEZ
investment properties "‘METEH& 20 1,700 400
Selling expenses HESE (103,056) (70,157)
Administrative expenses 1T ;ﬁ{’ﬁﬁ (146,584) (51,085)
Finance income R ON 10 370 545
Finance costs BATS R AR 11 (17,205) (793)
Share of results of associates i far AN 22 (7,111) (8,540)
Profit before income tax Bk T 15 Bt AT 12 69,748 38,978
Income tax expense FriSfim sz 16 (17,169) (10,181)
Profit for the year attributable to EABREIFHE AL
equity holders of the Company FraRl 52,579 28,797
HK cents HK cents
4l Al
(Restated)
(g&E5)
Earnings per share BRER
Basic E=YiN 18 8.99 7.00
Diluted e 18 7.77 7.00

The notes on pages 76 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ R HE 76 25 178 B Z M HER AR & M B RE 2 A
statements. LERER S
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meZEBER

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Profit for the year FRaF 52,579 28,797
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hip2EkE(F8)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently HEHTERESER Rk
to profit or loss: HIEER -
Revaluation surplus of land and buildings T RIEFE G RG 19 18,056 11,093
Deferred taxation arising from revaluation T RIEFE GBS
surplus of land and buildings EAEZIRERIE 37 (2,979) (1,830)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to RN pERED R
profit or loss: Rz IHE -
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINEH EREZR
overseas operations 6,049 (1,901)
Reclassification adjustment of translation reserve RAEH BB N A8 R
upon deemed disposal of partial interests bE 5 Rt 2 AR
in associates 31 - 42
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) EEEE AR EMRE
of associates Wz, (B518) 22 1,004 (686)
Total comprehensive income for the year EATREIFEAEBMEER
attributable to equity holders 2HENRERE
of the Company 74,709 35,515
HRNET6 2% 178 B 2 WitlER AR & Mgz 2]

The notes on pages 76 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R

As at 31st December 2017 R=ZE—+F+=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB KR 19 291,055 276,332
Investment properties wEY* 20 52,300 50,600
Intangible assets mpEE 21 119,323 681
Goodwill RS 21 769,499 -
Interests in associates SN B 22 46,948 53,458
Available-for-sale financial asset AEEEeRMEE 23 598 -
Finance lease receivables FEY & B & KIE 27 3,325 4,035
Prepayments TR RIE 28 340 -
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTIEE 37 4,017 953
1,287,405 386,059
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 25 128,081 128,414
Trade receivables JEUE 55/ IE 26 275,952 166,651
Finance lease receivables FEY B & T & KB 27 3,592 4,264
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HEUFIE - iRe RIEMAFIE 28 32,946 21,337
Amounts due from customers for contract work ABHTRREREFFIA 29 204,644 220,884
Tax recoverable BIEEIE 41,334 88
Restricted bank deposits ZRHIRITFR 30 4,168 876
Bank balances and cash RITERRIES 30 286,771 237,755
977,488 780,269
Total assets BEE 2,264,893 1,166,328
Equity attributable to equity holders AABRREEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital [N 32 67,054 35,079
Share premium R& 174 (BB 376,464 114,497
Reserves GG 654,300 569,457
Total equity AR 1,097,818 719,033

The notes on pages 76 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ R HE 76 25 178 B Z M HER AR & M B RE 2 A
HRERS ©

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R IR R

As at 31st December 2017 R=ZF—+F+=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FEx FAxT

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings BE 36 245,182 -
Contingent consideration payable FERT S AKAEB 6(d) 67,262 -
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTEH B E 37 74,723 45,899
387,167 45,899

Current liabilities piiAi=Ri=
Trade payables FERTE SR8 33 175,802 185,380
Other payables and accruals E At ERT I R FEET B A 34 153,904 72,909
Contingent consideration payable FERT S ARAE 6(d) 69,429 -
Receipts in advance TEd s = 35 126,711 125,660
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIS R B & 6,262 7,447
Borrowings BE 36 247,800 10,000
779,908 401,396
Total liabilities was 1,167,075 447,295
Total equity and liabilities BERKAE 2,264,893 1,166,328
Net current assets REEEFH 197,580 378,873
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 1,484,985 764,932
LI Wei WANG Yueou
e TE®
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 76 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FOEREBE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

Share-
based
Special Property Convertible payment
reserve revaluation bonds reserve
Share (Note (i) reserve Translation reserve Retained Total
premium u reserve 1 ; earnings equity
B i BN RE e ‘ f il 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHT TET AL T BT AL BT BT
At 1st January 2016 R-ZE-~E-A—-H 31,875 114,305 34,350 196,317 (6,359) - 253 312,609 683,350
Comprehensive income: 2K :
Profit for the year FREH - - - - - - - 28,797 28,797
Other comprehensive ~ Hft2H ki / (F8) :
income/(loss):
Revaluation surplus of land T3t RIEF EfE R
and buildings - - - 11,093 - - - - 11,093

Deferred taxation arising ~ +it1 i FEERHS

from revaluation surplus 4 2 ELFIE

of land and buildings - - - (1,830) - - - - (1,830)
Exchange differenceson  MEBNEBzELZR

translation of overseas

operations - - - - (1,901) - - - (1,901)
Reclassification adjustment 51 B & A Rl H R

of translation reserve EHEE YRR

upon deemed disposal  (FfEE31)

of partial interests

in associates (Note 31) - - - - 42 - - - 42
Share of other e NAEMEE

comprehensive loss BE T 22)

of associates (Note 22) - - - - (686) - - - (686)

Total comprehensive ~ FRZERHLE

income for the year - - - 9,263 (2,545) - - 28,797 35,515
Transactions with owners: BEBEAZR 5
Issue of ordinary shares  fT{EEEIRIER BT 2 SRR

upon exercise of share

options 15 192 - - - - (39 - 168
Issue of ordinary shares on  EATALR T 8472 LR

bonus issue (Note 32(i)  (PiEE32(i) 3,189 - - - - - - (3,189) -
Lapse of share options SR ZERBRRN 2 KBERE

transferred to retained

earnings - - - - - - (88) 88 -
Total transactions BREAZRS AR

with owners 3,204 192 - - - - (127) (3,101) 168
At 31st December 2016 R=F—<F+=A=+—H 35079 114,497 34,350 205,580 (8,904) - 126 338,305 719,033

The notes on pages 76 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ R HE 76 25 178 B Z M HER AR & M B RE 2 A

statements. SERER S o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A pE L 2

For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-—T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

N eE Property
reserve  revaluation

Share Share (Note (i) reserve
capital premium KEIRE WEEH
RAE  ROBER (GEO)) i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THET TR

Share-

based

Convertible payment

bonds reserve
Translation reserve SR 43 Retained Total
reserve AR RER earnings equity
B fRE BHRE X% REEF p; £t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET TET TR

At 1st January 2017 R=ZE-tF-A-H 35,079 114,497 34,350 205,580 (8,904) - 126 338,305 719,033
Comprehensive income: 2K :
Profit for the year FR R = - - - - - - 52,579 52,579
Other comprehensive ~ Eftt2mEis/ (&#8) :

income/(loss):
Revaluation surplusof T RIEFEERR

land and buildings - - - 18,056 - - - - 18,056
Deferred taxation arising T3t REFE(ERH

from revaluation surplus 4 ZIEIERIE

of land and buildings - - - (2,979) - - - - (2,979)
Exchange differenceson  MEENEBzELZR

translation of overseas

operations - - - - 6,049 - - - 6,049
Share of other EEBEAREMEE

comprehensive income Mtz (P 22)

of associates (Note 22) - - - - 1,004 - - - 1,004
Total comprehensive ~ ERZEUEHE

income for the year - - - 15,077 7,053 - - 52,579 74,709
Transactions with owners: BB AZRX5
Issue of ordinary shares on AR N &47 2 ZBR

rights issue (Note 32(i))  (Ff&E32(ii)) 17,539 171,579 - - - - - - 189,118
Issue of ordinary shares on  B{TALAR 8172 L @R

bonus issue (Note 32(iv)) (P& 32(iv)) 5,262 - - - - - - (5,262) =
Recognition of WA RERS 2

equity-settled 53

share-based payments - - - - - - 4,299 - 4,299
Equity component of ARRESERTD

convertible bonds (F2E 36(i0)

(Note 36(ii)) - - - - - 15,536 - - 15,536
Issue of ordinary shares  ATHAMR B8

upon conversion of B2 EER

convertible bonds (PEE32(v) & 36i))

(Notes 32(v) & 36(ii) 9,174 90,388 - - - (4,439) - - 95,123
Total transactions BEFAZRZEHE

with owners 31,975 261,967 - - - 11,097 4,299 (5,262) 304,076
At 31st December 2017 R=F—t%+-A=1+—H 67,054 376,464 34,350 220,657 (1,851) 11,097 4,425 385,622 1,097,818

Note (): The special reserve of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) represents the difference between the nominal value
of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’s shares in 1997.

The notes on pages 76 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHERER

For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-—T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2017 2016
—E—tF T—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FHIT
Operating activities REXEWK
Cash generated from operations BB B SWA 41(a) 111,220 85,544
Tax paid EASRIE
— Hong Kong profits tax - BENEH (15,563) (4,130)
— Overseas profits tax - BHNIE (20,698) (509)
Tax refund REINIE
— Hong Kong profits tax - BENEH - 886
— Overseas profits tax - BHNGIE 1 114
Net cash from operating activities REEBREWANFE 74,960 81,905
Investing activities REEH
Cash outflow in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries ~ BRIWENB AT ZIREHH 39 (771,334) -
Transaction costs paid for acquisition of subsidiaries BEATULEEHT B A AR SRR (11,783) (2,817)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE - BRERERE (10,603) (4,507)
Additions to intangible assets B ARG (57) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYIE - BEREBEHRIE
plant and equipment 42 36
Proceeds from disposal of other financial asset HERAIR BV E EMERUE
upon maturity - 1,180
Investment in available-for-sale financial asset AL EeREECIRE (598) -
Interest received =&l 8 137 40
Dividends received from an associate B2 A RIELZ IR E 22 484 486
Net cash used in investing activities RETB2EHS IR (793,712) (5,582)
Financing activities mEES
Net proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMERIEFE 246,546 -
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (10,000) (10,000)
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BT RRAMERIEFE 189,118 168
Interest paid EAFE (5,911) (793)
Net proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds BATARRES TS KIBF 8 345,947 -
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BETHBESBA () FE 765,700 (10,625)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEBY 2L INFE 46,948 65,698
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FUIzHeRBEEEEY
the year 237,755 172,955
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNERE =GB 2 B 2,068 (898)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FzRe RIREEED 286,771 237,755
The notes on pages 76 to 178 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ R HE 76 25 178 B Z M HER AR & M B RE 2 A
statements. FERER S o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-—T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

—o0 76

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At 31st December 2017, its immediate holding
company is Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its ultimate holding company is Beijing
Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”), a company incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its shares are listed on The Shanghai
Stock Exchange of the PRC. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM12, Bermuda, and 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of its major
associates and subsidiaries are set out in Notes 22 and 48 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) on 28th March 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are summarised in Note 3. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except that the land and buildings, investment properties and
contingent consideration payable are stated at fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TS ERRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

(a) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for the annual
periods beginning on 1st January 2017:

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the following
amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s
operations and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning on 1st January 2017:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Included in Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosure that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
liabilities arising from financing activities is set out in note 41(b). Consistent
with the transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in note 41(b), the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-—T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

—o 78

(b) Issued but not yet effective:

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements,
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but are not yet
effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(FRIC) — Int 22

HK(FRIC) — Int 23

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint

Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021

4 Effective date not yet determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2. RBEYE ()
(b) BAREEKRER : (&)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Issued but not yet effective: (Continued)

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be adopted
in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new and amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the Group’s accounting policies
is provided below. Other new and amended HKFRSs are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”. It makes major changes to the previous guidance on
the classification and measurement of financial assets and introduces an
“expected credit loss” model for the impairment of financial assets.

HKFRS 9 also contains new requirements on the application of hedge
accounting. The new requirements look to align hedge accounting more
closely with entities’ risk management activities by increasing the eligibility
of both hedged items and hedging instruments and introducing a more
principles-based approach to assessing hedge effectiveness.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1st January 2018. Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas that are expected to be impacted by the
application of HKFRS 9:

e the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets
will need to be reviewed based on the new criteria that considers
the assets’ contractual cash flows and the business model in which
they are managed. The Group has assessed that its financial assets
currently measured at amortised cost will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9,
except for the Group’s unlisted equity investment currently classified as
available-for-sale financial asset (Note 23), which the Group intends to
hold beyond 1st January 2018 (i.e. not held for trading), will satisfy the
conditions for classification as fair value through other comprehensive
income. To present changes in other comprehensive income requires
making an irrevocable designation on initial recognition or at the date of
transition to HKFRS 9. Currently, the Group intends to elect to present
changes in the equity investment in other comprehensive income.

e the impairment of financial assets will apply the expected credit loss
model. This will apply to the Group’s trade receivables. The Group
applies a simplified model of recognising lifetime expected credit losses
as trade receivables do not have significant financing component. The
directors do not anticipate the adoption of expected credit loss model
will have material impact on the Group’s performance and financial
position.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

—o 80

(b) Issued but not yet effective: (Continued)

HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 and the related clarification to HKFRS 15 (hereinafter referred to

s “HKFRS 15") presents new requirements for the recognition of revenue,
replacing HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”, and
several revenue-related Interpretations. HKFRS 15 establishes a single
comprehensive model that applies to contracts with customers and two
approaches to recognising revenue; at a point in time or overtime. The
model features a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions to
determine whether, how much and when revenue is recognised.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2018. Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has identified
the following areas which are expected to be affected:

(@) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note 3(u).
Currently, revenue arising from provision of services other than
installation service is recognised over time, whereas revenue from sale of
goods is generally recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership
have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when customer obtains control
of the promised good or service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies
three situations in which control of the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred over time:

(i)  When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance, as the entity
performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example work in progress) that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced; or

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Issued but not yet effective: (Continued)

HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

(@

(b)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into any of
these three situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises
revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single point in time,
being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators that will be considered in
determining when transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the adoption of HKFRS 15 is not likely to
have significant impact on how it recognises from contracts.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

Many of the Group’s contracts comprise a variety of performance
obligations including, but not limited to, system enhancement services,
installation services with sales of products and maintenance services.
Under HKFRS 15, the Group must evaluate the separability of the
promised goods or services based on whether they are “distinct”. A
promised good or service is “distinct” if both:

° the customer benefits from the items either on its own or together
with other readily available resources; and

o it is “separately identifiable” (i.e. the Group does not provide a
significant service integrating, modifying or customising it).

While this represents significant new guidance, the implementation of
this new guidance did not have a significant impact on the timing or
amount of revenue recognised by the Group in any year.

The directors do not consider that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a

material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the

respective reporting period.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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(b) Issued but not yet effective: (Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 “Leases” will replace HKAS 17 and three related Interpretations.

As disclosed in note 3(y), currently the Group classifies leases into finance
leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The Group enters
into some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors
account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS
16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases and
operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account
for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease, the lessee will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the
lessee would recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases
(i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a lessee of leases of
office premises, staff quarter and computer equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact
on the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss
over the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 42, as at 31st December
2017, the Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amount to approximately HK$36,929,000 for office
premises, staff quarter and computer equipment, the majority of which is
payable either within 1 year or between 1 and 5 years after the reporting
date. Some of these amounts may therefore need to be recognised as
lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16
is adopted. The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for any leases entered
into or terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Issued but not yet effective: (Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2019. The standard offers different transition options and practical
expedients, including the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. If this
practical expedient is chosen, the Group will apply the new definition of
a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after the
date of initial application. If the practical expedient is not chosen, the Group
will need to reassess all of its decisions about which existing contracts are, or
contain, leases, using the new definition. Depending on whether the Group
elects to adopt HKFRS 16 retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective
method of recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at the date of initial application, the Group may or may
not need to restate comparative information for any changes in accounting
resulting from the reassessment.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

—o0 84

(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable. All dividends whether received out of
the investee's pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company'’s
profit or loss.

(b) Business combination

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value on the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date. The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounting
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as a financial
liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value with
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Business combination (Continued)

(9]

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity before the
acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period,
or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that
date.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss or consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Interests in associates (Continued)

—0 86

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant
influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

(d) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
Board that makes strategic decisions.

(e) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HKD or HK$), which is the Company’s functional currency and
the Group's presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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hY FY Vo raxd .
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. TEETHR®)
(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (e) INEIE ()
(iii) Group companies (i) EE2 F]

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which EEMAERZNEEBNER Y&

has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional DB EAP I EERE S A mRER

currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the BRBER2EY)  BEEERMBRK

presentation currency as follows: SR T AT E R 258

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position () BHVBERRRZAEREBEY
presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date; LZEMARA 2 WHERFTE

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss iy BHEZRZWARBZET
presented are translated at average exchange rates (unless this HEERNE (BRIEZ T HEERIWIE
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect EERMZER S A BITEX
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case HECRFER  ERBERT
income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the AR EBZERTERAR
transactions); and i) &

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other (iy PAEEECZEHRZZOERARE
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the fhemERELRD I REEEZN
translation reserve in equity. HE 3 (o o

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a WS EINEREE 2 HERANERE

foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity AEGERBINERBZEAERBE I

and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences RWTERTE « FrEE B EZER

arising are recognised in other comprehensive income. Hfh2masiER o
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(f) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are stated at fair value. Property, plant and equipment,
other than land and buildings, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Land and buildings are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting
date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings is
credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same assets previously recognised as an expense,
in which case the increase is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease
in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Over the remaining term of the lease or
50 years, whichever is shorter

Land and buildings

Furniture and fixtures 10% - 33'3%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer and office equipment  162/3% — 50%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
other reserves are transferred to retained earnings.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment properties. Investment property is
measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting date
by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(h) Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the
date that control is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as
the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually for impairment.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of gain or loss on
disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Technical know-how and customer relationship

Technical know-how and customer relationships acquired in business
combination are recognised initially at fair value at the acquisition date.
After initial recognition, those have a finite useful lives and are subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation for technical know-how and customer relationships is provided
on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 3 years and 15
years, respectively.

Intangible assets, with finite and indefinite useful lives, are tested for
impairment as described below in Note 3(j).

Research and development expenditure

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as incurred. Costs that are directly attributable
to development activities are recognised as intangible assets provided they
meet the following recognition requirements:

(a) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product for
internal use or sale;

(b) there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(c) the Group's ability to use or sell the intangible asset is demonstrated;

(d) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through
internal use or sale;

(e) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available for
completion; and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be reliably
measured.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is
the sum of the direct costs incurred from the date when the intangible asset
first meets the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Direct costs include employee
costs incurred on development activities along with an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using straight-line method over the estimated
useful life of 3 years.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESEER @)

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
Other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interests in associates

The Company’s investments in subsidiaries

() FEMEEZRE
AT EERETREA
o WEMBARELNEE
. HthmEE

o V% BENMRE

o ARFRMEBRRNKE

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful life or those THReRATHIRETR  BERAEBER
not yet available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested PRFHRSZEWARAEER 2 HMETLE
for impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there is any B BIEMTHE  MARSEBFEET R
indication that they are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment BERH - FTEEMEEREEADRER
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be & EREE AR RETTRE R -

recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the amount EAE2REERNE T WEI SRR - S
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. SHAREBRIY ZEHERAEMAT - AJlK
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions BleBAAREBE(RMTSERRELSE
less costs of disposal, and value in use. In assessing value in use, the R BEREBzREE - RiEERE
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a EN  AEEgEARMREATSHEE
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time value AR RZIBEAER R 2 Bk 2 TR
of money and the risk specific to the asset. LI - hEtHRREREBMAEZ AR
&-

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not MAHMERENS B -HEEMELEZRS
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other assets, MARB LTI R EMEEMEE 2R
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets SRA - AT E BRI B L EER SR
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit). As AZBHEEER BIRSELSMN)ERT -
a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are At - B EEEBETRERR - 3581
tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to EREEEBMECETAR - B
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies of Rl B 2 TR AR AR R 275 & OF 2 1 [RI R
the related business combination and represent the lowest level within the PR RRERAEERNRABEE B M
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose EEmE 2 REKFEETRREE DB 2R
and not be larger than an operating segment. SEABA -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 58 Z 5B BR A A 91

oO—



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
?ﬁ/T\l:u

B RS R R AL

For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-—T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(k)

—o0 92

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which goodwill
has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the
cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. In
respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets and financial liabilities were
acquired at initial recognition and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables ER K EREIE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for the amounts that have
maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date which are
classified as non-current assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, they
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses.

The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade receivables”, “other
receivables and deposits”, “finance lease receivables”, ”
deposits” and “bank balances and cash” as set out in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

restricted bank

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for inclusion in any
of the other categories of financial assets are classified as available-for-
sale financial assets. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12
months after the reporting date.

For available-for-sale investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at each reporting date
subsequent to initial recognition.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
impairment loss is determined and recognised based on the classification
of the financial asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(k) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i) Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include “trade payables”, “other
payables and accruals”, “contingent consideration payable”, “liability
component of convertible bonds” and “bank borrowings”. They are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position as trade
payables, other payables and accruals, contingent consideration payable
and borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. All interest
related charges are recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note 3(w)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade payables and other payables and accruals

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

They are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Contingent consideration payable

Contingent consideration payable is classified as financial liability and
is subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would be
issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that would
be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain a liability component, a derivative
component and an equity component.

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both financial
liability and equity components are classified separately into respective
liability, derivative and equity components on initial recognition. On
initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
debts. The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the call option for conversion of the convertible bonds into
equity, is included in equity as convertible bonds reserve.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component will remain in
equity until conversion or redemption of the bond.

When the convertible bond is converted, the equity component of
convertible bond and the carrying value of the liability component at the
time of conversion are transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the
convertible bonds reserve is released directly to retained profits.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(I) Impairment of financial assets

—0 96

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets, other than those
at fair value through profit or loss, is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting
is material. Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts or separated from
hybrid financial instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on the
date the derivative contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives that are not designated as hedging instruments are
accounted for as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken
directly to profit or loss for the year.

(n) Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending for
customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

(o) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. See note 3(k)(i) for further
information about the Group’s accounting policies for trade receivables and
note 3(l) for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

(q) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction, net
of tax, from the proceed.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
and other payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-—T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Current and deferred income tax

—o 98

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the places/
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2017 HZ=F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial
guarantee contract

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer (or
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-—T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial

guarantee contract (Continued)

(ifi) Financial guarantee contract (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income
is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
if and when it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will
call upon the Group under the guarantee and the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the current carrying amount i.e.,
the amount initially recognised less accumulated amortisation, where
appropriate.

(u) Revenue recognition

—o0 100

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net
of discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.
The Group based on its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to buyers (generally on
delivery, satisfactory installation and customer acceptance) and the amount
of revenue and the costs incurred for the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services, other than installation services and
maintenance services, is recognised as revenue by reference to the stage
of completion, provided that the revenue, the costs incurred and the
estimated costs to completion can be measured reliably. Stage of completion
is established by reference to the costs incurred to date as compared to
the total costs to be incurred under the transaction. Provision is made for
foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by the management.

Where recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for contract work.
Amounts received before the related work is performed are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position, as a liability, as receipts in
advance. The balances will be recognised as revenue when earned.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

Installation services are generally provided incidentally to the sale of a
product, in which case they are recognised upon satisfactory installation and
customer acceptance.

Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight line basis over the
term of the maintenance service contract.

Rental income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as interest income over
the period of the lease so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return of the outstanding net investment in the leases for each
accounting period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all
qualifying employees. The MPF Scheme is established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group's contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit
plans.

In addition, the Group offers a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under section 401(k) of the Inland Revenue Code of the United States
for substantially all of its United States based employees who are eligible
to participate in. The scheme is a qualified profit-sharing plan that allows
employees to contribute a portion of their wages to individual accounts up
to 60% of their eligible compensation, subject to the maximum allowed by
Internal Revenue Service. The Group is not required to make contributions
to the plan but can make discretionary contributions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

—o0 102

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned on the
temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are complete.

Share-based payment

The fair value of services received were determined by reference to the fair
value of shares and share options granted at the grant date and expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the shares and share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
shares and share options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share-based payment reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
After vesting date, when the shares or share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or

contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a

right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return

for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

0

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property is classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a finance
lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except where the
property is classified as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Leases (Continued)
(iii) Assets leased out under finance leases as the lessor

When assets are leased out under finance leases, the risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred out to customers. When assets are leased
out under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments is
recognised as a receivable.

(z) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in the year
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

(aa)Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent.

(b) the party is an entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related
to the others);

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. TEETHR®)
(aa)Related parties (Continued) (aa) BEEA T ()
(b) the party is an entity is related to the Group if any of the following ) BEF REBERIAS TIIEM G - 8l
conditions applies: (Continued) HAEEGHEE : (8)
(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified (6) EEEX(a)IEATIMLA TSI
in (a); el
(7) A person identified in (a)(1) has significant influence over the (7) RE@MIEAGMATHEESEA
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the 7

FIRER(REBZERA)
B

entity (or of a parent of the entity); or ZEBEBEKE X

(8)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides (8) HERIEMBEE AMWKE
key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to AEIAME B RETRB T
the parent of the reporting entity. NRIBHEEEETEABR -
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who EALTZERDIEHZEER FRTER
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their EIANTHAZZATHE L REKE ©
dealings with the entity.
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EXRErH AT KA M
JUDGEMENTS
(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s () B A EEEHBERNEES T
accounting policies F R
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has REMAEE S5 HERBIER - EREDEF
made the following accounting judgements: BT AR ST I
(i) Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables () [EMWE BB KA M EK IR 57
#
The provisioning policy for trade and other receivables of the Group is RNEE YR 5 FRIE & E A EUYRIE
based on the evaluation of the collectability of those receivables and BAETLR T LA S 3% 5 e Wk E Al i el 1
on management’s judgement. A considerable amount of judgement YR 2 AHE R B IR E 2 FIE R EGE - 57
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, MZERBRIE RS REREE
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of EEKEHE - BRESEEFZEBRIE
each customer and the realisation of any repayment pattern promised. BRBTERFLE - W REREEEE
If the financial conditions of these customers were to deteriorate, PRAEEER « WZEEP 2K
additional provision may be required. S - BIFTRER RRRIMERE -
(i) Income taxes (i) FriFH
The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which the Group AR EEN AR B L PTTEM 2 BlAE
operates. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision RGNS - EEEMGHEERS
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for ZEMREEREZHE - R A ﬁ%ﬁ%%@
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises %%EF' BREZREBERRRIBEIRS
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether c AEBKEEE ‘JHﬂFEf%XﬁPﬂ%E
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these 57\\3%152ﬁaﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁi,ﬁ%ﬁ%%aﬂﬁE
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such ZBE - MZEEE L REB S ERE
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the Mtk 2 BAR - ABEEREBR
year in which such determination is made. BUELET 2 FE ZAEH RIELERIE
B o
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

—o0 106

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i)

(ir)

Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(u), the Group
uses the percentage of completion (the “POC") method to determine
the appropriate revenues to be recognised from rendering of services
(other than installation service and maintenance services). The stage
of completion is measured by reference to the actual costs incurred
up to the reporting date as a percentage of total estimated costs of
completion. When the outcome of a POC contract cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it will be probably recoverable.

Valuation of investment properties, land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
values estimated. In making its estimates, the Group considers the
information from the valuations of investment properties and land and
buildings performed by external professional valuers by using the market
comparison approach. The market comparison approach is referenced
to recent sale price of comparable properties on a price per square foot
basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the quality and
floor of the Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales.

Had the Group used different valuation techniques, the fair value of the
investment properties and land and buildings would be different and
thus may have an impact to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31st December 2017, the carrying amount of the Group’s land
and buildings and investment properties carried at revalued amount/
fair value were HK$271,950,000 (2016: HK$262,500,000) and
HK$52,300,000 (2016: HK$50,600,000) respectively.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EXEsHEsTRHAE @
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Estimated impairment of interests in associates

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

The value in use was determined based on the estimated present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by i-Sprint
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“i-Sprint Group”), including cash
flows from the operations of i-Sprint Group and estimated terminal
value. Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of i-Sprint
Group is lower than its carrying amount. Hence, an impairment loss
of HK$4,400,000 on the interests in i-Sprint Group was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31st
December 2017.

Recognition of share-based payment expenses

The Company has granted share options to the Group’s management
and employees during the year ended 31st December 2017. The
directors, with the assistance of an independent professional valuer,
have used the Binomial Lattice Model to determine the total fair value
of the options granted, which is to be expensed over the vesting period
as appropriate. Significant estimate on assumptions, such as share price
volatility and dividend yield, is required to be made by the directors in
applying the Binomial Lattice Model. Details of share-based payment
expenses are set out in Note 38.

Valuation of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired through business
combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations, which requires the Group to recognise assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at their fair values on the date of acquisition.
Significant judgement is used to estimate the fair values of the assets
and liabilities acquired, including estimating future cash flows from the
acquired business, determining appropriate discount rates and other
assumptions.

The acquisition of Grid Dynamics Group during the year ended 31st
December 2017 is accounted for as business combination and details of
the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date
of acquisition are set out in Note 39.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vi) Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group determined whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis, while for the acquired intangible assets, technical know-
how and customer relationship with finite useful lives, they are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications that the asset's carrying
amount may not be recoverable. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill and the acquired
intangible assets are allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
present value of those cash flows. Details of goodwill and intangibles
assets are set out in Note 21.

(vii) Valuation of contingent consideration payable

For acquisitions accounted for under HKFRS 3, future anticipated
payments to vendors in respect of earnouts are based on the
management’s best estimates of future obligations, which are
dependent on future performance of the interests acquired and assume
the operating companies improve profits in line with management'’s
estimates and are included in liabilities greater or less than one year as
appropriate. These estimates will likely differ from future actual results
of operations and cash flows, and it is possible that these differences
could be material. Changes to earnouts are recorded in the profit or
loss. Details of contingent consideration payable are set out in Notes
6(d) and 39.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors of the Company prepare the annual budget taking into
account of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed annual budget, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the management of the
Group, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues, bank borrowings and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

As at 31st December 2017, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 44.9% (2016:
1.4%), which was calculated as follows:

5. @A

EIE )

EA_”—JCE'T'_H:'F—E C REBE Z BER
Haaran tt:?ﬁ'_'y449% T—RF:
Thigan T EtE

1.4%) -

2017 2016

—E—+tF T—RF

HK$'000 HK$ 000

T FHT

Borrowings R 492,982 10,000
Total equity Ram iR 1,097,818 719,033
Debt-to-equity ratio HB(ETG B B AR L R 44.9% 1.4%

There are no changes on the Group’'s approach to capital risk management

during the year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The

Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and United
States dollars ("USD"). Foreign exchange exposure to USD of the Group
will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to peg the HKD to the
USD remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates, and therefore no related hedging financial instrument
was applied during the year ended 31st December 2017 and 2016.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation in relations to variable interest rate on bank balances and
bank borrowings. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments including bank
balances and bank borrowings, at the reporting date and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the reporting period in the case of instruments that
have floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rate.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

—o 110

M

EASUREMENT (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31st
December 2017 would decrease/increase by approximately HK$565,000
(2016: increase/decrease by approximately HK$935,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank borrowings and bank balances.

(b) Credit risk

(9]

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from bank
balances and cash, restricted bank deposits, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions.
The Group only places deposits in reputable banks and financial institutions
and manages its credit risk associated with trade receivable through the
application of credit approvals, credit rating and monitoring procedures.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue trade receivables. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation to
trade receivables, bank balances and deposits, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset (Note 24) in the consolidated statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment provision.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board,
which has built a liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The Group relies on its operating cash flows as a
significant source of liquidity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS HRRME
For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIRVALUE 6. i REKREER AAEETE

MEASUREMENT (Continued) (%)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBMRERE (2
The table below shows the Group’s financial liabilities analysing into relevant TERAMAEERBRBZEHIHA 264
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to THEEARIBARE S 2 2/EBE - &
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the PR 2B ERAE A ORMIAR
contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities. BRE °

Non-derivative financial liabilities ETECMAE On demand Over 1 year
or within  but within

1 year 5 years Carrying

BRERY BBR—F Total amount
R—FRA EREFRA st SREE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT FHET FERx

At 31st December 2017 R-EB—tF+=A=t—H
Trade payables FERTE 5508 175,802 - 175,802 175,802
Other payables and accruals HAhFENFIE R EFHE R 153,904 - 153,904 153,904
Borrowings BE
— Bank borrowings (Note (i)) - IRITEE (BIFEG) 247,800 - 247,800 247,800
— Convertible bonds - AR E S - 273,182 273,182 245,182
Contingent consideration payable FERTERARE
(Note (ii) (P=EGi)) 70,346 70,346 140,692 136,691
647,852 343,528 991,380 959,379
At 31st December 2016 R-E—RF+-A=t+—H
Trade payables FERTE 558 185,380 - 185,380 185,380
Other payables and accruals HAh RN FIE R EF B R 72,909 - 72,909 72,909
Borrowings Be
- Bank borrowing - RITIEE 10,000 - 10,000 10,000
268,289 - 268,289 268,289
Notes: B
(i)  Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on () MHREREREFORITERE LRBEHA S
demand or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31st et A [ERERSR—F A RREEER - 1
December 2017, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of such bank —E—tFF_A=+—H ZEFRTEROK
borrowings amounted to HK$247,800,000 (2016: HK$10,000,000). Taking into AL IR AN 48 %8 4 247,800,000 8 L (=T — < F ¢
account the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company do not 10,000,00077T) © & BRI AEBEH AR - A
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to RNAEFHEERITTAEITENISEZRAREER
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such Hoe RAREEMEE  ZEFRITEFERERT
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment REZEEREMETETE BHER -

dates set out in the banking facilities.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited &) Z &t B AR A7) 111 o——



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BIIERER MY EE
For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-—T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIRVALUE 6. iR BREBER A AEBEITE

MEASUREMENT (Continued) (%)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FRBMERE (&
Notes: (Continued) MHE : (&)
(i) The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank borrowings with () TR FIZE R EEGERWIRITERIR
repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set out BIRITRVE P ETE 1 E B0 SRR B9 B BR 1S
in the bank facilities. The amounts include interest payment computed using AN - ZESEBIERAEHONETED

FBAK

contractual rates.

On demand Over 1 year
or within but within
1year PAETH Over
BRERR BB—F 2 years Total
ERBER BBWE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R—FR
HK$°000
TET FTEx FTEx TERT

At 31st December 2017 R-B—tF+=-A=+—8H

Bank borrowings BATIEE 33,808 131,004 100,518 265,330

At 31st December 2016 R=—B—X<"E+=A=+—H

Bank borrowings RITEE 10,292 - - 10,292
(i) Depending on the upcoming financial performance of Grid Dynamics Group, (i) % F Grid Dynamics Group #% 7 & 1 7% 5= 3
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the contingent consideration payable for this acquisition may range from nil to
USD18,000,000. As at 31st December 2017, financial liabilities of approximately
USD17,488,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$136,691,000) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position for the fair value of the contingent
consideration payable. The Group expects to settle this financial liabilities based
on the payment schedule as specified in the corresponding sales and purchase
agreement, ranging from one to two years.

(d) Fair value measurement

Financial instruments and non-financial assets measured at fair value

in the consolidated statement of financial position are categorised into
the three level fair value hierarchies as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair Value

Measurement”:

Level 1: Fair value measured only using level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement dates.

Level 2: Fair value measured using level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet with Level 1, and not using unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available.

Level 3: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

Annual Report 2017 & #f
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 6.

MEASUREMENT (Continued)
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table presents the Group’s financial liabilities carried at
fair value on a recurring basis grouped into the three level fair value
hierarchies:

Recurring fair value measurement && M A R EEE
Contingent consideration payable — FEfTAK(E (FifsE39)
(Note 39)

Level 1

E—E
HK$°000
TET

BHEBEERQIABESE

()
(d) AREEFE @
() SHEERSBEEZ A4 EE
THREINAEEREF AR E

EHEZLMAR - BENAABEED
=MEEA :

At 31st December 2017
R=ZF—tH&+=A=+—H
Level 3 Total
E=E At
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Level 2
- p
HK$'000
FHET

136,691 136,691

As at 31st December 2016, the Group did not have any financial
instruments measured at fair value.

The fair value of contingent consideration payable is determined
by using the probability-weighted payout approach. The valuation
technique and significant unobservable inputs of the fair value of
contingent consideration payable are as follows:—

Significant
Valuation technique

fHERR

unobservable inputs

EXTUBEHAME

Probability-weighted Probability of achieving the projected

payout approach revenue and profit before tax of

BRI N 77A

Grid Dynamics Group for the two
years ending 31st March 2019

RZZE—REFE+-A=+—8 K&£H
WENAAREBEYEZCBRIA -

FER A RER A A EETERB R
BESXDEERE - BRENSRARERAEE
BEER R REET AR AREN
T

Sensitivity relationship

of unobservable inputs to fair value

THHERABBEA A EEZHRERER

The higher of the probability, the higher
of the fair value, and vice versa

B  AREEER  RZTFA

REBE-Z-NF=ZA=+—HIIMEFE

%) Grip Dynamics &£ BB A K

B PSR A RO

Discount rate

ELEES

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )

The higher of the discount rate, the
lower of the fair value, and vice versa

BEXER  AREEME  RZIFR
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A B RARMIEE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 6. MK EKBEER A ABETE
MEASUREMENT (Continued) (&)
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) AREEFE®)
(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued) () ZHEERTHBEES LA41EE(E)
The reconciliation of the carrying amount of the Group’s contingent RAARBEBIE-ZBRSENARES
consideration payable classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy FER S ANRBRMESRMT ¢
is as follows:
Contingent
consideration
[EVEL][]
EASRANRE
HK$’000
FEx
At 1st January 2017 RZZE—+F—A—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) WeRE B8 A | (P95 39) 132,670
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss RB=ERN AL EEE 3,221
Exchange difference EHER 800
At 31st December 2017 RZE—tF+=A=+—H 136,691
During the year ended 31st December 2017, there were no transfers REE-Z—tF+_A=1+—HILF
between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2016: Nil). T 5B FEREZEzHEILE
R (CF—NF E) -
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial EERBNGAMBIARA - Efve
assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated financial statements MEELRSRBELREERAUARE
approximate their fair values. =K
(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (i) HEBEENTIEE
The following table presents the Group’s properties measured at fair TREJNAEBIREEMEEEURARE
value on a recurring basis categorised into the three level fair value EBEFE2ME  BERARBEN=E
hierarchies: Bk

At 31st December 2017
R=EB—+tF+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E—E ey BB st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FEx FTET

Recurring fair value measurement && M A R EEE
Investment properties (Note 20) REWE (5t 20) - - 52,300 52,300
Land and buildings (Note 19) T R8T (M 19) - - 271,950 271,950

- - 324,250 324,250
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R B RARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 6. Bi R BREEBER A AEBEITE
MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

(&)
(d) AREEFE @
(i) FEFEENTIEE(E)
At 31st December 2016
R=ZB—XRE+=H=+—H
Level 3 Total
E=B et
HK$'000 HK$'000
TsE  TER

Level 1 Level 2

F—E F_E

HK$'000
TR

HK$°000
THTT

Recurring fair value measurement  EEMU AL BEE

Investment properties (Note 20) & &Y (Hi5E20) - - 50,600 50,600
Land and buildings (Note 19) + it RAEF (MiEE19) - - 262,500 262,500
- - 313,100 313,100

The Group’s investment properties and land and buildings were stated at
valuations made at 31st December 2017 and 2016 by an independent
professional valuer at market value basis which is determined by
reference to market evidence of recent transactions for similar
properties.

The Group’s finance department reviews the valuation performed by the
independent valuer for the financial reporting purposes. Discussion of
valuation processes and results are held at least once every year, which
is in line with the Group’s annual reporting date.

The valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs of the fair
value of investment properties and land and buildings are as follows:—

Valuation techniques

HERR

REE 2B R+ RAEF RN
TE R T -RF+ZA=+—H
BV EEGHEM2EM S LREDE
MR S 2 BRE - RREMESER
STEEEREITEGETIR o

REE IS A= B B A ERETTZ
BEMEM R RAE - HEBIEZHN
WREREINEFET R BAE
BzEERHA—K -

BREMER L RETRABENGE
ATAREETAERBABERNT

Unobservable input

TABERAYE

Investment properties Market comparison approach
- Hong Kong
REME
- &

MG LLEVE

Land and buildings
— Hong Kong

T RIEF
-&E

Market comparison approach

miSLLEVE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )

Discount on quality of the buildings

BFEENE

Discount on quality of the buildings

BTEER

3% to 15%

3% £ 15%

3% to 15%

3% £ 15%

115 00—



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MEE
For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of investment properties and land and buildings located
in Hong Kong is determined using market comparison approach by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a price per
square foot basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
quality and floor of the Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales.
Higher premium for higher quality buildings will result in a higher fair
value measurement.

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the Group’s investment
properties and land and buildings classified within level 3 of the fair

value hierarchy is as follows:

6. UKEBEERAABENE

(&)
(d) DREEE®E)
(i) FEBEERSBE(F)

RIS 2 RAME R L3 RIEF 2 A
A BETERTHLBESE AR S
RO O] LB G 7 R 2 S (AR
B CRAKEYEER (R -
BERMETTARAGEE - LAEE
BHH AR BESE -

RARBERRE=ZBADENTEE
REMER L MEFREEH RN
T

Investment
properties buildings Total
REW* T REF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FTHET TET FET
At 1st January 2016 RZZE—R"F—A—H 50,200 259,650 309,850
Depreciation charge FrEmR - (8,243) (8,243)
Fair value gain N EAREKE 400 - 400
Revaluation surplus BhAR - 11,093 11,093
At 31st December 2016 RZE—AR"F+=-A=1+—H 50,600 262,500 313,100
At 1st January 2017 RZZE—+tF—H—H 50,600 262,500 313,100
Depreciation charge ek - (8,606) (8,606)
Fair value gain N EEWE 1,700 - 1,700
Revaluation surplus EHAKR - 18,056 18,056
At 31st December 2017 RZZE—+tF+-A=+—H 52,300 271,950 324,250

Fair value gain of investment properties is recognised under line item “fair
value gain on revaluation of investment properties” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Revaluation surplus of land and buildings are recognised under line
item “revaluation surplus of land and buildings” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, there were no transfers
between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2016: Nil).

——o0116 Annual Report 2017 3R
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R B RARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold by
the Group to outside customers, less returns and allowances, and revenue from
service contracts, and is analysed as follows:

7. WAR 2 EBER

WATHIEAREE RSMNRE P P EE M (R
BRI ok ARG A KB Z B RE
FE BT

2017 2016

—e—tF  —TAE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Sales of goods HERR 743,382 840,007
Revenue from service contracts RERBAE L2 WA 1,174,071 681,978
1,917,453 1,521,985

The Board has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. The Board
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess the performance and
allocate resources. The Board has determined the operating segments based on
the Group’s internal reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (2016: two) operating divisions —
Information Technology Products (“IT Products”) and Information Technology
Services (“IT Services”). These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information to the chief operating decision maker. The
business nature of each segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products

Being the business of information technology in supplying of information
technology and associated products.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems integration,
software and consulting services, engineering support for products and solutions
and managed services.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-—T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

WA R T BREFR
RERIE L HWERSIINT

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

—o0 118

Year ended 31st December 2017

BE-ZF—+tHF+-A=+t—-HLEFE

IT Products IT Services Total

EAREER BB RH et

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

FExT THET FET

Revenue from external customers FEIMBER ZUA 743,382 1,174,071 1,917,453

Intersegment revenue D EPFEUA 6,847 26,815 33,662

Segment revenue AEBUA 750,229 1,200,886 1,951,115

Reportable segment profit AR 5 B A 57,532 186,795 244,327

Reportable segment assets AMESHEE 220,038 1,318,279 1,538,317

Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 184,594 206,377 390,971

Segment depreciation DEITE 3,037 14,660 17,697

Segment amortisation D EBEESH - 7,304 7,304
Additions to property, plant REWE - BFEREE

and equipment 50 9,586 9,636

Additions to intangible assets NEEFEE - 57 57

Year ended 31st December 2016

HE-_Z—R"E+_A=1+—HBLFE

IT Products IT Services

BARHRE M B ARH AR T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT FHT

Revenue from external customers FEIMBER Z WA 840,007 681,978 1,521,985

Intersegment revenue BRI A 6,813 23,241 30,054

Segment revenue AEUA 846,820 705,219 1,552,039

Reportable segment profit EIEei=an= 1yl 58,196 39,199 97,395

Reportable segment assets AIMESHEE 231,602 310,450 542,052

Reportable segment liabilities AMESHEE 199,717 146,529 346,246

Segment depreciation DEITE 2,258 9,766 12,024

Segment amortisation B E Y - 1,668 1,668
Additions to property, plant NEWME - B K&E

and equipment 83 3,539 3,622
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ArE BIIERER M EE
For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

7. WARDEHER @
(a) DEBEEBUER
AT$RE 5 AT IR A A9 5B Jo A 5 3

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment accounting policies

(b)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in Note 3. Performance is measured

AAREEN G RFMER - REHRBETE
KERFE RN DB ER L ED BREN

based on segment profit that is used by the chief operating decision =

maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment DEENEFTE - FISHRAX T DEE AW
performance. Income tax expense is not allocated to reportable segments. HHE o

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated REFEHWA - B - BEERBEDNERSH

based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segment profit is profit before income tax, excluding unallocated
other income, unallocated other loss, net, share of results of associates,
unallocated loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, unallocated
depreciation for property, plant and equipment that are used for all
segments, fair value gain on revaluation of investment properties, finance
costs and unallocated corporate expenses (mainly include staff costs and
other general administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates, deferred income
tax assets, tax recoverable, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
cash and unallocated corporate assets (mainly include property, plant
and equipment and investment properties that are used by all segments,
prepayments, deposits, other receivables and available-for-sale financial
asset).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax liabilities, deferred
income tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly include
accrued charges of the head office and borrowings).

Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are
reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

EVERBEAESE -

AR E ) BRROE N SRS ADE R -
EARDBEAMKA - KD ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ@l&ﬂa - JE
EBERTREE  RORHEDE  BER
HRZIEBE RAAEDRERZME - BE

R ARDBITE Ef‘ﬁ&ﬁ%%Zﬁﬁ
BEWRE  MERARERER 2R
A (X EBEE TRAREM—RITR
ER) -

AESMNEETE %Hﬁ%%@?*&m iE
EFSMERE - AIRETRIE - ZRHIERTTF
FRTERERS  KOERAREE (X
RBEMADBERZYE BB RREN
RBEWE - BNRIE - 2 EEER
BRAHEEERERE)

ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁT&%Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ SHafE -
BEFRSHABRANEARAB(ZER
?E%%ﬁ#%ﬁiZﬁﬁ#éﬁﬁﬁ& faE) -

(b) AIME 2T HBA - Bt - BER

B ENHER

AEZDBKA - B BERABERR
SERERBEERBABHENT

follows:

Revenue 2017 2016
—ZE—tfF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FHIT
Reportable segment revenue AIFRE D A 1,951,115 1,552,039
Elimination of intersegment revenue EH 7 BPFEUA (33,662) (30,054)

Revenue per consolidated statement of RERE B R AR IR
profit or loss 1,917,453 1,521,985

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )
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e SRR MEE
For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)y 7. WA R D EER (@)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIREZ DB - B - BER
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) BENHERE
Intersegment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of profit mark- 2 EBEU AR B AN B AR YR @
up.
Profit or loss 5 2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Reportable segment profit B Epan: i 244,327 97,395
Unallocated amounts: RO BLFIE
Unallocated other income RO BLE AU 4,008 5,474
Unallocated other loss, net RO BLE M FEE (8,216) (3,874)
Fair value gain on revaluation of BHEEMEZ AR BERE
investment properties 1,700 400
Unallocated loss on disposal of property, RAOMLEYZE - WE &2 EE
plant and equipment (800) (173)
Unallocated depreciation ROBHTE (3,067) (5,472)
Share of results of associates FE(RERE N R ELE (7,111) (8,540)
Finance costs BTSN (17,205) (793)
Unallocated corporate expenses KB ARIAX (143,888) (45,439)
Profit before income tax per consolidated RERE B R VIR BR TS B AR
statement of profit or loss 69,748 38,978
Assets i 2017
—Z2—+tF —T—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Reportable segment assets ARESHEE 1,538,317 542,052
Unallocated assets: KOBEE
Interests in associates B N A i i 46,948 53,458
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTHE E 4,017 953
Tax recoverable AT el F I8 41,334 88
Restricted bank deposits ZRAIRITFR 4,168 876
Bank balances and cash RITEREES 286,771 237,755
Unallocated corporate assets ROBARIEE 343,338 331,146
Total assets per consolidated statement RERE BN KRR EERTE
of financial position 2,264,893 1,166,328
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2017 HZ=F

R B RARMEE

—tF+ZA=t—RLLFE

7. WARDHER @)

(b) AT EZDEWA - BE - BER
BENEER®)

Liabilities 2017 2016

—ET—tfF ZERF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Reportable segment liabilities AWRESHEE 390,971 346,246

Unallocated liabilities: DEEE

Current income tax liabilities BIERFR1SH & & 6,262 7,447

Deferred income tax liabilities RIS BE 74,723 45,899

Unallocated corporate liabilities V2N /NCTN=Er= 695,119 47,703
Total liabilities per consolidated statement — F4R& BAFSMR R HRA & E 4258

of financial position 1,167,075 447,295

The following table sets out information about the geographical segment
location of the Group's revenue from external customers and its non-current
assets (other than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets).
The geographical location of customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the goods were delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location

of the asset in the case of property, plant and equipment and investment TEM

properties, the location of the operations to which they are allocated in the

case of the intangible assets and goodwill, and the location of operations in b o
the case of interests in associates.

TREIEEAEERBINEER ZBAR
FERBEE(ERMIAREERSHEER
S 2B ES R - B ZMRLETYE
RAERERBRE G FAEH - LE
BIRBEEZMRUENS

RELEMEDRBEZEEZBEM 2T
BVEENBEARERDBER 2
FRAES - i = QB SAEEEB A

Place of domicile FriEit Revenue from external customers  Specified non-current assets
REMFEFE ZWA EEERBEE

2017 2016 2017 AONIG
—E—+tF T—F —E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$’OOO HK$'000 HK$'000
FB T TR Tisr
Hong Kong B 1,421,800 1,422,442 332,603 326,150
United States of America (“US”)  EFMBREE ([E ) 411,446 - 890,827 -
Russia RERHT - - 4,751 -
Ukraine S| - - 2,163 -
Poland B - - 845 -
Singapore s - - 45,660 52,504
Mainland China AR B K B 5,924 3,371 610 823
Macau SERPY 32,441 25,302 1,367 1,113
Thailand R 32,249 51,008 130 107
Taiwan B 13,593 19,862 169 374
1,917,453 1,521,985 1,279,125 381,071
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A B RARMIEE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 HHE T —+F+_A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Information about major customers

The Group has a large number of customers, no revenue from any individual
customer exceeded 10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the years ended
31st December 2017 and 2016.

8. OTHER INCOME

7. WARDHER @)
FEEFHPER

AEERERERF BE-_ZT—LHFE-F
—RETZA=ZT-RIEFE - #EkEEE
ABPHWRABBAREE AT 10% AL

8. HMKA

2017
—E—+F NE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Interest on bank deposits RITIFRFE 137 40
Rental income from investment properties REKEWE ZASUWA (H7E20)

(Note 20) 3,651 3,639
Rental income from sublease REER s HeBA 326 311
Bad debts recovery AR - 185
Others Efth 1,572 1,622

5,686 5,797

9. OTHER LOSS, NET

HittFEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWIE « BE L& #E 2 EE (800) (182)
Gain on deemed disposal of partial interests BIEHEHE AR D w2 W (MEE31)
in associates (Note 31) - 5,714
Changes in fair value on contingent consideration FEfSARBEIA A BEZE) (FH5E39)
payable (Note 39) (3.221) -
Provision for customers’ claim BEPRERE (3,642) (9,630)
Impairment loss on interests in associates Bt N Rl RO E TR (BT 5E 22)
(Note 22) (4,400) -
Exchange gain, net b W 2 FE 3,847 224
(8,216) (3,874)
10. FINANCE INCOME 10. B UL A

Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon initial
recognition of finance lease receivables to their fair values.

11. FINANCE COSTS

FBRABNFIRE AR BEERELRERE
FIRR R ARIRAE I -

B R AN

1.

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Interest on bank borrowings IRITIEEFE 7,284 549
Interest on liability component of convertible AR ESFBERD 28

bonds 9,910 -

Other interest expenses HEaF B 1" 244

17,205 793
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12. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration:

Audit services
— Current year
— Underprovision in respect of prior year
Non-audit services

Depreciation and amortisation:
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 19)
— Intangible assets (included in cost of services

rendered) (Note 21)

Directors’ emoluments (Note 14)

Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’
emoluments) (Note 13)

Transaction costs for acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 39)

Operating lease rentals in respect of:
— Office premises and staff quarter
— Computer equipment

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(Note 26)

Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables (Note 26)

Provision for obsolete inventories, net

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS HRRME
For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

12. BRFTS B AT &R

BRFTS B A& R S0, (FEA) ToIE1E

2017 2016
—E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
ZERME & -
ZBURTS
- REFE 3,212 1,238
- BAEFEREETR 113 62
AL H AR 1,253 460
Pree R
- W% - BB MR AE (BRE19) 20,764 17,496
- BREEE (BREERERE 2HA)

(MisE21) 7,304 1,668
EFE2ME (H5E14) 7,907 5,587
EERMAZ (TRIEESME) (KIFE13)

717,519 430,213
U BE BB A R A S AN (B EE39)
9,025 5,575
KERBERES
-RAEMERBIRS 19,970 6,863
- BB 426 418
FEWE 5 F IR B (it 26)
541 4,187
FEN B 5 FIH 2 BB R ERE (K5 26)
(107) (4)
REFEREFE 78 69

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

B EERIFAX (TREESEHE)

2017 2016

—E—tfF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHBxT
Salaries and other benefits e REMBET 645,261 398,099
Performance related incentive bonus FRIRA M2 RENIEAL 57,937 21,191
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR D AEM S 2 X 3,214 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFET AR 11,107 10,923
717,519 430,213
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

14. EEM &
BRI EWAER - FBCRANERIE 383 (1) 15 IA
FBARARI(BWEBEEEFZER) BONE 2 BHERN
BE2MEMT -

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors” emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure

of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2017

—Z2—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Fees we 543 616

Other emoluments: EAbBiE -

Salaries and other benefits e REAMEN 2,851 2,125
Performance related incentive bonus FRIRE 2 BEEEAL 3,428 2,846
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIET R - -
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR 1 AER S 4 2 X 1,085 -
7,907 5,587

AR BN SN N\ (ZB—AF : L) EF
ZBEmT ;

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2016: seven) directors
were as follows:

Year ended 31st December 2017
BE-E—tE+t-A=t-HLEE

Performance
related Equity-settled
incentive  Retirement share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits ~ &FEEEZ contributions SR 43
Fees HeR HEEAL BIEN AREEXM Total
Name of director He HitEH (HizEa) SRR ZHX wam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx
Executive directors gz
Wang Weihang T#Mm 55 - - - - 55
Wang Yueou (Note b) T8 (fizth) - 231 3,428 - 691 6,490
Non-executive directors FHTES
Li Wei & 77 480 - - 197 754
Cui Yong ER 55 - - - 197 252
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Pan Xinrong RS 121 - - - - 121
Deng Jianxin B 134 - - - - 134
Or Siu Ching, Rerina (Note ¢) TN (s 68 - - - - 68
Ye Fang (Note d) 25 iz d) 33 - - - - 33
543 2,851 3,428 - 1,085 7,907
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 10 EEME
Year ended 31st December 2016
ToASt-RILFE
Performance
related Equity-settled
incentive Retirement  share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
contributions 5
Fees 7 RIRAEA
Name of director ik HiwizHl (R FEIfR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Executive directors gz
Wang Weihang THM 55 - - - - 55
Wang Yueou (Note b) TEE(fizh) - 1,885 2,846 - - 4,731
Non-executive directors FHTES
Li Wei T 77 240 - - - 317
Cui Yong ER 55 - - - - 55

Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES

Pan Xinrong B 147 - - - - 147
Deng Jianxin e 161 - - - - 161
Ye Fang (Note d) 255 (it d) 121 - - - - 121

616 2,125 2,846 - - 5,587

Notes: B &E

(@)  The performance related incentive bonus are determined as a percentage of profit for (@ RABBZEBEANERASEFEHEHNZESD
the year of the Group. LLEETE -

(b) Mr. Wang Yueou was re-designated from the Acting Chief Executive Officer to the (b) FEBLEERREITRASATAITHRAHILE
Chief Executive Officer and resigned as the Chief Financial Officer and the Joint EARRMBRERBEADWE BN
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 1st September 2016. FENA—RRRER -

() Ms. Or Siu Ching, Rerina was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of (0 FNELZLTEZEAARRVEIIFNITES 8
the Company with effect from 1st April 2017. Tt FMA—BEER -

(d) Ms. Ye Fang resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company with d EFZTHEEARRBIUIFNTES B=F
effect from 1st April 2017. —tFMA—HEBER -

During the year ended 31st December 2017, no remuneration has been paid by HEZZT—tF+-A=+—HILFE ~&H

the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group WEAFESMAREEMZN M - WEH

and no directors have waived any remuneration (2016: Nil). EERETAME (ZT—RF &) o
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15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included one (2016:
one) director, details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 14 above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2016: four) highest paid individuals for the

year were as follows:

15 EE5EeHZER

FALEESHZRERE R (ZF—NF:
—R)EF REZMSFBEER LXME 148
B FREBIE(ZF—RF : OR) 2&SHH
REZMEFBOT

2017 2016

—E—t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Salaries and other benefits Fre REMET 5,018 5,802
Performance related incentive bonus FRIRB M2 REIEAL 8,587 8,269
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIEFIFEI LR 175 165
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LARR ) AT S 1~ 2 FsZ 889 -
14,669 14,236

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000

2,000,001 %7 % 2,500,000 87T

2,500,001 %7 % 3,000,000 7 7T
3,000,001 7T % 3,500,000 47T
4,500,001 7T % 5,000,000 87T
5,500,001 /& T % 6,000,000 /7T

BEZMENFTIIEE

Number of individuals

AR
2017 2016
—g—tF  —FAE
1
1 2
= 1
2 —
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16. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

16. FISHiRAX

2017
—E—tF

HK$'000
FET

2016
ZE—RF
HK$'000
FHT

Current taxation: BNEAREIE -
Hong Kong profits tax EENEH 10,316 10,723
Overseas taxation YEINRIE 19,260 509
Under/(Over)-provision in respect of prior years: B FEEE TR, (GBEEEME) :
Hong Kong profits tax EENEH 109 (223)
Overseas taxation BN 110 (114)
29,795 10,895
Deferred taxation (Note 37): RERTE (3E37) -
Current year RNEFE 2,802 (714)
Effect of change in US tax rate EREBERRE 2 E (15,428) -
(12,626) (714)
Income tax expense FriSHiF 17,169 10,181

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries and regions in which the Group operates.

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits

of the consolidated entities as follows:

mr

EENSHEIRBAT EAERTOEF LR =
16.5% (—ZT— /4 : 16.5%) {EH B - i8HNE
FZ BRIBRRBAFEEHHERT S MR ER
EEEBAERR LR 2 BITHRTE o

AR BB ATSTHATE N 2 B8 SRR A E AR A O
EREMZIMEFORESHZEReBIER

2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Profit before income tax W 1S R0 A g A 69,748 38,978
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% BEBHNERMHE16.5%TE 2 HE
(2016: 16.5%) (ZZF—"F 1 16.5%) 11,508 6,431
Tax effects of: ML
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose TERLHS 75 BN Al HRL 2 2 H 9,914 2,541
Income not taxable for tax purpose TERLH 75 T FE AR B 2 WA (1,748) (1,255)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas operations Z/&/NEEATEH 2 TR R 2 £ 7,857 (414)
Tax losses not recognised KRIER 2 BIEE B 3,370 1,599
Under/(Over)-provision in prior years BEFERENR (GBEEE) 219 (337)
Others Eio 1,477 1,616
32,597 10,181
Re-measurement of deferred income B AR R S IR IE (M)
tax due to change in US tax rate (Note) (15,428) -
Income tax expense FriSBiF 17,169 10,181
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16. Fr3RiBA X ()

16. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

17.

—o0 128

Note:
Following the enactment of the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act on 22nd December 2017 which
amongst other measures, reduced the US federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to

21%, the Group has re-measured its deferred income tax as at 31st December 2017 and
recognised a reduction of relevant deferred income tax of approximately HK$15,428,000.

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 24.6% (2016: 26.1%).

DIVIDENDS

Dividends proposed: FORAR S,

MfE -

EECRBEARELIR=_Z—+F+=_A=+=H%E
e HEEeIESERB A CEMBHERA3% #
221%  ARAEESESHHAEER T —+F+=A
=+ —HOREMSEE - WRERMEBRERSERDL
15,428,000 87T ©

ML ERAE R B246%(-F — KE:
26.1%) ©

17. B2

2017
—F—tF —ERF

HK$°000
FHT

HK$°000
THIT

Final dividend in respect of the year ended HE-_ZT—+H+-_A=+—
31st December 2017 of 1.0 HK cent LFEE 2 R B &0l (FH5Ea)
per share (Note a) 6,705 -
The directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend EFERAREBRENBEZE_Z—+tF+ A

of 1.0 HK cent per share for the year ended 31st December 2017. Subject to
the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
proposed dividend will be paid on or before 8th June 2018 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 29th May
2018 (2016: Nil).

=+ —HIEFESBI1.0B I Z REE - #K
B B REIEERTT 2 REBF A S ERERIL
ARABBR B NEXNANRHZARAR-F
—NFHEAZTNBRFINARBBRAM 2K
RN FERAR S (2T —RF ) -

Note: BfisE
(@) The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2017, as referred to (@ FlEZE—_Z—+F+_A=+—HIEEE#
above, is calculated on the basis of 670,544,804 ordinary shares in issue as at 31st IRAERERER-_ZE—tF+_A=+—HE

December 2017 and at a final dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share. The actual amount of
final dividend payable in respect of the year ended 31st December 2017 will be subject
to the actual number of ordinary shares in issue on the record date, which is expected
to be on 29th May 2018.

Annual Report 2017 & #f

E17,2.670,544,804 ¢ E @K R FA 1.0l 2 K
HREFHE BHE_T—+tF+-_A=+—H1It
FEZERERNRPRE BRI ZEHT
LTREREBEHEET  BHLEEHA-T N
FRA-+HIA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. ZREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity RRBIRAFE ABIEERER REERF TR
holders of the Company is based on the following data: TEIEIEEE
2016
—ERF
HK$'000
FHT
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings R E BREAREF] 2 & F]
per share 52,579 28,797
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BN E s B EBRE
— Interest on convertible bonds (Note (ii)) - ARRRE S 2 FILE (R G) 9,910 -
Earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings RAUGTESRESZN 2 B
per share 62,489 28,797

Number of shares
RHBEE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF

‘000 ‘000

T T &
(Restated)
(%&£ =71)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares AU EERERRBT 2 @R MET9E

for the purpose of basic earnings per share (BREEG))
(Note (i) 585,061 411,231
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BECENE 2 BT EBR R
— Share options (Note (iii)) — B A (B i) 82 265
— Convertible bonds (Note (ii)) - AJHARRE 5 (P 5 (i) 219,178 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AU ESREERT 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share T AR e S E 804,321 411,496
Notes: BREE -
(i) The 585,061,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number of () E@pk 585 061,000l EKER—ZE—+FFANE
ordinary shares in issue during year 2017 after taking into account the effects of rights BATEBIRM INAET S th ARREBEC

issue (Note 32(iii)) and bonus issue (Note 32(iv)) being completed during the year ended
31st December 2017.

The 411,231,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during year 2016 after taking into account the effects of bonus
issue (Note 32(ii)) being completed during the year ended 31st December 2016 and
rights issue (Note 32(iii)) and bonus issue (Note 32(iv)) being completed during the year
ended 31st December 2017.

(i) The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st December (ii)

2017 is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, adjusted
to reflect the interest of the convertible bonds issued by the Company during the
year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of the diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31st December 2017 have taken into account
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed conversion of the convertible bonds into ordinary shares
for the year.

(i)  The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31st December (iii)
2017 and 2016 assumed the exercise of the share options of the Company granted in
March and May 2012 (Note 38(i)), but not on the share options granted in March, April
and December 2017 (Note 38(ii)) which are considered as anti-dilutive as the average
market price of the ordinary shares of the Company is less than the exercise price of
these share options.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )

? tFE A=+ —HIEFE AR E
32(iii)) RFEATHIAR (TR 32(v) 2 %% -

%@%411231oooHﬁ)&EEA::—ﬁiimE
BEITERRMINETSE - WEFRREE

_/\£F+ A=1+— Eiirnmﬁ%TTilﬂﬁ(m?
32i)) KREBEE=_T—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

e Rk (AR (BT R 32(i)) R B ATAL AR (M 32(v) 2
FE -

BE_ZT—tH+-A=Z+-RALFEZER
%EQWE@F$ RIRR AT B A 15 ) ) 5t

CERABEARBRARRNEARZ BEITAIAR
E%Zﬂé RAFERBE—Z—tH+-A
=+ — B IEFE 2 BREE B AR A R0 g
FHEBRHECRERRRFAFTRERES
BREn L ERE B EEETOMETFEER
g -

BE_Z—tR-Z-RFT-A=+—HLF
Rz e8BEERNDBRERRFANR_-_E——_F=
ARR A2 AR HE (P 5 38()) B&TTE - M
R-ZZE—tF=A WARTZAREZBEE
(P RE 38(ii) AR HAEN - ZEBRERERA
REEZE  TTARARR AR 2 FHHER
RSB ZITEE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. 2% - BERRE

Furniture Computer
[ENGEN and and office
buildings fixtures Motor equipment
it HRR vehicles BiER Total
REF RE RE BAERE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TET BT BT BT
At 1st January 2016 R-B-x&E-A—-A
Cost or valuation AREE 259,650 31,362 1,579 127,918 420,509
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE - (26,788) (624) (114,615) (142,027)
Net book amount HREFE 259,650 4,574 955 13,303 278,482
Year ended 31st December 2016 BE-E-RE+T-A=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount BIRETE 259,650 4,574 955 13,303 278,482
Additions NE - 2,297 - 2,210 4,507
Disposals & - (208) - (10) (218)
Depreciation and amortisation charge IEREER (8,243) (1,655) (278) (7,320) (17,496)
Exchange realignment RS - (39 - 3 (36)
Revaluation surplus SHAE 11,093 - - - 11,093
Closing net book amount BAREETE 262,500 4,969 677 8,186 276,332
At 31st December 2016 RZB-<E+=A=+—-H
Cost or valuation AR E 262,500 26,858 1,579 125,115 416,052
Accumulated depreciation 25HE - (21,889) (902) (116,929) (139,720)
Net book amount REFE 262,500 4,969 677 8,186 276,332
Comprising: ‘B
At cost A - 26,858 1,579 125,115 153,552
At valuation fhifE 262,500 - - - 262,500
262,500 26,858 1,579 125,115 416,052
At 1st January 2017 R=Z—-t5-A-H
Cost or valuation PR HE 262,500 26,858 1,579 125,115 416,052
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE - (21,889) (902) (116,929) (139,720)
Net book amount REFE 262,500 4,969 677 8,186 276,332
Year ended 31st December 2017 BE-E—+tE+-A=t-HILEE
Opening net book amount BYREFE 262,500 4,969 677 8,186 276,332
Additions HE - 569 102 9,932 10,603
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) WeRg M B AR (M13E39) - 1,239 - 5,643 6,882
Disposals & - (829) - (13) (842)
Depreciation and amortisation charge ~ #7& R 540k (8,606) (2,041) (285) (9,832) (20,764)
Exchange realignment B 5 A% - 34 - 754 788
Revaluation surplus BRHAE 18,056 - - - 18,056
Closing net book amount BRERFE 271,950 3,941 494 14,670 291,055
At 31st December 2017 R-ZB—-tF+=B=+-H
Cost or valuation A EE 271,950 28,363 1,961 149,985 452,259
Accumulated depreciation 2EtHE - (24,422) (1,467) (135,315) (161,204)
Net book amount REFE 271,950 3,941 494 14,670 291,055
Comprising: a8
At cost D% - 28,363 1,961 149,985 180,309
At valuation b 271,950 - - - 271,950
271,950 28,363 1,961 149,985 452,259
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings were stated as valuations made at 31st December
2017 and 2016. The land and buildings were last revalued by an independent
professional valuer, at 31st December 2017 and 2016, at market value basis
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions
for similar properties. The revaluation gave rise to a revaluation surplus net
of applicable deferred income taxes of approximately HK$15,077,000 (2016:
HK$9,263,000) which has been credited to the property revaluation reserve.
Details of fair value measurements are set out in Note 6(d).

As at 31st December 2017, if the land and buildings had not been revalued,
they would have been included in these consolidated financial statements at
historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortisation, of approximately
HK$40,099,000 (2016: HK$42,165,000).

Depreciation and amortisation of the Group's property, plant and equipment have
been charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

19. 9%  BEERRE®

AEEZLHEBFIER-_Z—tFR-ZF
—RETZAZT-RZMHESIR - L RET
BE—RBBIEEGEMN - E—tFR-F
—RET A= T - RERmEEERETER
T2EMS LRENEIRR S 2EHERE -
BHEENRBAREMEREELSHAKLY
#$15,077,0007% 7t ( —F — X4 : 9,263,000/
7o) B ARYEEEFHE - AR EEFE
FBEHRME ) -

RZZ—tF+ZA=+—H ' WEHREFRK
WEM - HERFELRA (05 RATITE REH)
#) 440,099,000 70 (ZZF — /<4 © 42,165,000
BIL) st ARSI A MBHRE -

REEZ % - BB MRz ITE REHED (AR
BRERTHENT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHT

Cost of goods sold and services rendered HE RRERS 2K A 12,505 10,533
Selling expenses HEEH 2,544 2,325
Administrative expenses 1TEE A 5,715 4,638
20,764 17,496

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had pledged land and buildings with
carrying amount of HK$271,950,000 (2016: HK$107,250,000) to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group as mentioned in Note 46.
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—o0 132

20. REY %

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT

At valuation e
At 1st January m—H—AH 50,600 50,200
Fair value gain N EEKE 1,700 400
At 31st December Wt+ZA=+—H 52,300 50,600

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss:

AT SO R IRERER -

2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$’'000 HK$’'000

TR FET

Rental income (Note 8) WA (HFE8) 3,651 3,639
Direct operating expense arising from investment EAMSUWA Z R EVERMEL Y

properties that generate rental income BHELEERE 348 337

The investment properties of the Group were last revalued by an independent
professional valuer at 31st December 2017 and 2016 at market value basis,
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions for
similar properties. Details of fair value measurement are set out in Note 6(d).

The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases are set out in Note 44.

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had pledged investment properties with
carrying amount of HK$52,300,000 (2016: Nil) to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group as mentioned in Note 46.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

N BEREREE

21. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill Intangible assets
BmE B EE
Deferred
development
cost Technical Customer
413 know-how relationships Total
BERA AT AR EFB% o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT THEL BT TET BT
At 1st January 2016 R=E-<E-A—-H
Cost A - 5,006 - - 5,006
Accumulated amortisation ZEEB LA
and impairment - (2,657) - - (2,657)
Net book amount RmFE - 2,349 - - 2,349
Year ended 31st December 2016 BE-Z-AEt-A=1T-HLEE
Opening net book amount HRmFE - 2,349 - - 2,349
Amortisation B - (1,668) - - (1,668)
Closing net book amount BREETE - 681 - - 681
At 31st December 2016 and RZB-XE+ZA=t-HK
1st January 2017 —E2-t§¥-B-H
Cost B - 5,006 - - 5,006
Accumulated amortisation and ZEBERAE
impairment - (4,325) - - (4,325)
Net book amount EmEE - 681 - - 681
Year ended 31st December 2017 BE2_Z—t5+-A=1t-HLEE
Opening net book amount BOREHE - 631 - - 681
Additions HE - - 57 - 57
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) LEEUNT IR 764,920 - 2,165 122,985 125,150
Amortisation i - (681) (583) (6,040) (7,304)
Exchange realignment R 4,579 - " 728 739
Closing net book amount BREETE 769,499 - 1,650 117,673 119,323
At 31st December 2017 RZB-t&+=-A=+—-H
Cost B 769,499 5,006 2,234 123,721 130,961
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEERAE
impairment - (5,006) (584) (6,048) (11,638)
Net book amount REFE 769,499 - 1,650 117,673 119,323
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21.
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BB HRRME
— A= ALLER

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2017, amortisation of approximately
HK$7,304,000 (2016: HK$1,668,000) has been charged to “cost of services
rendered” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is attributable to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") of the
Grid Dynamics Group and is allocated to the IT Services operating segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined from value in use
calculations based on cash flow projections from formally approved financial
budgets and forecasts covering a five-year period. The cash flows for the
subsequent years are extrapolated from the fifth year cash flow using 2.2%
growth rate, and discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 19.45%.

The discount rate reflects current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate used was based on historical
growth and past experience and did not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

The recoverable amount has been determined to be higher than the carrying
amount of the CGU, and thus no impairment is required.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22 BHENTRER
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET T
At 1st January »—A—H 53,458 58,382
Deemed disposal of partial interests R S QR B0 2 W
in associates (Note 31) (PRFEE31) - 5,714
Share of results of associates il NCIE S (7,111) (8,540)
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) FE(RE & AR E M EE R (B58)
of associates 1,004 (686)
Impairment loss on interests in associates B N Bl R EE 1R (4,400) -
Dividends received BUAR S (484) (486)
Exchange realignment Rk 4,481 (926)
At 31st December “t+=—A=+—H 46,948 53,458
Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2017 and 2016 RZE—EFR-FE-—R"F+A=+—H &
are as follows: SEZ I EHEBERTFFAT
Country/place Percentage of issued
of incorporation ordinary share capital held
and operations indirectly by the Company
Name of associate MR RAEE 2 AATEEEE Principal activities
B N R EE Bx 2 ERTEBERAZBEHL FEEK
2017 2016
—E—tF =
iN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau 33.3% 33.3% Provision of engineering and
BE R CRFT) BRAF] JBRFT software services
TR T2 R AR TS
ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited Thailand 49% 49% Provision of engineering and
FE software services
R TIR REHAR
i-Sprint Holdings Ltd. (“i-Sprint”) Cayman Islands 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding
(Note) (Hfi&E) FEES B AR
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22 BHE N EIRERE ()
Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2017 and 2016 RZE—EFR-FE-—R"F+A=+—H &
are as follows: (Continued) EEZIELTHERARFBEOT - (8)
Country/place Percentage of issued
of incorporation ordinary share capital held
and operations indirectly by the Company
Name of associate AR R AR 2 AL EEESE Principal activities
BENREH EES: 1 ERTEBERETZBEAL FEEK
2017 2016
—E—tF T—7N
i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited Hong Kong 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing, and
T (B8 BHE AR AR BE implementing technology

risk management products
RS 85 2 B R R

[ e T E O BT
Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42% Provision of software
I REHABRHEAREEAF H development, distributing,

implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products
RMHEHHEE - 2 Bk
ZERNERERERES

i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42% Provision of software
L (L) B AREEAA H development, distributing,

implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products
REEMMRE 2 Bk
XERMERERERES

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Singapore 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding, provision
AN of developing, distributing,

implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products

REER - REME - D8

Bk ERMERERERER

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing,
SRS implementing and

supporting technology

risk management products
RS - B M BRI
[\ B FR E R T

——o0 136 Annual Report 2017 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2017 and 2016
are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place
of incorporation
and operations

Name of associate MR R A 2
NG Bx, o B

2017

—E—tF

i-Sprint Innovations Inc. The US 35.42%
e

i-Sprint Investment Limited Hong Kong 35.42%
BAE

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co. Ltd. Thailand 35.42%
ZR

Note:

i-Sprint was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4th August 2016, i-Sprint and i-Sprint
Innovations Pte Ltd has undertaken a share swap during the year 2016 and as a result of the
share swap, i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd became a wholly-owned subsidiary of i-Sprint and
the Group continue to hold the same equity interest in i-Sprint.

At 31st December 2017, the management of the Group carried out impairment
review on the carrying amount of the investment in i-Sprint Group by comparing
the estimated recoverable amount using the value in use with the carrying
amount of the investment in i-Sprint Group.

In determining the value in use of the investment, the Group estimated the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by
i-Sprint Group, including cash flows from the operations of i-Sprint Group and
estimated terminal value. Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount
of i-Sprint Group is lower than its carrying amount. Hence, an impairment
loss of HK$4,400,000 on the interests in i-Sprint Group was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31st December
2017.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )

22 RN TR )

RZE—tFRZT—R"F+ZA=+—H ' &K
EB 2 IEEBANRFBOT - (B)

Percentage of issued
ordinary share capital held
indirectly by the Company

AR B EESE

Principal activities

ERTEERSZH G EEXK

2016

35.42% Provision of distributing and
implementing technology

risk management products

RS 85 [ BT

[ B B TR BT

35.42% Investment holding,
provision of distributing and

implementing technology

risk management products

REER - 1R 85 R E Rl

[\ B IR E R T

35.42% Provision of distributing,
implementing and
supporting technology
risk management products
RO - Fit LSRR
B EREmES
B E
i-Sprint R =T —XFEN\AMNBRHASHSEMAKRT
i-Sprint X i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd A =% — /N E#17
% - R B4R - i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd X /4
i-Sprint I —REEMIBAR] - MAEEEEFH I-Sprint
HAE R AR -

RZE2—tF+-R=+—0B KrEEEERED
FBLLER-Sprint R B AN B EMBEERLED
AU O S REEEERTEE - SR -Sprint SR EIR AR ER
EEETRER °

RETEREANFEREER - AEEBMHEi-Sprint
SEEFEMEE Z G ARRR SR E (BIFi-Sprint
FEEBKEEENRSRENSRER) 2R
B o RIFEFTAE - i-Sprint EEM AT E £ RN E
FREE- Al REE-ZT—+Ft+=-A=+—
BIEFE - RERABmARI-Sprint R B R ER
JR{ENET 18 4,400,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The financial information of i-Sprint Group, which are material associates
accounted for using the equity method, are as below:

22, BRE N TR )

RAREOEANR 2 EERE D F)i-Sprint £ 8 2 8

HERT ¢

2017

—e—tx
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current assets EMENEE 38,927 27,126
Current assets MBEE 58,865 117,185
Current liabilities mEAE (35,918) (71,204)
Net assets FEE 61,874 73,107
Revenue WA 144,528 106,913
Loss for the year FAEE (22,696) (24,427)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hib 2w (E18) 2,835 (1,840)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEIBERE (19,861) (26,267)

Group’s share of: AEE L :

Loss for the year FAEE (7,929) (9,063)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hih 2wl (858) 1,004 (686)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEEERE (6,925) (9,749)
Dividend received BUARE - -

The financial information of iN Systems (Macao) Limited, which is not a material

associate of the Group, is as below:

Group’s aggregate share of net assets

AEBELE—EBEAR

WIFARBEEA B2 N RERE RGN CRF)

BRABZHHEMMT

2017
—B—tHF

HK$'000
FET

2016

—g A&
HK$'000
Tt

of an associate ZIFAERRE 1,288 954
Group's share of: AEBEG :
Profit for the year F R 818 523
Other comprehensive income Eib 2 E e - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEN =BT 818 523
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22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 2 BERNTREE W
A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying T B E R E RN -Sprint EB R B E RG
amount of each of the investments in i-Sprint Group and iN Systems (Macao) BHE CRFY) AR AF® B 2 REREE HARD
Limited is set out below: N

iN Systems
(Macao) Limited
i-Sprint Group BERGZRH
i-Sprint &£ H CRFM)BRAE

2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tE —FT-AF ZE-tF —FAF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’'000

FHxT FAT FTHET FHT

Total net assets of associates B N R FEEET 61,874 73,107 3,865 2,864
Portion of ownership interests REBEMEE

held by Group ZIRAEERTS 35.42% 35.42% 33.33% 33.33%

Group’s share of net assets of associates AEEEGBEARFEAE 21,916 25,894 1,288 954

Others Hith (3.681) (2,611) - -

Goodwill B 27,425 29,221 - -

Carrying amount of the interests in associates 4R & 8175 R

in the consolidated financial statements iR =N
EziREE 45,660 52,504 1,288 954
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of ASL Automated REBE DRI HEREE(GASL Automated Services
Services (Thailand) Limited. The amounts of unrecognised share of results of this (Thailand) Limited 518 © FE(5 5285 & A Bl 2 F A
associate, extracted from the relevant management accounts of the associate, LBtz REREE B (HEamE AR 2H
both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows: AEERE)MT
2017
—E—tfF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Unrecognised share of (gain)/loss FRARMEREG— B E QTR
of an associate for the year pAC e IVE ] (1) 5
Other comprehensive income Efh 2 E e - -
Total comprehensive (income)/loss for the year FRRE (W) EiBRE (1) 5
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses RET AR RN — MBS AR
of an associate pd = 606 607
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

—o0 140

Unlisted equity investment, at cost less
impairment losses

FEEMBHERE - WAABRER R

B AHHETHEE

2017
—E—tf

HK$°000
FET

HK$'000
FHT

598 -

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group entered into the
agreement with Teamsun, Pansky Technology Corporation Ltd. and Beijing
Honggiao Technology Co., Ltd. to establish a company in the PRC, pursuant
to which the Group committed to subscribe for 10% equity interest in the
PRC company with capital contribution of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$11,965,000). As at 31st December 2017, the Group has injected
RMB500,000 (equivalent to HK$598,000) to the investment and classified the
investment as available-for-sale financial asset.

The unlisted equity investment is stated at cost less impairment losses as the
investment do not have quoted market prices in an active market and the range
of reasonable fair value estimates are so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

h =,
24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 4. REHE S Z2EMIA
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line SRMITAZEHERE RN TIIEE !
items below:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables ERREWRIE
Trade receivables JEWE 55808 275,952 166,651
Other receivables and deposits H b FEUGIE KR ® 8,541 9,455
Finance lease receivables W mEREFRIE 6,917 8,299
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHIIRITEK 4,168 876
Bank balances and cash RITFRRES 286,771 237,755
582,349 423,036
Available-for-sale financial asset AHHESHEE 598 -
582,947 423,036
Financial liabilities SsRBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHERRIRZeMEE
Trade payables ERTE 5508 175,802 185,380
Other payables and accruals HAb P IE R ERHE R 153,904 72,909
Borrowings BE 492,982 10,000
822,688 268,289
Financial liabilities at fair value through BRAAEESGABENESREE
profit or loss
Contingent consideration payable FERTSARAE 136,691 -
959,379 268,289
1
25. INVENTORIES 5. 78
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Goods held for resale FEEE &Y 45,662 45,983
Goods pending for customers’ acceptance BEREPEMZEY 82,419 82,431
128,081 128,414
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25. FE& @

REBEZENREREPEMZENTIERE
iR A B M EE R

25. INVENTORIES (continued)

Goods held for resale and goods pending for customers’ acceptance mainly
represent computer equipment and software products.

HE-_Z—+tE+-_A=+—BLEECHER
BRI W ATHERA ] RII2EES 2
A 2 7B A5 Bl 49/ 635,062,000 % 7T K&
267,202,000 7T (=& — /X4 : 727,835,000 7%
Tt} 223,717,000 7C) °

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the cost of inventories recognised
as expenses and included in “cost of goods sold” and “cost of services rendered”
amounted to approximately HK$635,062,000 and HK$267,202,000 (2016:
HK$727,835,000 and HK$223,717,000), respectively.

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. FEWE 5 FIH

2017 2016

e T s

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

Trade receivables — gross FEWE 5 0E - 4A%E 281,637 171,432
Less: provision for impairment R E R (5,685) (4,781)

Trade receivables — net JEWE 5 F0H - 58 275,952 166,651

AEBZAEREFPEARALEYZEE30REFEEH -
AEBRDEEEE SRS EERBRE R
1K - BREREHENZ FAREMEL EHE
= o

The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 days
and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management.

REERR - BRESFEZREDTAT

Based on the invoice dates, the aging analysis of the trade receivables, is as

—o0 142

follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHT
0 - 30 days 0% 30Kk 136,266 86,186
31 -60 days 3160k 51,806 41,230
61 —90 days 61ZF 90K 43,326 21,314
Over 90 days BB 90K 50,239 22,702
281,637 171,432
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables as at the reporting date, based
on ageing from payment due date, is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

26. EWNE ZFIE )

FEWE 5 IR RERNEIR B RIB N B A 2 BR

BT

2017 2016
—E—tfF —FRE

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FAT

Not yet past due R Hf 149,210 101,214
Within 30 days 30 KA 41,573 30,194
31 - 60 days 31E 60K 40,854 18,371
61— 90 days 61Z 90K 24,032 6,449
Over 90 days [ E 0PN 25,968 15,204
281,637 171,432

As at 31st December 2017, trade receivables of approximately HK$126,742,000
(2016: HK$65,437,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

As at 31st December 2017, trade receivables of approximately HK$5,685,000
(2016: HK$4,781,000) were past due and impaired. These receivables are
individually determined to be impaired, and full provision has been made on
these receivables. Those debtors have defaulted in the scheduled payments after
due dates and the Group performed an assessment and concluded the chance
of recovering the account receivables is low such that full impairment had been
recognised in respect of these receivables.

Movements of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

RZB—tEF+ZA=+—R BREZFEY
126,742,0003% 7T ( = F — X % : 65,437,000/
) BEEBERTRE - ZFEKE ZFRHE
ZRWRI R LB EFHR -

RIZ2—tF+-RA=+—8 EREZFEY
5,685,000 87T (ZF—7<4F : 4,781,000/87L) B
BER D TRERE - BREEWRSIESERNZP
BEITRE - WERSREFIRIEH 2 8RE -
ERARE R REARETHENR  MALE
EEITRHMELETE W @ BRI e RIE - i)
ERRERNGRERZEME

REE 2 EWE S TR BERBZSHIT

follows:

2017 2016

—T—tF —T—RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHT

At 1st January »—A—A 4,781 598
Acquisition of subsidiaries gL =NG] 156 -
Provision for impairment (Note 12) B R (PEE12) 541 4,187
Reversal of provision for impairment (Note 12) AR ERE (ME12) (107) (4)
Exchange realignment (RIS 314 -
At 31st December R+=Z—A=+—H 5,685 4,781

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there

is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

26. BN E Z FKE ()
IR 5 2B LA T B M HE -

2017 2016

—E—tF = —RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT T

HKD BT 163,423 149,166
usD Vi 97,536 10,280
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR 5,494 4,353
Thailand Baht (“THB") ZEK 2,155 2,044
Macau Pataca (“MOP") ks 9,486 3,807
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD") Ak 3,072 1,476
Others Hi 471 306
281,637 171,432

As at 31st December 2017 and 2016, the carrying amounts of trade receivables

approximate their fair values.

27. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The total minimum lease receivables under finance leases and their present values

at the reporting date are as follows:

A
BEEE -

27. B mEHERIE

R-Z—+EFE+-A=+—BE-_ZT—RE+
+—HB BRESHHBEZEMSEEAR

I

AT AREREREFRR IR A 2 RIEEKHE

BBk ERE:

2017
—g—tf

HK$’'000
TExT

2016

HK$'000
THT

Non-current receivables: IERENFEWRIE -

Gross finance lease receivables FEM B E T E IH AR EE 3,475 4,254

Unearned finance income RERELZ BB WA (150) (219)
3,325 4,035

Current receivables: TENFEWRIE ¢

Gross finance lease receivables e R E T E SRR 3,836 4,552

Unearned finance income REREN 2 g A WA (244) (288)
3,592 4,264

Gross receivables from finance leases: REBERE ZERFIBHALE :

Not later than 1 year —FR 3,836 4,254

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FERAFR 3,475 4,552

Gross finance lease receivables FEM & T E I AR R 7,311 8,806

Unearned finance income RERELZ gE WA (394) (507)

Net finance lease receivables ERmEHEREFE 6,917 8,299

The net finance lease receivables are EUEBEEEREFERRUTEH

analysed as follows:

— Not later than 1 year -—FR 3,592 4,264

— Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - —FREAFA 3,325 4,035
6,917 8,299
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28. OTHER RECEIVABLES,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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DEPOSITS AND 28 HiEWFIE - e RFENKIE

PREPAYMENTS

2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Other receivables Hth EYRIE 3,788 4,711
Deposits b 4,672 4,681
Prepayments TR RIE 24,745 11,882

Amount due from immediate holding BEZERARIRK
company - 13
Amount due from an associate —MEE R B R 81 50
33,286 21,337
Less: Non-current portion o IERBNE D (340) -
32,946 21,337

As at 31st December 2017 and 2016, amounts due from the immediate holding

company and an associate are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

RZE—EFR-FE-—R"F+-A=+—H H
B A RIR R — M S R B REUB B
R EREENREER - ARNBEINE  BEZE
HESRE AR EEES -

REARTIATIIE R EHE

2017 2016
—E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHBxT

HKD BT 21,933 17,799
THB Fék 886 948
RMB AR 472 668
NTD ek 1,291 1,059
usD ETT 8,034 10
Others Hih 670 853
33,286 21,337

As at 31st December 2017 and 2016, the carrying amounts of other receivables

and deposits approximate their fair values.

29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR

CONTRACT WORK

As at 31st December 2017 and 2016, the balance represented contract costs

incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and progress billings.

RZZT—tFR_ZT—"F+_A=+—H H
EKZRERES ZEASCHAEE AL EEE
=,

2. BN IREREFRE
RIE—+tFERZE—R"F+_A=1+—08 &

BRIEPTEE S 2 B KRR NN E RERRE MR HERR
BAEE AR -
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30. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31st December 2017, bank balances carry interest at market rates with an
average interest rate of 0.04% (2016: 0.01%) per annum. As at 31st December
2017, restricted bank deposits carried interest at market rates with an average
interest rate of 0.50% (2016: 0.42%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash are denominated in the following currencies:

30.

gmﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ

3

R-Z—tF+-A=+—8 BI&EHET
BREFE - FAMESRAETF0.04% (=T
—RNF001%)  RZZE—+tF+=_A=+—
A - ZREIRITFEHIRTISFERGTE - FHFE
BEF050% (ZZT—"F :042%) °

RITEREREUTHNEEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET F#T

HKD BT 172,980 206,536
RMB AR 3,457 6,039
NTD et 4,030 7,436
usD ET 89,000 5,687
Others Hi 17,304 12,057
286,771 237,755

As at 31st December 2017, included in restricted bank deposits of approximately
HK$772,000 (2016: HK$487,000) are pledged to secure the performance bonds
of the Group.

Restricted bank deposits are denominated in the following currencies:

RZZ—tE+-_A=+—8 BEEIREHIER
TIEANAI 772,0008 7L (ZF — /X4 : 487,000
BIL) AEAEEERIRITRBORE Z KR -

ERHBITFFATINEEE -

2017 2016

—E—tF T —RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FABT

MOP SR 3,637 389
NTD etk 531 487
4,168 876

31. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTERESTS IN
ASSOCIATES

During the year ended 31st December 2016, i-Sprint, an associate of the Group
has invited Mr. Hu Liankui, an existing shareholder of i-Sprint, to subscribe for
42,704,617 new ordinary shares of i-Sprint ranking pari passu with existing
shareholder at a consideration of USD4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,026,000) (the “Subscription”). The Subscription was completed on 26th
December 2016 (the “Completion”).

Upon the Completion, the Group’s percentage of shareholding in i-Sprint was
diluted from 39.80% to 35.42% and a gain of approximately HK$5,714,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the cumulated
translation reserve in respect of the net assets of the associates of approximately
HK$42,000 was reclassified to profit or loss for the year ended 31st December
2016.
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B 2 Bt & N &) i-Sprint B i-Sprint 3R (F A% 5 #A
Z= 0 R -Sprint B9 42,704,617 f& 31 L @ A% -
HERAERR=ZHREHMA - L84 4,000,000
ZEL(HHER4131,026,000870) ([REFHE]) °
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Rk - AEBRi-Sprintz BER D A
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

32. A

32. SHARE CAPITAL

Number
of shares Amount
RBEE ©8
‘000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREEI0B T ZEBER
Authorised: EERA :
At 1st January 2016, RZZE—RF—-A—H -
31st December 2016 —E-RFtZA=1+—H
and 1st January 2017 k=T —+tF—A—H 600,000 60,000
Increase in authorised share capital (Note (i) & AT IR (FHE (1) 1,400,000 140,000
At 31st December 2017 R-E—tF+=-HA=+—H 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRHRE :
At 1st January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—H 318,749 31,875

TR TR 31T 2 FBAR
of share options 150 15

Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise

Bonus issue (Note(ii)) BATELIE (MDEGi)) 31,890 3,189
At 31st December 2016 R-E-XRE+=A=+—H
and 1st January 2017 E=—Z—tF¥—HA—H 350,789 35,079
Rights issue (Note (iii) AR (B Gii)) 175,394 17,539
Bonus issue (Note (iv)) BATALRR (PR (iv)) 52,618 5,262
Issue of ordinary shares upon conversion B AR ES (B (v) K& 36(i)
of convertible bonds (Notes (v) and 36(ii)) 91,743 9,174
At 31st December 2017 R-ZE—+tF+=-A=+—H 670,544 67,054
Notes: fEE -
(i) Increase in authorised share capital ()  BIEERA

(ii)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed on 13th March 2017 and 17th May
2017, the total authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$60,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each
to HK$200,000,000 by the creation of additional 400,000,000 and 1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each respectively.

Bonus issue in 2016

On 18th May 2016, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting to approve the bonus issue of shares (“2016
Bonus Issue”) of par value HK$0.10 each which was issued on the basis of one bonus
share for every ten existing shares on 30th May 2016. As of that date, there was a total
of 318,899,000 ordinary shares in issue, resulting in the issuance of 31,889,900 bonus
shares under 2016 Bonus Issue.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )

(i)

BER-TE—+F=A+=AK=F—tFHA
TERBBHLBRER  AREZETERAE
#E 60,000,000 7% 7T, (9 £ 600,000,000 A% & A%
{E0.10 8 TRy & AR ) ¥ A1 % 200,000,000 # T
73 3% B BIFESME 5% 0.10 78 7T #9 400,000,000 A%
¥%.1,000,000,000 fi% & 5@ A% o

TERRERTAR

RZZ—AFERATNB  AARIBRRABRRE
FREFFRBBA—BLBRER - UIDERTT
ERTEEIE TR (I —F — NEBRTA
Bl BETREAN -_T—AFRA=TEEHE
BTRBEERNDESE—ROK - BEZAH B
BT D 4220 5 318,899,000 % - AMiIRIE—=
— N EEITAI AR M 44T 31,889,900 4TA% °
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

All

Rights issue

On 27th February 2017, the Company issued and allotted 175,394,450 ordinary shares
of par value HK$0.10 each to qualifying shareholders pursuant to the rights issue
on the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares held by the qualifying
shareholders on 27th January 2017 at the subscription price of HK$1.10 per rights
share (“Rights Issue”), and raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$192,934,000, of
which approximately HK$17,539,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
approximately HK$175,395,000 (before share issuance expenses) was credited to the
share premium account of the Company.

Share issuance expenses mainly include share underwriting commission, lawyers’
fees and other related costs associated with the Rights Issue. Incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the new shares amounting to approximately
HK$3,816,000 was treated as a deduction against the share premium account arising
from the Rights Issue.

Bonus issue in 2017

On 17th May 2017, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting to approve the bonus issue of shares (“2017
Bonus Issue”) of par value HK$0.10 each which was issued on the basis of one bonus
share for every ten existing shares on 29th May 2017. As of that date, there was a total
of 526,183,350 shares in issue, resulting in the issuance of 52,618,335 of bonus shares
under 2017 Bonus Issue.

Conversion of convertible bonds

On 25th August 2017, a bondholder of the convertible bonds has completed the
conversion of Convertible Bond with principal amount of HK$100,000,000 into
91,743,119 shares at the conversion price of HK$1.09 per share. Details are set out in
Note 36(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

the shares in issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing

shares of the Company in all respects.

33. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the reporting date, based on
payment due date, is as follows:

—o0 148

32, B2 ()

s - ()

(iii)

(iv)

Ak

RZT—tH&_A=++t8 AARREHER
M & B &R R 31T KBl % 175,394,450 ik & iR
BONOBTHLBR  BEEASERBRERZ
T—+F A+ tBEEHAMRBERGER
— R - REEATRERRMD1.107%
Jo (TR ]) - W35 15 FRIA 48 58 49 192,934,000 7
JC E A 4917,539,000 7% JT 5T A RS 7 1 #4258 49
175,395,000 % 7T (FNBRFASZ A1) 5T AR R 9/
&R -

BHETHXIZEEROEHAS  ROER
SRR M A A ARRIACA o BATH (D BB e
IHEYR AR KD 3,816,000 B 7T B HAE A HOR (D)5
EERINR -

ZEEFETAR

RZZ—+FRA+TLEH AARIBRERBRRE
FAELFABB AL BRZER - UIERTT
ERTEEIETHAR( T —EF 8174
B ) BOTEEAR-_E—tERA -+ NAE
BAETIRAARMNES —ARAR - BEZAH
BRI B2 A 526,183,350 % © AMRE-Z
—EFBITAIAREE1T 52,618,335 ARAT A% ©

AR ES

R-TE—+FENA-Z+HB  EPF—ZEHEFH
Af7f# 754 %8 100,000,000 % 7T 2 A # BR (& 5 FR
B # Z Hapg i - AEARR1.09/8 T 2 AR [EEE iR
91,743, 119 IR L i@mAR - s BHN T A M B REM
5 36(i)

REE NI REAR A SRR
HRERATA SRS -
3. ENESRE

EME SRERBRRBRECNRIIE ZEHRD
HraaR -

2017 2016

—E—t5F A

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEx FAxT

Current BNHA 114,418 122,983
Within 30 days 30 KA 39,115 49,507
31 -60 days 31 260K 6,595 4,679
61 —90 days 61 290K 2,711 1,187
Over 90 days BB 0K 12,963 7,024
175,802 185,380
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33. TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

B.ENEZIRE
AR T A T M EHE -

2017 2016

—E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HKD BT 137,893 146,829
RMB AR 8,061 694
usD ET 19,881 23,250
THB ES 7 6,743 7,760
NTD Atk 2,824 6,609
Others Eo 400 238
175,802 185,380

At the reporting date, the carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair

values.

34. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

REIRA - BNESFAZEMERERAREE
R -

34 HttEN AR ETE M

2017 2016

—Z2—+tF —T—XF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Other payables E A FIE 57.844 3,524

Accruals fEst & A 95,103 58,673

Provision for customers’ claim (Note (i) EPRERME (M) - 9,630
Amount due to the ultimate holding company RS A BIFRIE

(Note (ii)) (BEE (i) 418 318

Amount due to associates (Note (ii) IR A R FRIE (B EE i) 539 764

153,904 72,909

Notes:

(i)  The amounts represent provisions for disputes arising in the ordinary course of
business. In accordance with the Group’s policies, the Group will make a provision for
a liability when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required from the Group to settle the obligation and

the amount can be reasonably estimated.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, provision for customers’ claim of
HK$3,642,000 (2016: HK$9,630,000) was charged in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss within other loss, net.

(i) The amounts due to the ultimate holding company and associates are unsecured,

interest free and are repayable on demand.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )

ME -

() ZESEXREAEERLEXEFIHBRETEA
AHMETRNEE - REASENBE - A%E
FREEHELRERY  MAKRBRETER
TROZEBMERERAL  BESHEAERE
PRS- ASRHRRERE -

REBE-_Z—tH+_A=+—HLEE 5P
R{EF# 3,642,00078 7T (= F—/<F : 9,630,000
FEIT) sE AR B B R R EMFEIEF o

(i) REKZEBRRABDRBEQR ZFAREER - &
SRBRERIEE -
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34. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

. HENSNRERETER @)

FERRTIA TSI EHEHE -

2017 2016

—2—+tF —T—XF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

HKD BT 67,297 67,221
usb E¢ 80,159 -
RMB PN 3,168 1,759
NTD etk 1,116 1,385
Others HAit 2,164 2,544
153,904 72,909

At the reporting date, the carrying values of other payables and accruals

approximate their fair values.

35. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to delivery
of goods which is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
upon the delivery of goods; and provision of service which is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the service period stipulated in the

respective customer contract.

36. BORROWINGS

35. W W ==

B B2 E m AT 2 Bk (AR E MR
NEEFEBERARER)  RERHRBATWRERZ
R (AR EHEPANTHNREBEERS

BRARER) o

3. BE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT F#T
Current RENERD

Bank borrowings, secured (Note (i) EEMRITEE (R 3) 247,800 10,000

Non-current IERENER 17
Convertible bonds (Note (i) AT ES (BE (i) 245,182 -
492,982 10,000
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36. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ArE BIIERER M EE
For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

36. FEE )

(i)

Bank borrowings

The Group's bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

—FARRIREREE

Within one year or on demand

(@) As at 31st December 2016, the Group’s bank borrowings of HK$10,000,000
are fully repayable on 22nd December 2017 in accordance with the repayment
schedule and bears interest at floating rates. The bank borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") with interest rate ranging from 2.69%
t0 3.19% per annum and are secured by the legal charges over the Group’s land
and buildings with carrying amount of approximately HK$107,250,000. Such
bank borrowings were fully repaid during the year ended 31st December 2017.

(b)  During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group obtained a banking
facility in relations to a term loan of HK$250,000,000 to finance the acquisition
of Grid Dynamics Group as detailed in Note 39. As at 31st December 2017, bank
borrowings of approximately HK$247,800,000 (2016: Nil) are repayable by five
semi-annually instalments commencing from 29th March 2018 to 20th February
2020 and bears interest at floating rates. The bank borrowings are denominated
in HKD with an effective interest rate of 4.42% (2016: Nil) per annum as at 31st
December 2017.

As at 31st December 2017, the bank borrowings are secured by the followings:

(1) the legal charges over the Group’s land and buildings with carrying amount
of HK$271,950,000 (2016: Nil) (Note 46);

(2) the legal charges over the Group’s investment properties with carrying
amount of HK$52,300,000 (2016: Nil) (Note 46);

(3) the guarantee given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group
up to a limit of HK$250,000,000;

(4) assignment of rental and sales proceeds from the Group’s land buildings
and investment properties; and

(5) assignment of insurance of all insurance policies (other than third party
liabilities and public liabilities) over the Group’s land buildings and
investment properties.

The banking facilities of term loan is subject to the fulfillment of certain financial
and non-financial covenants relating to certain subsidiaries of the Group as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
was to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable
on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is up to
the date with the scheduled repayments of the loans and does not consider it
probable that the banks will exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so
long as the Group continues to meet these requirements.

Subject to repayment on demand clauses which can be exercised at the banks’
sole discretion, the above bank borrowings are classified as current liabilities as at
31st December 2017 and 2016.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )

BisE
RITIEE
AEEZBITEEERPOT ¢
2017
=Bt 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx ST
247,800 10,000
(@ RIZZ—R"F+ZA=1+—R ~AEEZH
1TtEE 10,000,000 BTTHER —E—tF+ =
A+ -REYEETIZRIHFRAE -
BITEENBT(BIT)) BB - FH X
52.69%F3.19% N AR EE 2 + i 12
FEAEIR - BRME & %A% 107,250,000 7%
T WEBTEEEREE -2 —+t4F+=A
“+—ALFERAREBEE -
by REBE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HLFE "

7N &= E Y15 A B 5t HAE 54 250,000,000 7 7T
2 $R1TRLE A ULHE Grid Dynamics £ B IR (BT
TES  FHRME39 - R-E—+F+—-8
=+—H - BI71EE %) 247,800,000/8 7L (=
T—RE: ﬁ)mg_i NF=ZA=tAh
Et+i_;_7¢ AZ+RHHE - 8%
FEE—X DABEE  WAZEBF R
B RITEBAATIE  RZT—+tF
TZA=+—BI2EBRFEANERAE442% (=
T—RF &)

RZZE—tF+-A=+—RH RITBEEN
THIE AR -

(1) ANEEBRMmE271,950,0008 (==
—NE ) 2 RIS TF AR
(MizE46) :

(2) AEERMEES2,300,0008T(=F
—NF ) 2B EIEZ AR
(MizE46) :

(3) BARREAEEETHBRIMELZ
= PR %85 250,000,000 7 7T 2 IR

(4 HBEALKETWEFRREVEZAS
RaHERE - &

(5) HEALEIMEFRIREMERSE
REZRB(ZB=7EERAKEER
51 e

EHERZRITRERGA PAAEEE TH
J%/l ZE TR IR ERR T A
BE MzxSERmEANESEEIERI L
R o WASEERZ W - PTRIER
GRIMENRMEE -

FEEFHRERLETZEBL BREZ
F-BEFFEEEEN . AAKERRER

EMEBREZEEROBERT - RITTK
A BETTIR AL RIS HE B SR

& mh: it

S o

FERTA 2EBBITEOREZFLERGRORR

=

R-F—tFR-F-AFT-A=+—

B SRIOTERESBERRDAEME -
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36. BORROWINGS (Continued) 36. BE )

Notes: (Continued) sk : (48)

(i) Convertible bonds (i)  FIBRES
On 21st March 2017, the Group issued HKD denominated zero coupon convertible RZE—+F=A=+—8  RAEEFTUET
bonds of a principal amount of HK$350,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). ABENL ~ A& FEA350,000,000 8 T0HZ B AT AR

B ([ AR ES D) -

At the issue date, the Convertible Bonds can be converted into 291,666,666 shares REH B AIBRESITIESR’R1.208 98
(the “Conversion Shares”) at the initial conversion price of HK$1.20 per share (subject R E (7] F %) $12291,666,666 % T i % o
to adjustment). As a result of the bonus issue on 8th June 2017 as detailed in Note AR —+F XA /\BEITARK - RIFATHRAR
32(iv), the number of shares falling to be allotted and issued upon conversion of BH 2GR REM AT REITZRNDEE
the Convertible Bonds and the conversion price of the Convertible Bonds have been RARIER DRI % 321,100,917 I R &8 1.09
adjusted to 321,100,917 shares and HK$1.09 per share respectively, pursuant to the PETT - B RMIEE32(v) ©

terms of conditions of the Convertible Bonds.

The Convertible Bonds are convertible during the period commencing from the 90th AHRREFNBELHATRRESE BEE0HM
day after the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and ending on the 5th business BEARRESDPR T -_TF=A=-+—H
day prior to the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds on 21st March 2020 (the ([MBEFZEA DAFE AL B 12 BfE TE
“Maturity Date”). Unless previously purchased or converted for Conversion Shares, the B BRIFMBRMA STATE BRI R ER - TAIK
Company shall on the Maturity Date redeem the outstanding principal amount of the ARERBERBERREREZTRREF 2 AE
Convertible Bonds together with the accrued return of 3% internal rate of return per - EREREZREF 3% 2R EFTHE 2
annum. Fatilias -

Early redemption at the option of the Company and the Bondholder AREIREFIFEN AEFELE R

The Company and the bondholder have the right to redeem the Convertible Bonds fis Y2 Grid Dynamics 55 B0 RAR R E G TEAX -
early in the event that the completion of the acquisition of Grid Dynamics Group AIARR RIS A REEE RESFFE ANEERERY
does not take place in accordance with its terms, the Company shall have the right FEBEA([1RREERER ] IREREELASHE
to redeem and the bondholder shall have the right to require redemption of the INEF 6% 2 NEPU S EIERIARER ATIRRES o
Convertible Bonds outstanding before the Maturity Date (the “Early Redemption 1% Grid Dynamics REER —T—+F WA LH
Option”) at its principal amount outstanding plus 6% internal rate of return per TREARBREFFAAZIREEEEERER
annum. The acquisition of Grid Dynamics Group was completed on 7th April 2017 and EAIEE

the Early Redemption Option expired on that date.

The conversion option embedded in the Convertible bonds meet the definition of MREFNHRABREFE AR TAN
equity instrument of the Company, and is classified as equity and included in the EH - UHERERRFATTRRKRESHE A
convertible bonds reserves. The liability component was initially recognised at its fair EEED VA FE R IR A A (B - RIB I R AR AT
value and was subsequently measured at amortised cost. As at 31st December 2017, BoRZT—tF+ZA=1+—R TJBRREH
the Convertible Bonds contains two components i.e. liability and equity elements. BIEEERERMEN o
The carrying amount of the Convertible Bonds recognised in the consolidated RIFE M BARRER AR 2 AIRRES 2 REE
statement of financial position is calculated as follows: FTHEMT
HK$'000
FET
Liability component at 1st January 2017 RZT—tF—A—BZBEHD -
Nominal value of Convertible Bonds AR ESFEE 350,000
Less: Derivative component (Note) A PTE T EES (MiEE) (16)
Equity component =B (15,536)
Transaction costs RHEA (4,053)
Liability component on initial recognition iatERR Z BEE S 330,395
Imputed interest expense HEF SR 9,910
Conversion of Convertible Bonds AR ES Bk (95,123)
Liability component at 31st December 2017 REZZB—tF+ZA=+—RAZEEHD 245,182
Note: The derivative component at initial recognition represents the Early Redemption Mz : YIIAHERE ZTET A HIEIRFERIE
Option, which was recognised as financial liabilities at fair value through profit B BRAUARBESEBERIIRN
or loss. CRBME -
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36. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(i) Convertible bonds (Continued)

Imputed interest expense of the Convertible Bonds is calculated using the effective
interest method by applying effective interest rate of 4.99% per annum to the liability
component.

On 25th August 2017, one of the bondholders exercised the conversion right attaching
to the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 at the adjusted
conversion price of HK$1.09 per share (the “Conversion”). A total of 91,743,119
ordinary shares were allotted and issued to the bondholder. The aggregate outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds has been reduced to HK$250,000,000
immediately after the Conversion.

Upon the Conversion, the Group derecognised the liability component of approximately
HK$95,123,000 and transferred this amount with equity component (convertible bond
reserve) of approximately HK$4,439,000 into share capital and share premium with the
amount of HK$9,174,000 and approximately HK$90,388,000 (net of issuance costs
of approximately HK$438,000) respectively, using the method in consistency with that
used initially to allocate the net proceeds on the Convertible Bonds issuance date.

37. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The components of deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movement during the year

are as follows:

36. FBE @)

s - (&)
(i) AR ES ()

AHRRES 2 EENEROEBRAERER®
4.99% (£ A ERFIZEGH -

R-ZB—+FENAZ+HB  HEP—ZEHEHE
ABATTEZR 4 100,000,000 7 7T 2 7] 2% & 5 AT MY
BRI ARG ER .09 T ZRRES
BR(TZER]) B - BEEE1,743, 119K E
BRERERETTZESFBEA - RZZE—+1
F+ZA=1+—8 TRREHFZALTERSRE
250,000,000 7T ©

TERZERZE  AEBKRIEBAATRRKRES
B (&85 #995,123,00008 7T, EREZ B H 4
4,439,000% 7T 9 5l ¥ AX 73 P& 459,174,000 7% 7T
T2 B 7N 33 8 B 490,388,000 7L (E MK 4 A
438,000 7T 2 BITARA) - FTA A NEREITH
e D B AR EH TS B FEMAE 5

37. IEFEFRSH

FARGAMBIRRRAER ZRLEMSH (]
&) BEZHS RAZBFIRMT

2017 2016
—Z—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FHT
At 1st January w—A—H (44,946) (43,831)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Uk BE B B A A (35,209) -
Tax charged to other comprehensive income BHEMEEEIRTIE (2,979) (1,830)
Tax credited to profit or loss (Note 16) Bi8mst ABIE (i 16) 12,626 714
Exchange realignment (ERIEEE (198) 1
At 31st December W+=ZA=+—H (70,706) (44,946)

The investments in the PRC, Thailand and the US incorporated operations give
rise to taxable temporary differences arising from the distribution of profits by
way of withholding tax.

As at 31st December 2017, no deferred income tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC, Thailand and the US. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investment in subsidiaries in the PRC, Thailand and the US for which
deferred income tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$52,131,000 as at 31st December 2017 (2016: HK$4,645,000).

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )

BRENTE - FEREBEKT 2 A FEERRB
gRitEE  RESAEMRE R 5K E P
B o

RZZE—+tF+-A=+—8  AEEIEHR
PR R N EBIR L M A B2 R EE AT
FTEE 2 MM ERIEEFTSH - RAREER
B ZENBARRA AR TRATEDIRE
BEN - R_T—tF+-_A=+—H  #HR
FE REREEMNNBAGIKRES BT
MERAHYA52,131,0008 7T ( ZF— /K 4F ¢
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37. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 37. EEIEFREBL ()
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the AR EE R G ERIER SR LB AR
extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future taxable RIERBUR A T AR IR E RBIRERBELEMER

profits is probable. As at 31st December 2017, the Group had total tax losses
of approximately HK$48,922,000 (2016: HK$39,806,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred income tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$18,965,000 (2016: HK$4,838,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining approximately
HK$29,957,000 (2016: HK$34,968,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams, of which approximately HK$20,235,000 (2016: HK$25,609,000) will
expire within 1 to 5 years, approximately HK$9,622,000 (2016: HK$9,259,000)
will expire within 6 to 10 years and approximately HK$100,000 (2016:
HK$100,000) with unlimited expiry date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The
movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:

Accelerated
tax
depreciation
NEHBHE
HK$'000

7T

of properties
MEEL
HK$'000

BE RZT—+tF+ZA=+—0 x£EFH
THIAE B384 548,922,000/8 L ( Z 2 —714F ¢
39,086,000 7T ) A A EHE 5 R 2R E T o IRIEFT
SMEECHABEIEL 18,965,000 L(=F
—7N4F 1 4,838,000 ) R o R AREETERIAR
FORFIOR + AL BLER T 2 4929,957,000 7 7T
(ZZ—7N1F 34,968,000/ 70 ) FERIELFT 1S
REFE - EF4920,2350008 (=T —<F:
25,609,000 ) KR —ZE A E NI E - M4
9,622,000 87T (ZF — /<4 : 9,259,000 7T ) #%
RAE+FREE K% 4100,0008 7T (=T —X
£ 1 100,000 7T) AMRER -

BEAERHIMHEEERFENBHARENA
BOERITHER - AZFEENRABRR-HEE
BRI STHE B - RS I E 2 Al SR A
ISR aEEREE - RNFER - BEMEHEE
RaE(REHERA-—HATER 2 &S IT :

Temporary
difference of

Revaluation intangible assets

BREEZ Tax losses Total
ERHER BEEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT

At 1st January 2016 RZE-—"E-f—-H (5,553) (38,878) - 600 (43,831)
Charged to other comprehensive income BHMZEKETNR - (1,830) - - (1,830
Credited to profit or loss (Note 16) REBEARA (F16) 418 - - 29 714
Exchange realignment [ 5 0% 1 - - - 1
At 31st December 2016 and RIB—"E+tZA=T-AR

Ist January 2017 —T—+F-f-H (5,134) (40,708) - 896 (44,946)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W R B AR (M3 39)

(Note 39) (551) - (43,803) 9,145 (35,209)
Charged to other comprehensive income BEMRERETR - (2,979 - - (2,979
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss FMBER (NK) /FHA (K3 16)

(Note 16) (221) - 19,015 (6,168) 12,626
Exchange realignment Rk (5) - (258) 65 (198)
At 31st December 2017 R-B-tF+-A=1+-H (5,911) (43,687) (25,046) 3,938 (70,706)
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37. IESEFREHL )
EREFT BB AT -

37. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHxT FHIT

Deferred income tax assets RIEFTIS R EE 4,017 953
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSRBE (74,723) (45,899)
(70,706) (44,946)

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 38. Eﬁﬂi#&%‘f%ﬂ

The Company’s share option scheme which was adopted on 8th August 2002 (the RARRZZZZF )\ A\ BN B ERT 2

ﬁ“‘J:/%(F_? TFERERE) - B
AER T —EF=AT=ZAZEEREFI ARG L

“2002 Share Option Scheme”) was expired and a new share option scheme was
adopted by an ordinary resolution passed at the special general meeting of the

Company held on 13th March 2017 (the “2017 Share Option Scheme”). BB —IEERARITEN ([ 2T — . F R
EID

EEEAf77f¢ﬁ%H%E”r§UEi&)=/% ZAYN
SHBIE TR - ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁEAJ:/ﬁﬁElﬁ ?ﬁ

Upon the expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, no further option can be
offered thereunder but any options granted prior to such expiry but not yet

exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable. ﬁ&iﬁfﬂiﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁgmﬁﬁxﬁ(&—fﬁ% EITIE -
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (i) —=EZ_FERETS
Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may BIE—TT - FHRESE - ARRESRA

RAAEERER (BEARARAMBEARZ

grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and

its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The total number ER)REBREURERRTRD - R
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2002 “TT SRR A - AR 2 AR

R 2 RN ARE - TSHBAARR R EAR
M2z BBITRGZ10% - RERFEERT
E‘Eﬂ/\:tzﬁﬁﬁx%—fulJEﬁZHXTV@%’I ™MF

BN RIMERIRE 2 BB TRD 21% °

Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time.

ER LB SANRH B 28 KA
2 EMEBERRRAIMN UBTERAR

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general

requirement that an option must be held for any minimum period before
it can be exercised but the directors of the Company are empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the directors of the Company at its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the options; (b) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal
value of a share. The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 7th August
2012.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )
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gz IR BB AR R EE2REIEEE
MR O — B NS R H A HEEH 10
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cContinued)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and movements in such holdings
during the years ended 31st December 2017 and 2016:

38. FBPRHERTE ()
—ETE_FHERENEE)

THREBEAARERSE DR FHER
HEZERERRBE-T—ER-F
—AE+ZAS+—AUERERA L BB

0]

B

El
2017 —E—+tF
Number of options
EREYE
At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised Adjusted At 31st
Exercise price January during during during during December
per share 2017 the year the year the year the year 2017
RZB-t# RZB-t#
Grant date BRITEE ==l FRgL EREH Rl Fh¥EE TZA=t-H
(Note) (Note)
(RtaE) (raE)
19th March 2012 “E2-ZEZBthA HK$0.845 396,000 - - - 68,253 464,253
0.845 %7
2nd May 2012 “E-ZEEACA HK$0.873 121,000 - - - 20,857 141,857
0873787
517,000 - - - 89,110 606,110
Weighted average METHERTEE HK$0.852 - - - HKS0.852 HK$0.852
exercise price per share 08527 0.852 %7 0.852 %7
Number of options WoB-tf
exercisable at tZB=1-H
315t December 2017 AfTRNERESE 606,110
Weighted average WoB-tfF
exercise price per share +ZA=t-H
of options exercisable ATERBREN HK$0.852
at 31st December 2017 MEFHISRTEE 0.852%7
Weighted average MEFSRE 4.2 years
remaining contractual life ~ AHEH 42%

Note: The number of outstanding share options and exercise price per share have
been adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue (Note 32(iii)) and were further
adjusted as a result of the 2017 Bonus Issue (Note 32(iv)), details of the
adjustments are disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 24th
February 2017 and 8th June 2017, respectively.
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38. AR AESTE (@)

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

2016

At 1st

Exercise price January
per share 2016

£

Grant date —R—H

(Note)

Granted
during
the year

—ETE_FHERENE @)

Number of options
-
Lapsed Exercised Adjusted At31st
during during during December
the year the year the year 2016
ERER
(Note)

Effit

19th March 2012 “E-CF=ftNA HK$0.990 360,000 - - - 36,000 396,000
099077
2nd May 2012 “T--FRAZH HK$1.020 590,000 - (363,000) (150,000) 44,000 121,000
1020587
950,000 - (363,000) (150,000) 80,000 517,000
Weighted average METIBRITRE HK$1.109 - HK$1.020 HK$1.120 HK$1.007 HK$0.997
exercise price per share 110937 102047 112087 10077 0997 %7
Nunber of options RIE-RE
exercisable at T-A=1-H
315t December 2016 AR ERER A 517,000
Weighted average RIB-—%E
exercise price per share T-A=t-H
of options exercisable iTEREREN HK$0.997
at 31st December 2016 MEPIERTEE 099737
Weighted average METEE 5.2 years
remaining contractual life ANEE 528

Note: The number of outstanding share options and exercise price were adjusted as
a result of the bonus issue of shares of the Company on 15th June 2016, the
details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15th June
2016.

The options granted on 19th March 2012 and 2nd May 2012 were vested
equally on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant
date.

During the years ended 31st December 2017 and 2016, no expenses were
recognised in relation to equity-settled share-based payment transactions
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme as the outstanding share options are
fully vested during the year ended 31st December 2015.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cContinued)
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme

—o0 158

2017 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 13th March
2017 and is valid and effective for a period of ten years from 13th March
2017.

The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Company and/or the subsidiaries. The Board may,
at its discretion, grant options to any eligible employee, executive or officer
including directors of the Company or its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at 13th March 2017, the date of approval of
the adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme. Unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at its absolute
discretion impose any minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must be
achieved before the option can be exercised. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant of the options; (b) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal
value of a share.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:
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38. BB ERTE ()
(i) —E—tFBERETE (B
RIS BRSSO T

Grant date Number of options outstanding
31st March 2017 Exercise period at 31st December 2017
R BH R=Z—tF+=A=+—H
—E—tHF=A=+—H {TFEH i RIT B IRES A
— Tranche 1 31st March 2017 - 30th March 2027 2,604,250
—#t —+F=A=t+—HEZTE-_+tF=A=1+H
1st Apr|I 2018 — 30th March 2027 1,302,135
—\FOA—AE=ZZT=-+F=A=+H
1st Aprll 2019 — 30th March 2027 1,302,115
—E-NFNA—BEE-_+F=A=1+H
— Tranche 2 28th March 2018 — 30th March 2027 2,604,250
—#t —\E=ZA=-+N\BE=ZE-tF=A=+H
1st April 2019 — 30th March 2027 1,302,135
—NENA—AEZE-ZT=-+F=-A=+A
1st April 2020 — 30th March 2027 1,302,115
TECTFNA-HETE-LF=A=+H
— Tranche 3 Date of 2018 annual results announcement of
=4 the Company — 30th March 2027 2,604,250
ARAAZ —E— N\FE2EERASHBE Tt =HA=1H
1st April 2020 — 30th March 2027 1,302,135
CECTFNA-HEE_LF=A=TH
1st April 2021 — 30th March 2027 1,302,115
R FMNA-—BEE=-+F=A=1+H
— Tranche 4 Date of 2019 annual results announcement of
Frit the Company — 30th March 2027 2,604,250
RRABZ B NF2EEENERME S+t =H=1H
1st April 2021 — 30th March 2027 1,302,135
CECFNA-HEZZE-_+F=A=T1H
1st April 2022 — 30th March 2027 1,302,115
- —FMA-REZT_+F=R=1+H
20,834,000
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 38. BRAESTE )
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —=—tFEREE (B
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued) B 2 R ERIREIE TS - ()
Grant date Number of options outstanding
28th April 2017 Exercise period at 31st December 2017
b=t R=Z—tF+=A=+—H
“E—tFMA=+NH {TEH i RIT B IRESE
— Tranche 1 1st June 2018 — 27th April 2027 756,250
—it ZE-N\FARA-BEZZE-LFMNA=+tH
1st June 2019 — 27th April 2027 378,125
—NFARNA—AEZZTtFMA=++tH
1st June 2020 — 27th April 2027 378,125

—ECEFAA—HEZTE_+FNA=-F+H

— Tranche 2 1st June 2019 — 27th April 2027 756,250
—#t —E-NFRA-RAE_ZE-_tFMNA=++tAH

1st June 2020 — 27th April 2027 378,125
R CEFRNA-BET+FNA=++H

1st June 2021 — 27th April 2027 378,125

—EXA-BEZZ-+FNA-T+H

—Tranche 3 1st June 2020 — 27th April 2027 756,250
=4 —ECEFRNA-HAEE-_EFNA=-1++A

1st June 2021 — 27th April 2027 378,125
CEC—FRA-HBEE_LFMNA=TEH

1st June 2022 — 27th April 2027 378,125

TR CHFRNA-HBE-ZAFNA=T+H

—Tranche 4 1st June 2021 — 27th April 2027 756,250
St TR —FRA-RAETLFMA-+LER
1st June 2022 — 27th April 2027 378,125
TR FANA-REZEEFMAZ++A
1st June 2023 - 27th Aprll 2027 378,125

—E - =FRNA-HRAEZE-_tFMNA=++tH

6,050,000
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: (Continued)

ARE IR AR MRE
—EtoA= - BLFR

38. AR AESTE (@)
(i) —=—tFERETE (@)

B R ERFRAT - (8)

Grant date Number of options outstanding
13th December 2017 Exercise period at 31st December 2017
Zit B R=Z—tF+=A=+—H
—E2—tHF+=A+=H {7EH i RIT B IRES A
— Tranche 1 1st April 2019 — 12th December 2027 173,500
—#t —NFHUA—RAE-T-+tF+=-A+=H
1st April 2020 — 12th December 2027 86,750
TECTFNA-HETE-+F+=-A+=H
1st April 2021 — 12th December 2027 86,750
T —FMA—RAEZT-tF+=-A+=H
— Tranche 2 1st April 2020 — 12th December 2027 173,500
—Ht CECRFNA-HEE-_+FT-A+T=H
1st April 2021 — 12th December 2027 86,750
R —HNMA-BE_ZT_t+F+=-A+=H
1st April 2022 — 12th December 2027 86,750
—E-—FMNA-HBE-ZE-_+F+=-A+=H
— Tranche 3 1st April 2021 — 12th December 2027 173,500
FE=dt - —FMA—HAEZZTtF+-A+=H
1st April 2022 — 12th December 2027 86,750
T FMA-RETLF+A+Z=H
1st April 2023 — 12th December 2027 86,750
CEC=FNA-HEZE_+LFT-AT=H
— Tranche 4 1st April 2022 — 12th December 2027 173,500
£tk - —FMA-AE=Z-tF+=-A+=AH
1st April 2023 — 12th December 2027 86,750
R =HFMA-BE-_T-_+F+=-A+=H
1st ApriI 2024 — 12th December 2027 86,750
—HFENA—HEZZT=-+F+=-A+=H
1,388,000
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 HE-—T—+F+_-_A=+—BItFE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. BRAESTE )
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —=—tFEREE (B
The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees TREBECEABREE(RRBEF)BE_ZT
(including directors) under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and movements —tFEREFECERERNREEZE S
in such holdings during the year ended 31st December 2017: —tFF+ A=+ —HREFBZEEHHF
15
Number of options
BREHA
Exercise At Granted Lapsed Exercised Adjusted At
pricc  1stJanuary during during during during  31st December
per share 2017 the year the year the year the year 2017
R=%-t§ R=%-t§
Grant date SRITEE -fA-H EREd EREH FRTE Fh¥E +-A=t-H
31st March 2017 ZE-+F=f=1-H HK$1.164 tote2) - 19,140,000 (220,000) - 1,914,000 ™2 20,834,000
1.164%7_5(”'331 (Wita)
28th April 2017 ZE-tEMAZtNR HK$1.091 tote2) - 5,500,000 (otet) - - 550,000 "ete2) 6,050,000
1,091 5% ea (b) (e
13th December 2017 “E-tE+ZAt=A HK$1.040 - 1,388,000 - - - 1,388,000
1,040 %7
- 26,028,000 (220,000) - 2,464,000 28,272,000
Weighted average MEFIBRITER - HK$1.250 HK$1.164 - HK$1.148 HK$1.142
exercise price per share 1.2507 116437 1.148 7870 110287
Number of options WoB-tf
exercisable at TZR=1-H
315t December 2017 ATENBRESR 2,604,250
Weighted average REB-t#
exercise price per share TZA=t-H
of options exercisable ITENBREN HK$1.164
at 31t December 2017 METABRTER 1.164 BT
Weighted average TR 9.3 years
remaining contractual life ~ AHEH 93
Notes: B &E
(@) The number of outstanding share options and exercise price per share have (a) MARITEZERERE RERITEERRE

been adjusted as a result of the 2017 Bonus Issue (Note 32(iv)), details of the
adjustments are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8th June 2017.

(b) The offers for a total number of 6,500,000 options were made to eligible
participants, in which an offer of 1,000,000 options was not accepted by an
eligible participant, pursuant to 2017 Share Option Scheme, the offer of these
options was automatically lapsed and became null and void.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 38. BRAESE )
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —=—tFBEREE(®)
In respect of the share options granted during the year, the estimated HEFEARBBEREMNS - RIRE B EE
fair values of the options on the dates of grant were calculated using WEREAABEDEAZEAMBEER
the binomial lattice model. The estimated fair values were ranging from FTE o BRI AR EBEN TERR0.286BLE
HK$0.286 to HK$0.450 per share. The inputs into the model were as 0.450%8 7T  ZRA = Ed AZHRINT
follows:
Granted on Granted on Granted on
31st March 2017 28th April 2017 13th December 2017
R=Z—+tF R=Z—+tF R=Z—+tF
=A=+—A§H mA=+N\BEH +=ZA+=8#H
Share price at grant date RERE A BRI RE HK$1.25 HK$1.08 HK$0.90
1.25%87T 1.08 87T 0.907# 7T
Exercise price at grant date R B BRI TE(E HK$1.28 HK$1.20 HK$1.04
1.28787T 1.20/87C 1.04787C
Expected volatility TEER IR 50% 50% 50%
Option life fERR e ER 10 years 10 years 10 years
104F 104 104
Risk-free rate 1\ N 1.49% 1.41% 1.76%
Expected dividend TEERAAR 2 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
The expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of TEERIE Ty LA ) B BRI E 2 N\ FHIE AR
the Company for the closing share price for the period of 7 to 8 years before AR W TE 2 BERIBETE °
the date of grant.
During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Group recognised total REBEE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE "
expense of approximately HK$4,299,000 (2016: Nil) in relation to equity- REENGEEm KT HER ARG SRR
settled share-based payment transactions under the 2017 Share Option 2 88 44,299,000 L (ZF—7RF ¢
Scheme and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss with a 1) A0 A LARR 1D BB Z AR B AR -
corresponding credit to the share-based payment reserve.
The total consideration received during the year ended 31st December 2017 REBEE-ZT—+tF+-A=+—HIFE "
from grantees for taking up the shares under the options amounted to AR AR NERAEE T 2 R T a2
HK$72 (2016: Nil). REAT2ET(ZT—RF &) -
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 16th December 2016, the Company, GDD International Holding Company
and GDD International Merger Company, indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, entered into an agreement and plan of merger (“Merger
Agreement”) with Grid Dynamics and BGV I, LP, the representative of the
holders of the shares or vested options of Grid Dynamics (the “Securityholders
Representative”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire the entire share
capital of Grid Dynamics Group (the “Acquisition”). Details of the Acquisition are
set out in the Company’s circular dated 6th March 2017 and the Acquisition was
completed on 7th April 2017 (the “Completion Date”).

The transaction was made as part of the Group's strategy to provide third
platform technologies, including cloud, mobile, big data and analytics and social
business and to expand the Group'’s geographical coverage beyond Asia Pacific.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the total consideration for the
Acquisition (the “Purchase Consideration”) are as follows:

(a) Cash consideration

A purchase price of approximately US$100,000,000 plus certain adjustments
based on the net asset value on Completion Date, to be paid by the
Company in cash, US$2,000,000 of which will be paid on or before the first
anniversary of the Completion Date; and

(b) Contingent Consideration

An earnout payment in the sum of up to US$18,000,000 to be paid by the
Company in cash and in two instalments with each instalment to be paid no
later than 10 business days following the date upon which the determination
of the earnout payment for each earnout period becomes final and binding
upon the Company and the Securityholders Representative, subject to Grid
Dynamics Group meet with the agreed revenue target and profit before tax
target in respect of each relevant earnout period.
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RZT—R"F+ZA+H  AQA - XA
2 % 2 & W B2 3 GDD International Holding
Company ;2 GDD International Merger Company
83 Grid Dynamics & Grid Dynamics A% 17 sk B 55 /&
@%HX%%EAE’M%BGV Il, LP([EHRH AR
= DA A BREEE (& 0BED - &t
A B E R E U Grid Dynamics & B 0 2 30
A(MWEEIE]) - WBEBEOFBEHNARF B
HMoRla—F—tF= A NAZBEARKES
HRZZE—+FHACRER(TKA]D -

FZRDBEEERRE=T ERM (BES® -
BE)  RBEBAITARMRZER) UG AEE

B b 13 7B 2 90 R B S5 A D R LA 1 O 55 S ) — P
ﬁj\a

RIEAGHHEOGEDT  KERELB(IWRER
BHWOT :

(a) HEE

Uk B8 4835 5 & B 49 100,000,000 ZE T3 [F]
TEREEEZETHE  BHAREURS
S HA 2,000,000 E TR K HEIE
—RAFEANZAXNMN &

(b) AKE

BB &% 518,000,000 3 7T HY 1 F 48 H 1+
FTBHARRD MRS TN - FEAK
TERA B A S T BA R A0 IE FI 88 15 SRR AR
EBHARAREHFFBEARRERLD
ROz B#EI10EZZBEL - AT A Grid
Dynamics & BiE Ak & FERAE R IR 2 9 7E
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. BB AR @)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Grid Dynamics Group R 5ER B LU 8 Grid Dynamics 5 2 7 3% 51 & &
acquired at the Completion Date is as follows: RBEZAREBEAT :
HK$'000
FHIT
Property, plant and equipment W BE R 6,882
Intangible assets mREE 125,150
Deferred income tax assets REFTSTHIEE 9,145
Trade receivables FEWE 5508 73,300
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H U FIE - iRe RIERFHIE 6,694
Amount due from customers for contract work A X LIZEWRE P FIE 10,433
Tax recoverable BEE) 36,679
Bank balances and cash RITFER MRS 48,651
Other payables and accruals E b R RIE R IEET B R (34,057)
Receipts in advance TEU U 2= (1,088)
Income tax liabilities FristiaE (934)
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSH A& (44,354)
Net identifiable assets acquired EES AR ERE 236,501
Goodwill (Note 21) & (fEE21) 764,920
1,001,421
Purchase Consideration satisfied by BERERNAAR
— Cash (including cash acquired at -Be (BEETKARGZES)
Completion Date) 868,751
— Contingent consideration payable, - ERNRAREN R RE
at fair value 132,670
1,001,421
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of Grid Dynamics BEAYEE Grid Dynamics EEIR &R 2 DT T ¢

Group is as follows:

HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration paid BERNReNRE 819,985
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEESHRE RIREEED (48,651)
Cash outflow in respect of the acquisition A RAUEE Grid Dynamics EE 2 B &Rt
of Grid Dynamics Group 771,334
Goodwill arose in the above business combination as the cost of combination FlEBEHEE ZEERE A - BIEE
included a control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the BE o N BEHEINZRESARLEER
combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected RATEAA R FIUPE ~ WAIE N ~ RIR TS5 R B
synergies, revenue growth, future market development and the assembled EHEBHFNREE 2 S5 o ZEF I & AR
workforce. These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because DRVEER - THERRE R ED A A A E T
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. None RIZSE o TERTINBE B THE £ 2 BT 0] ArER
of the goodwill arising on the Acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax HIER® -
purposes.
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The Group incurred transaction costs of approximately HK$14,600,000 for
the Acquisition. The transaction costs of approximately HK$9,025,000 have
been expensed and are included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31st December 2017, and the
remaining portion of approximately HK$5,575,000 are included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31st December 2016.

Since the Acquisition, Grid Dynamics Group contributed approximately
HK$411,445,000 to the Group's revenue and profit before income tax of
approximately HK$74,130,000 to the Group for the year ended 31st December
2017.

Had the Acquisition been effected at the beginning of the year, the total amount
of revenue and profit before income tax of Grid Dynamics Group for the year
ended 31st December 2017 would have been approximately HK$2,052,922,000
and HK$93,971,000, respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
the operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed at the beginning of the year, nor is it intended to be
a projection of future results.

Depending on the upcoming financial performance of Grid Dynamics Group,
the contingent consideration payable for the Acquisition may range from nil
to USD18,000,000. The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments
that the Group could be required to make under this arrangement can be up
to USD18,000,000. The fair value of the amount payable of approximately
USD17,075,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$132,670,000) was recognised
as contingent consideration payable on the Completion Date. The amount
was estimated based on an assumed probability weighting in fulfilling the
performance requirements, using a discount rate of 3.18%. During the year
ended 31st December 2017, fair value change of approximately USD413,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,221,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the contingent consideration.

As at 31st December 2017, the purchase consideration for cash and contingent
components of approximately USD6,276,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$49,057,000) and approximately USD17,488,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$136,691,000) remained unpaid, of which HK$49,057,000 was included
in other payables and accruals and HK$69,429,000 and HK$67,262,000 was
included in current and non-current portion of contingent consideration payable,
respectively.
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AEBERNUBSFTEFRFEENEBKELD
14,600,000 7T & A1 #79,025,000 7 7T U B8 Ak
R J%Ffﬁijzuaﬁma —E—+tE+-A
S+ ALFESRAERRNTREAY &
T#95,575,000 8 TERBE T —"F+=A
=+ HUEFERABRRNTRERTERE
X o

B U B = I LA S - Grid Dynamics 58 @ ¥ A 5 @
E#R49411,445,000 7 T 8 Y A K2 £) 74,130,000
BTOBRABHRANES - D AREEHE=Z
—tF+ZA=+BUFEZEE -

HEBEECRAFENES  AEEHE-T
—tF+ A=+ BLFEZRABENN A
2,052,922,0007 7T + 1M 4 K 2 B BT 15 %1 Al i F)
AlAY /93,971,000 7T - 1B E & KHEH B A
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53 Grid Dynamics & E # R B R I[ T T
IR g B IEH FE AR EN T-Z Z 18,000,000
TC o IR IBEREE  AREBZ LN 2B RK
R B AR £ 8% % /4 18,000,000 % 7T ©
REKABERAEERNIARBZARBENE
17,075,000 % 7T (FHE 749 132,670,000 7T ) °
SRETIIRIR BRI IER B AV B Sk 2 ke mT gE 1 (5 A
BRIRE318% (L HE - RBEE=ZT—tF+=
A=+—HIFE BERARERGEERE
HRZ AL BEEZE413,000% 7T (HBERL
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© 2B 5 496,276,000 2 7T (18 & F #) 49,057,000
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. A BB &R R T

2017
—E—t%

HK$°000
FET

2016

AN S

HK$'000
THIT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 628 987
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZIEE 1 1
Prepayments TR RIE 340 -
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTIS R EE 241 836
1,210 1,824
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAEWGIE « 12e RIERRIE 5,854 486
Amount due from an ultimate holding company — F#&IERE R BIRFR 2 -
Amount due from immediate holding company IEE 32 UNCIVSE S - 13
Amounts due from subsidiaries O)ESNEIDAGN 816,971 244,475
Amount due from an associate —MBE R EIR R 61 30
Bank balances and cash RITFER MRS 12,845 4,306
835,733 249,310
Total assets wmaE 836,943 251,134
Equity attributable to equity holders AATRFSEEAEILER
of the Company
Share capital [N 67,054 35,079
Share premium A& 17 % (B Bk 376,464 114,497
Reserves (Note) & () 119,267 95,201
Total equity R 562,785 244,777
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Borrowings B8 245,182 -
Current liabilities nREAE
Other payables and accruals EAb BRI R FEET B R 11,738 6,357
Amount due to a subsidiary R —RIM B A RIFRIE 17,238 -
28,976 6,357
Total liabilities wnaE 274,158 6,357
Total equity and liabilities BEZRAE 836,943 251,134
Net current assets RENEEFE 806,757 242,953
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBERS 807,967 244,777
LI Wei WANG Yueou
3 FEE
Director Director
EE EE
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. RQ BB #EARRE @

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: The movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows: fisk  AARMEE 2 EEIAT ¢
Retained
Share-based earnings/
Convertible payment (accumulated
bonds reserve reserve losses)
Special reserve AR SR RER REEA Total
BRI E B A X fHifE (ReHEE) st
(Note (i))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT THAT BT THT T
At 1st January 2016 RZZ—R"F—A—H 95,513 - 253 690 96,456
Profit for the year FREH - - - 1,973 1,973
Issue of ordinary shares upon TR BT,
exercise of share options LR - - (39) - 39
Issue of ordinary shares under BTART T2 SRk
the bonus issue - - - (3,189) (3,189)
Lapse of share options BEEREANZ
transferred to retained earnings KRR AE - - (88) 88 -
At 31st December 2016 RZZE—RE+-A=+—H 95,513 - 126 (438) 95,201
At 1st January 2017 R-E—+tF—Hf—8 95,513 - 126 (438) 95,201
Profit for the year FREM - - - 13,932 13,932
Recognition of equity-settled RUARG AR
share-based payments TRzA% - - 4,299 - 4,299
Issue of ordinary shares BITHR T #1172
on bonus issue TiEik - - - (5,262) (5,262)
Equity component of AR ESER TS
convertible bonds - 15,536 - - 15,536
Issue of ordinary shares upon AARESBRRRIT
conversion of convertible bonds TaR - (4,439) - - (4,439)
At 31st December 2017 R=B—tF+=A=+-H 95,513 11,097 4,425 8,232 119,267
(i)  The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between the par () ARRZFHIFFEERBEFERARRFB
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued share capital M B R A B BT AT 31T 2 R p EE R
of the subsidiaries and the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired in prior FTEM B AR EEFEL =% - BEER
years. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed E-NAN—FRRE(EIEE])  WEAE
surplus shall not be distributable if there are reasonable grounds for believing BEEETIIEE - AIBARBRTAHS
that: K
(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities (1) ARATBEFRMERNREEELNEA
as they become due; or BRI HEE %
(2)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less than the (2) ARREBEZAISREBEERMINE
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium BEREDEITRAURRMDEERZ
account. FEV I
(i)  As at 31st December 2017, in the opinion of the directors, the aggregate amount (i) RZZT—+F+=—A=+—H EFR
of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the Company was B ARSIRFARRBREFBEAZHEE
approximately HK$103,745,000 (2016: HK$95,075,000). 458 4] /5103,745,0008 TT( — T — /N ¢

95,075,000 7T) °
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41. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash generated from operations
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N BEREER
(a) REEBZHEWA

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Profit before income tax B ET1S B0 A1 g ) 69,748 38,978
Adjustments for: KR
— Share of results of associates - FEIEEE A R ZEAR (R 22)
(Note 22) 7.111 8,540
— Amortisation of intangible assets - | E R (FEE21)
(Note 21) 7,304 1,668
— Depreciation and amortisation of - W% - BEREETER
property, plant and equipment B (FEE19)
(Note 19) 20,764 17,496
— Loss on disposal of property, plant - HEWE  BEREHZ
and equipment (Note 9) 18 (i1 9) 800 182
— Gain on deemed disposal of - RIEH EBE A RF
partial interests in associates gz W (FEE9)
(Note 9) - (5,714)
— Impairment loss on interests - B A R R EEE (M2 22)
in associates (Note 22) 4,400 -
— Fair value gain on revaluation - EEREMEZAREE
of investment properties Wz (Ff3E 20)
(Note 20) (1,700) (400)
— Provision for obsolete inventories, -REFERE (M 12)
net (Note 12) 78 69
— Interest income (Note 8) - R BN (FIzES) (137) (40)
— Interest expenses (Note 11) — M H (FiaE11) 17,205 793
— Equity-settled share-based - AR RER T2 FX
payment expenses 4,299 -
— Provision for customers’ claim - BPRERE 3,642 9,630
— Provision for impairment of - B 5B R E RS
trade receivables (Note 26) (Mi3E26) 541 4,187
— Reversal of provision for - EWE 5B R E R
impairment of trade receivables (MizE26)
(Note 26) (107) (4)
— Transaction costs for acquisition — WREERT A AR
of subsidiaries RSKA 9,025 5,575
— Changes in fair value on contingent - ERSAREZ AR EEZ
consideration payable (Note 39) (M43E39) 3,221 -
Changes in working capital: EEEE
~ Inventories -FE 255 (21,641)
— Trade receivables - FEWE 5508 (39,160) 47,448
— Finance lease receivables - BhEATH & FEUGRIE 1,382 (102)
— Other receivables, deposits - HtEWHIE - Ze &k
and prepayments B RIE (5,605) 6,589
— Amounts due from customers - B IR E P IR
for contract work 29,255 27,763
— Restricted bank deposits - ZRHIRITER (3,247) (876)
— Trade payables - ENESFHIEA (14,652) (59,527)
— Other payables and accruals - BN FCE R ERT BB (1,795) (3,209)
— Receipts in advance - TER = (1,407) 8,139
Cash generated from operations MEEBHeBA 111,220 85,544
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N BEREER @)
(b) METHEENEEWHER

41. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

TREFIBE_T—EF+-A=+—HL

The table below set out the reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

—o0 170

activities for the year ended 31st December 2017:

Bank
borrowings

RITHE

HK$'000
TR
(Note)
(PtsE)

FERELDELNAENER

Contingent

Consideration
payable Total
BAHAKE st
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT

Convertible
bonds

AR ES
HK$'000
FHEIT

At 1st January 2017 R-E—+%5—HA—H 10,008 - - 10,008
Cash flows Rene
— Net proceeds from bank - SRITEEMBRETE
borrowings 246,546 - - 246,546
— Repayment of bank - BERITEE
borrowings (10,000) - - (10,000)
— Interest paid -BRFE (5,911) - - (5,911)
— Net proceeds from issuance - /TR ES 2
of convertible bonds ISR FE - 345,947 - 345,947
Non-cash changes RS EH
— Acquisition of subsidiaries  — YxBEMIE A F] (£ 39)
(Note 39) - - 132,670 132,670
- Finance costs (Note 11) - B (BiRE11) 7,284 9,910 - 17,194
— Change in fair value on - ERSARERR
contingent consideration BEEY
payable - - 3,221 3,221
- Conversion of Convertible - B R[#E5
Bonds - (95,123) - (95,123)
— Equity component of - AR ES 2 D
Convertible Bonds - (15,536) - (15,536)
~ Derivative component of - AR ESFZOTE
Convertible Bonds TARS - (16) - (16)
— Exchange realignment -ERRE - - 800 800
At 31st December 2017 R-ZE—+tH+-A=+—H 247,927 245,182 136,691 629,800
Note: Fff3E

The following table shows the breakdown of the bank borrowings and interest
payables as at 31st December 2017 and 2016:

TREIN -_F—EFR T RFTA=1+—HAR
THEE RN FIE Z A4

2017
Bt

HK$°000
TR

Bank borrowings (Note 36(i))
Interest payable (included in
other payables and accruals)

RITIEE (PI5E36())

247,800

BAAE (BREAMENREREAEARN)

127 8

247,927
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R B RARMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of certain of its
office premises, staff quarter and computer equipment which fall due as follows:

42, EEROEE

RZB—tF+-A=+—8 AEEBRETA
BUELEHOEN T BERETHAETYE
BIBEEMEMEH 2 RRFEBLOSEAER
T~

2017 2016

—E—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Within one year —FRA 19,895 6,331
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FREAFNA 15,137 2,210
Later than 5 years hFE 1,897 -
36,929 8,541

Leases for office premises, staff quarter and computer equipment are negotiated
for an average term of one to five years (2016: one to three years) and the rentals
are fixed over the terms of the leases.

43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

ERTKVERAEM :

Contracted but not provided for:
Capital expenditure in respect of

- BB kR BZEARFHY

MAEYE  EIEEREMRE2EH TR
—ERFEH-R(ZTREF —E=F) H

43, EAREE

2017 2016

—E—tF —TREF

HK$'000
FHET

HK$°000
THIT

property, plant and equipment 208 132
Capital expenditure in respect of AEEESREERE
investment in available-for-sale - VNG
financial asset 11,367 -
11,575 132

44. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At 31st December 2017, the Group had contracted with tenants and an associate
in respect of office premises under operating leases as follows:

4. RREXZEE =R
RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H XEBEEHHQ
Ty B EMNRAS &ML T A
T~

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHIT

Not later than one year —FR 2,574 3,917
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FERTFER 11 2,543
2,585 6,460

Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of one to two years
(2016: one to two years) and the rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

45,

46.

4].

—o0 172

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2017, the Group had approximately HK$772,000 (2016:
HK$487,000) restricted bank deposit held as security for performance bonds. As
at 31st December 2017, performance bonds of approximately HK$63,299,000
(2016: HK$62,628,000) have been issued by the bank on behalf of the Group to
customers as security of contracts.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December 2017, land and buildings with carrying amount of
HK$271,950,000 (2016: HK$107,250,000) (Note 19) and investment properties
with carrying amount of HK$52,300,000 (2016: Nil) (Note 20) were pledged to
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31st December 2017, the Group has restricted bank deposits of
approximately HK$772,000 (2016: HK$487,000) pledged to secure the
performance bonds of the Group (Note 30).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31st December 2017, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 56.58% (2016:
65.47%) of the Company’s shares. The remaining 43.42% (2016: 34.53%) of
the Company’s shares are widely held. The ultimate holding company of the
Company is Teamsun.

(a) Transactions with related parties

Nature of transaction XEME

Ultimate holding company: BAERRAT :

Sales by the Group REEHE

Expenses charged to the Group AEESHZHAX
Fellow subsidiaries: BRMBLTE :
Purchase by the Group rEEEE

The associates: HERT

Sales by the Group REBEE

Purchases by the Group rEEEE

Staff costs charged by the Group AEBE#KZBEIRX
Rental income charged by the Group REEFKZHS KA

45,

46.

47.

HREE

RZZE—tF+=A=+—8 AEEZZRH
RITIF A 772,000 7T (ZZF— 74 : 487,000
BI)EREBHNREBZEMR - RZZT—+F
+ZA=+—H  fORELAEEG TEFIER
AHEIT 2 BHRFH 563,299,000 70 (= F
—754F ¢ 62,628,000787T) °

BEERH

RZZE—+tF+—A=+—8 AE@EZ TR
BT 2R &% A271,950,0008 T ( —ZF— X
4 107,250,000 7T) (FizE19) RIEEMEZ
BRI 4 %8 452,300,000 0 (=T — /N F : #)
(MiFE20) FEARSERE 2 SRITRVE 2 353 -

R-ZZE—tF+-A=+—0  AEBEZZEH
$RIT1E L) 772,000 70 (ZZ — 754 © 487,000
B DREREBEZEHREZ KM
30) °

BEALRS

R-ZZTE—+tF+-—A=+—8 EBEBERKE
BARRRED 2 56.58% (= F—7"F65.47%) °
B TN43.42% (=T —75%F : 34.53%) [ B E
B ALFTHEE - AARISKRIERAR AL RER
RAK °

(a) EEEALZRS

2017
—B—t&F

2016
—ENF
HK$'000
THET

HK$’'000
TR

- 35
100 210
339 473

- 455

7,389 12,636
122 125
363 348
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For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE —T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at normal
commercial terms that are consistently applied to all customers and vendors.

Rental income was transacted with reference to the rental rates prevailing in

the market.

(b) The Group’s balances with related parties are set out in Notes 28 and 34.

(C) Key management personnel remuneration are disclosed in Notes 14 and 15.

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2017 and RIE—tFR=_F—

2016 are as follows:

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

RigEz
EYE: ]

Name of subsidiary

) NG

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong
BHER(FE)BERAF &0
ELM Computer Technologies Hong Kong

Limited i
BMERRBRAF

ASL Softwing Investment Holdings Hong Kong
Limited (Note 1) 5
TP EIERER AR (1)

Issued and fully

paid share capital/
registered capital

BRAR
HRBE/
EREE

2 ordinary shares
55,350,000
non-voting
deferred shares”
HK$55,350,002
2 REBR
55,350,000 %
ERERERTER"
55,350,002 7T

12,000,000
ordinary shares
HK$12,000,000
12,000,000 f%
12,000,000 7T

10 ordinary shares
HK$10

108 3%
10/87T

4. BEATRF @
() HEREALTZXE (5

EMERSEERMEEPAER —BER
ZIEBEEGTETRS -

HEWATIZEMGERNBESKPEE

(b) &&EmEERE A+ M ESENN 28
N34 -

() =2EEAEMENHE14 R 15AFE -

48. TEBMBA R ZFF1F

NE+=A=+—B &
ARz EEMBATHENT -

Percentage of
issued share
capital held

by the Company
ER R
BRTREBEIHE
2017 2016

Principal activities

FEEL

S

100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer

products and solutions and

provision of hardware services

(including installation and

maintenance services) and

software services (including

software development, consulting

and professional services)

REZR - HEBRERNRBAT R

RREEH RS (DELERRE
RS BBt AR5 (B ARSI R 2

BERREERS)

100% 100% Sale of computer products and
solutions and provision of hardware
services (including installation and
maintenance services) and software
services (including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
HEBIMER KBRS R RIRME
BHRE (BERRERRERE) &
RS (BER R - BRI R
HER)

100%" N/A Investment holding
TER KERK

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. TEMMB AT 2 F 1B @)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2017 and RZE—EFR-ZF-—R"F+_A=+—H &
2016 are as follows: (Continued) RRAIZEEMBARFEET : (&)

Country/place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully Percentage of

establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation
MY R

kg

EVE L

registered capital capital held
EBITR
HEREK
EfER

by the Company
ARE i
ERITREBEDL
2017 2016
Bt —TRF

Name of subsidiary

) NG

Principal activities

FEXL

—o0 174

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
BERZORF) ARAR SRPY MOP10,000 products and solutions and provision
HER of hardware services (including
JEPIEE 10,000 7T installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)
REZR  HEBRERRBATER
RREEH RS (DELERRE
RS I AR5 (B AR SRR 3
RIS )
ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited Thailand 500,000 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
RE ordinary shares products and solutions and provision
THB50,000,000 of hardware services (including
500,000 A & i@k installation and maintenance services)
Z=#% 50,000,000 7T and software services (including
software development, consulting
and professional services)
RERR - HEBRERRBATER
BRI RS (AELERRE
MR ) KBRS (BRI R
BERREERE)
Guangzhou Automated Systems The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Sale of computer products and
Limited H HK$40,000,000 solutions and provision of hardware
BENMREEZESRHARAR AR services (including installation and

Annual Report 2017 & #f
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maintenance services) and software
services (including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2017 and

2016 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

Rz
EVE L

Name of subsidiary

ME AR A

Cayman Islands

HEES

ASL Security Solutions Limited

ASL Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands®

HRELES

ELM Technologies Holdings British Virgin Islands
Limited RBRLES

British Virgin Islands*
EBREIHS

Express Success Limited

British Virgin Islands*
RBRIHE

Express Returns Limited

Express Profits Development British Virgin Islands®

Limited REBELRS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Issued and fully

paid share capital/
registered capital

ERTR
#BrKRE
A&

1 ordinary share
HK$0.1
1TREER
0.187T

1 ordinary share
usD1
TREBR
17T

1 ordinary share
usD1

1 BB AR
(EH

2 ordinary shares
usb2

2R A
2ET

2 ordinary shares
usb2

QM AR
2ETT

2 ordinary shares
usb2

2 Mg R
PE

ERTRABDL

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & E) R £t B AR A )

48. TEMB AT ZFHE @

RZZE—tFRZT—R"F+ZA=+—H ' &
ARIZEEHBARFEOT : ()

Percentage of
issued share
capital held

by the Company

NG g Principal activities

FEEK
2017 2016

—2—tF

100%" 100%" Investment holding
KEER
100%" 100%"  Investment holding, sale of computer
products and solutions and provision

of hardware services (including

installation and maintenance services)

and software services (including

software development, consulting

and professional services)

REZR  HEERERRBATR
RREEN RS (R EIRE

RS B R 75 (B ISR R 2

BRI R EER)

100%" 100%" Investment holding
REER

100%" 100%" Property holding
ESSEE]

100%" 100%" Property holding
MERE

100%" 100%" Property holding
ESEE
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 8. FTEMBLATZFE @
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2017 and RZE—EFR-ZF-—R"F+_A=+—H &
2016 are as follows: (Continued) RAZEZMBARFENAT « (8)

Country/place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Percentage of
establishment  paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held

SRS, XL ERTR by the Company
Name of subsidiary kg2 HERE VNG g Principal activities
il PNGIEE ES 1] AEE A ERTRABEDL TEEH
2017 2016

Automated Systems Fortune British Virgin Islands® 1 ordinary share 100%" 100%" Investment holding, international
Investment Holdings Limited REBRIES! usD1 trading, fund investment and
B a=giilii treasury management
1%L REZR  BERES  EeRER
GDB International Investment British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100%" 100%" Investment holding
Limited HERIHS usD1 REER
1 IRE AL
17T
GDD International Holding the United States 100 common stocks 100% 100% Investment holding
Company (Note 2) (FifzE2) xH USD54,650,100 RAER
100 AR ik

54,650,100 7T
(2016: USD100)
(ZZ—7"%F 1 100%7T)

GDD International Merger the United States 100 common stocks N/A 100% Investment holding
Company e usD1 TiE A BEER
(Note 3) (Hf5E3) 100 B Eimk

(EH

Grid Dynamics International, Inc. the United States 100 common stocks 100% N/A Information technology (“IT")

(Note 4) (5 4) e USD6,382,891.19 TEA engineering services
100 A& iRk BB ([ AR ]) TR
6,382,891.19% T

Tonomi, Inc. the United States 1,000 common stocks 100% N/A IT engineering services

(Note 4) (FfizE4) %H USD1,948,585 Tiaf BB TR
1,000 EiER
1,948,585 %% 7T

Limited Liability Company Russia Registered capital 100% N/A Software development, consulting
"Cometera Russia” 7R RUB10,000 TNEF and related professional services
(Note 4) (Fif7E 4) HE AR R - BEERAREERE

10,000 & 47
B
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 8. TEMB AT 2F B @)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2017 and RIE—EFR-F—R"F+_A=+—H &
2016 are as follows: (Continued) RRAIZEEMBARFEET : (&)

Country/place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

Percentage of

issued share

capital held

gz
ROH

BT
BERE
AR

by the Company
A REFriE
ERITREEDL
2017 PANIS
ZB—tF —TRF

Principal activities

FEXRE

Name of subsidiary

M AR A

Limited Liability Company Russia Registered capital 100% N/A Software development, consulting
“Grid Dynamics Russia” 2R RUB10,000 T and related professional services
(Note 4) (Ff5£4) FAER MR - BEEREEEERS

10,000 i & 57
B

Grid Dynamics Poland Spotka z Poland 100 ordinary shares 100% N/A Software development, consulting
ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia g | PLN5,000 T and related professional services
(Note 4) (FfizE4) 100 A &5 A% MR - R REREERE

5,000 % B 2% & 12

Limited Liability Company Ukraine Registered capital 100% N/A Software development, consulting
“Grid Dynamics Ukraine” 5 UAH2,500 TEm and related professional services
(Note 4) (Ffiz 4) AER RMFE - BEREEEERS

2,500
ERBREXM

Limited Liability Company Ukraine Registered capital 100% N/A Software development, consulting
“Cometera Ukraine” 5ni UAH1,000 T and related professional services
(Note 4) (Fif£4) AER R - BEEREEEERS

1,000
ERBREXMA

Limited Liability Company Ukraine Registered capital 100% N/A  Software development, consulting and
“GD Ukraine” 5 H UAH1,000 TiEfA related professional services
(Note 4) (fizE4) A ER R - BREREEEERS

1,000 5525
EEPS

Limited Liability Company Ukraine Registered capital 100% N/A  Software development, consulting and
“Questora Ukraine” 5 UAH2,500 TEm related professional services
(Note 4) (Ffiz 4) AHER RMFE - BEREEEERY

2,500 557
1RERM
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48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

49.

—o0 178

1.

ASL Softwing Investment Holdings Limited was incorporated on 20th September 2017.

GDD International Holding Company was registered in Delaware as a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise. The paid up capital up to 31st December 2017 was USD54,650,100
(2016: USD100).

GDD International Merger Company has merged with and into Grid Dynamics
International, Inc. after the Acquisition (Note 39), and Grid Dynamics International, Inc.
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

These companies were newly acquired (Note 39) during the year ended 31st December
2017.

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company, carry practically
no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the Company nor to participate in any distribution on winding up.

These companies operate in Hong Kong.

Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of

the Directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the reporting

period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

(i) Bonus issue

On 28th March 2018, the Directors recommended a bonus issue (“Bonus
Issue”) of shares of par value HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company
("Bonus Shares”) on the basis of two (2) Bonus Shares, credited as fully
paid, for every ten (10) existing shares held by the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on Tuesday, 29th May 2018. The
Bonus Issue is conditional upon the passing of an ordinary resolution by
the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange granting listing of, and permission to
deal in, the Bonus Shares and compliance with the relevant legal procedures
and requirements (if any) under the applicable laws of Bermuda and the
Bye-laws of the Company.

(ii) Proposed final dividend

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
to declare a final dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share for the year ended
31st December 2017. Details of dividend are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2017 & #f

48. TEMB AT ZFE @)

49,

o

1.

*

PR EERERAGNR =ZE—+FNA=TH
Rl Aval

GDD International Holding Company 7 5 #i7 # /I
AR ANEBECE -BE_T—+tF+=A
=+—HEHREARA54,650,100 T (=ZF—7X
F : 100%7T) °

GDD International Merger Company #* 4 B 1% 6
A Grid Dynamics International, Inc. (Ff{3£39) » i
Grid Dynamics International, Inc. i A& 75 A &) & #
ZEMBAR -

BEARNRBE-F—LF A= T—AL
AR (FRE39) ©

BRERELERILIFAARDRFE - EEENS
FAEBRE  WRARBEMBRRAGNES L
FAEBASIRE LRR  28F8REELEM
DR BEBAER] o

FZERARBBEE -

ARFEER/BLMBART

EERA LRFAVAATNMBAT I EZE

RNEFEBEFARNEBMEEFENBEELLD -

EERBEINEMHBEARNFBESRBIRBNIT

E o

RAEEEER @ BENBQRBITTAESE

g:j; °

HREHREE

(i) BHITALRR
R-ZB-N\E=A-+N\B  EEZHIRE
HE T (10)IRIRB AR 1D AT /@ (2) IR A A
IR DIVER B IR 2 AL RS ([ 34T 41 ) 2 &
£oERZE-NEFREA-TAB(EHD)
HHERR R A £ 2 B R A B AN G A
FICEEO0.1 BT 2 4IRS ([4TA% |) o BE1T4T
RBFRRAEEREETFAS BB 8
EBRBR BRI EMEZESRHAELD
BRETKRESE  WETHREERLEZR
RUAERRRMETE (08) RARRARZ A A4
A& - HEER °

(ii) BRAKERE

RBEERE  EEEBRNEE=Z—+
FH+ZA=+—HLEFESRI.0BLZE
HRE o IR B 2 FHEESIN GRS M SRR M
17 0



Particulars of Investment Properties

REYEFS

For the year ended 31st December 2017 BE T —tF+-_A=+—HItFE

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties at 31st December 2017 are as follows: HRZZ—+tF+=Z/F=+—H ' AE@MZEEWEF
=3 .
BT -

Location Gross floor area (sq.ft)

1 ZEEKCFAR)

Units 1 to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor 11,744 sq.ft Commercial
Topsail Plaza 11,744 FHR [EES
11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB

R

WH

ZOE 11 5%

=522

1281275 R 155221 SRR

Car parking space No. P4 on Ground Floor 125 sq.ft Commercial
Topsail Plaza 125 FHR [EES
11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB

R

W

ZOE 11558

ey

T P4 BT
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Information of
Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

BEERGEERRAT - TE2ME -

HONG KONG

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
16/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2541 9900

Fax: (852) 2541 1338

i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited
Room 6-7, 10/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2608 6226

Fax: (852) 2645 8069

Automated Center of Excellence (ACoE)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Service Center

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936
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BEIRG (BHE)BRAR
HEMADH

ZIE 1158

E|EES 1518

E3E 1 (852) 2601 6998
{EH : (852) 2601 6936

WM EEEHRAERA
BEHALHE
ZOE 1155
E|EES 1612
: (852) 2541 9900
%E (852) 2541 1338

ZalF (B8 BHEER AR
EBTADE
ZLE 1158
EEES10186-7E

1 (852) 2608 6226
fEH : (852) 2645 8069

BB ZF =0 (ACOE)
FRHALHA

T 1158

#|BE5 1518

T3 1 (852) 2601 6998
{8H :(852) 2601 6936

AR5 0
HEMADH

O 1157
E|EES 1518
E3E 1 (852) 2601 6998
fEH : (852) 2601 6936

ZEEER L+ (SOC+)
BEHALHE
AT 1155
E|EES 1512
: (852) 2601 6998
%E (852) 2601 6936
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Information of
Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

BBRAEERRAR - TEWE - BE QR RAEETLER

MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
Unit 1402A, 1403A

No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China
(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 20 2203 8111

Fax: (86) 20 2203 8000

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
Unit 1402A, 1403A

No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 20 2203 8111

Fax: (86) 20 2203 8000

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd

P E A it

BEINREZEEEERHEER AR
P E M TS R

TS 1859

1402A  1403A BT

(BB4% : 510100)

3% 1 (86) 20 2203 8111

B : (86) 20 2203 8000

YGHNE AR AR (ODEC)
B E M T TSR
S 185 %%

1402A  1403A BT
(B4 : 510100)

3% 1 (86) 20 2203 8111
{EH : (86) 20 2203 8000

ERLAERZEREEAT]

Room A1509 Shougang International Tower IR TEER
No.60 Xizhimen North Street A PR 60557

Haidian District, Beijing, China
(Postal Code: 100082)
Tel: (86) 10 8273 6009

i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd

bR B K= A1509 F
(Eb4% © 100082)
E:% ¢ (86) 10 8273 6009

ZAkE (L) BB R AT AR

Room A1509 Shougang International Tower LR R
No.60 Xizhimen North Street AL ARE 605

Haidian District, Beijing, China
(Postal Code: 100082)
Tel: (86) 10 8273 6009

i-Sprint Innovations China (Zhuhai, CoE)

R BB KEAI509 E
(B4 : 100082)
T © (86) 10 8273 6009

A RHRIRE E i d O

4/F, Block B-2 waE™

Southern Software Park BEREHEE 158
No.1 Software Road e E
Zhuhai, Guangdong, China B2 iR MmiE

(Postal Code: 519080)
Tel: (86) 75 6632 2668
Fax: (86) 75 6632 2660

(Eb4% © 519080)
T © (86) 75 6632 2668
{EH : (86) 75 6632 2660
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MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

iN Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D'Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207
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ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

BEE ¢ (662) 185 3206

{8 H : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

% ih 0 (662) 185 3206

{BH : (662) 185 3207

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
EiE ¢ (662) 185 3206
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SINGAPORE

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Lobby 1 Chai Chee Road
#08-01 Viva Business Park
Singapore 469 004

Tel: (65) 6244 3900

Fax: (65) 6244 8900

MALAYSIA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax: (60) 3 7931 5688

POLAND

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Poland”
Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd floor

Krakéw, 30-062, Poland

Tel: (48) 12 380 1616

RUSSIA

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics”
16 corpus 1 liter B. Bolshaya Monetnaya street
Saint-Petersburg, 197101, Russia

Representative Office

5a Rentgena St., St. Petersburg, 197101, Russia
Tel: (7) 812 640 3876
Fax: (7) 812 313 9640

Representative Office

Petrogradskaya embankment, 22
St. Petersburg 197046, Russia
Tel: (7) 812 640 3876

Fax: (7) 812 313 9640

Representative Office

38/114 Vavilova St., Floor 7
Saratov, 410012, Russia
Tel: (7) 8452 67 4878

3R

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Lobby 1 Chai Chee Road
#08-01 Viva Business Park
Singapore 469 004

BEE ¢ (65) 6244 3900

{#H : (65) 6244 8900
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i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

& &h ¢ (60) 3 7932 5688
{#E : (60) 3 7931 5688
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Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Poland”
Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd floor

Krakéw, 30-062, Poland
EaE 1 (48) 123801616
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Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics”
16 corpus 1 liter B. Bolshaya Monetnaya street
Saint-Petersburg, 197101, Russia

REWEE

5a Rentgena St., St. Petersburg, 197101, Russia
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REMREE

Petrogradskaya embankment, 22
St. Petersburg 197046, Russia
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UKRAINE

Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Ukraine”

54 Pushkinska Street, Kharkiv
Kharkiv region, 61057, Ukraine

Representative Office

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, 61023, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 057 728 5233

Representative Office

26 Rynok Square, Lviv, 79000, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 032 242 0475

Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine”
54 Pushkinska Street, Kharkiv
Kharkiv region, 61057, Ukraine

Representative Office

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, 61023, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 057 728 5233

Representative Office

26 Rynok Square, Lviv, 79000, Ukraine
Tel: (38) 032 242 0475

UNITED STATES

Grid Dynamics International, Inc.
5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 520
San Ramon, CA 94583

Tel: (1) 650 523 5000

i-Sprint Innovations Inc.
197 Route 18 South
Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
Tel: (1) 201 604 3545
Fax: (1) 732 422 0178
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Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Ukraine”

54 Pushkinska Street, Kharkiv
Kharkiv region, 61057, Ukraine

REMEE

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, 61023, Ukraine
E:h 1 (38) 057 728 5233

REPEE

26 Rynok Square, Lviv, 79000, Ukraine
TG ¢ (38) 032 242 0475

Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine”
54 Pushkinska Street, Kharkiv
Kharkiv region, 61057, Ukraine

REMREE

5 Vesnina St., Kharkiv, 61023, Ukraine
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REPEE

26 Rynok Square, Lviv, 79000, Ukraine
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15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
FRDEROE 11 REIEES 1548
E75:(852) 2601 6998 HK : (852) 2601 6936
Ak : http://www.asl.com.hk
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